
No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. This prospectus supplement together with 
the accompanying short form base shelf prospectus dated June 12, 2020 to which it relates, as amended or supplemented and each document incorporated by reference 
into the base shelf prospectus for purposes of the distribution of the securities to which this prospectus supplement pertains constitutes a public offering of these 
securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. 

Information has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying short form base shelf prospectus dated June 12, 2020 to which 
it relates, from documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be obtained 
on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of Quisitive Technology Solutions, Inc. at 161 Bay Street, Suite 2325, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1, telephone (972) 
573-0995 and are also available electronically at www.sedar.com. 

The securities offered hereby have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”), or any state securities 
laws. The securities may not be offered or sold in the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States of America or the District of 
Columbia (collectively, the “United States” or “U.S.”) unless exemptions from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities laws 
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT 
(to the Short Form Base Shelf Prospectus dated June 12, 2020)

New Issue March 31, 2021

QUISITIVE TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, INC. 

C$50,100,000
 33,400,000 Subscription Receipts 

each representing the right to receive one Common Share 

This prospectus supplement (the “Prospectus Supplement”), together with the accompanying short form base shelf prospectus dated 
June 12, 2020 (the “Base Shelf Prospectus” and together with the Prospectus Supplement, the “Prospectus”) qualifies the distribution 
(the “Offering”) of 33,400,000 subscription receipts (the “Initial Subscription Receipts”) of Quisitive Technology Solutions, Inc. 
(“Quisitive” or the “Corporation”) at a price of C$1.50 per Initial Subscription Receipt (the “Offering Price”) pursuant to an 
underwriting agreement dated March 31, 2021 (the “Underwriting Agreement”), among the Corporation and Scotia Capital Inc., Eight 
Capital and Canaccord Genuity Corp. as joint bookrunners (the “Joint Bookrunners”), together with Desjardins Securities Inc., as co-
lead underwriters (the “Co-Lead Underwriters”) and Raymond James Ltd., Echelon Wealth Partners Inc., and Beacon Securities 
Limited (together with the Co-Lead Underwriters, the “Underwriters” and each individually, an “Underwriter”), pursuant to which 
the Initial Subscription Receipts will be offered for sale in all provinces and territories in Canada through the Underwriters in accordance 
with the terms of the Underwriting Agreement. The Offering Price has been determined by arm’s length negotiation between the 
Corporation and the Joint Bookrunners, with reference to the prevailing market price of the common shares of the Corporation (the 
“Common Shares”). See “Plan of Distribution”. Each Subscription Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to receive, for no additional 
consideration or action on the part of the holder, one Common Share upon the satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions (as defined 
herein) provided that a Termination Event (as defined below) has not occurred, subject to any adjustments in accordance with the 
Subscription Receipt Agreement (as defined herein) governing the Offered Subscription Receipts (as defined herein), as described in 
greater detail under “Description of the Subscription Receipts”. 

The Net Proceeds (as defined herein) from the sale of the Offered Subscription Receipts will be used to finance, in part, the acquisition 
(the “BankCard USA Acquisition”) by the Corporation of Bankcard USA Merchant Services, Inc. (“BankCard USA”) at the time of 
the Transaction Closing (as defined herein), and for working capital purposes. The closing of the BankCard USA Acquisition (the 
“Transaction Closing”) is contemplated to occur before the end of the second calendar quarter of 2021 (the date upon which the 
Transaction Closing occurs, the “Transaction Closing Date”), subject to the terms and conditions contained in the BankCard USA 
Stock Purchase Agreement (as defined herein). See “The BankCard USA Acquisition” and “Use of Proceeds”. 

On March 29, 2021, the Corporation announced that it intends to complete a private placement of 3,333,333 subscription receipts (the 
“Private Placement Subscription Receipts”, and together with the Offered Subscription Receipts, the “Subscription Receipts”) at 
the Offering Price and otherwise having the same terms as the Offered Subscription Receipts (the “Concurrent Private Placement”). 



FAX Capital Corp. (“FAX”) holds Common Shares representing approximately 7.6% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as 
of the date of this Prospectus, on a non-diluted basis. Pursuant to existing contractual rights, FAX has committed to subscribe for, in 
connection with the Concurrent Private Placement (expected to close concurrently with the Offering), 3,333,333 Private Placement 
Subscription Receipts. The Corporation will pay to FAX a capital commitment fee equal to 3.5% of the gross proceeds raised pursuant 
to the Concurrent Private Placement and a 3.5% finder’s fee on the gross proceeds raised pursuant to the Concurrent Private Placement. 
See “Plan of Distribution – Concurrent Private Placement”. 

The outstanding Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange (the “TSXV”) under the symbol 
“QUIS”. The Corporation has applied to have: (i) the Offered Subscription Receipts; and (ii) the Common Shares issuable upon 
conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts and the Private Placement Subscription Receipts listed on the TSXV. The TSXV has 
not conditionally approved the Corporation’s listing application and there is no assurance that the TSXV will approve the listing 
application. Listing is subject to the approval of the TSXV in accordance with its listing requirements, and the completion of the Offering 
is conditional upon the listing of the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts on the TSXV. See 
“Risk Factors”. On March 26, 2021, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Offering, the closing price per Common Share 
on the TSXV was C$1.66. 

Price: C$1.50 per Initial Subscription Receipt 

Price to the Public Underwriters’ Commission(1) Proceeds to the Corporation(2)(3)

Per Initial Subscription Receipt................ C$1.50 C$0.09 C$1.41 
Total Offering(3)(4) C$50,100,000 C$3,006,000 C$47,094,000 

Notes: 
(1) In consideration for the services rendered by the Underwriters in connection with the Offering, the Corporation has agreed to pay the Underwriters a cash fee 

(the “Underwriters’ Commission”) equal to 6.0% of the gross proceeds of the Offering (including in respect of any exercise of the Over-Allotment Option 
(as defined herein). The Underwriters’ Commission is payable as to 50% on the Closing Date (as defined herein) and 50% upon the release of the Escrowed 
Funds (as defined herein) if the Escrow Release Conditions are satisfied. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

(2) After deducting the Underwriters’ Commission, but before deducting and expenses of the Offering (estimated to be C$500,000), which will be paid by the 
Corporation from the proceeds of the Offering. The Underwriters’ Commission for the Offering will be deducted from the proceeds from the Offering.  

(3) The Underwriters have been granted an over-allotment option, exercisable in whole or in part in the sole discretion of the Underwriters for a period of 30 days 
from and including the Closing Date (the “Over-Allotment Deadline”), to purchase up to an additional 5,010,000 subscription receipts of the Corporation 
(the “Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts”, and together with the Initial Subscription Receipts, the “Offered Subscription Receipts”) at the Offering 
Price to cover the Underwriters’ over-allocation position, if any, and for market stabilization purposes (the “Over-Allotment Option”). The Over-Allotment 
Option is exercisable by the Joint Bookrunners giving notice to the Corporation prior to the Over-Allotment Deadline, which notice shall specify the number 
of Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts to be purchased. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the total “Price to the Public”, “Underwriters’ 
Commission” and “Proceeds to the Corporation” will be C$57,615,000, C$3,456,900 and C$54,158,100, respectively. The Prospectus qualifies the grant of 
the Over-Allotment Option and the distribution of Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts issuable upon exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. A purchaser 
who acquires Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts forming part of the Underwriters’ over-allocation position acquires those Over-Allotment Subscription 
Receipts under the Prospectus, regardless of whether the over-allocation position is ultimately filled through the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or 
secondary market purchases. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

(4) Assuming no exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. 

The following table sets out the maximum number of securities under options issuable to the Underwriters in connection with the 
Offering: 

Underwriters’ Position  
Maximum Number of Securities 

Available 
Exercise Period Exercise Price 

Over-Allotment Option(1) 5,010,000 Over-Allotment 
Subscription Receipts 

Up to 30 days from and 
including the Closing Date 

C$1.50 per Over-Allotment 
Subscription Receipt 

Note: 
(1) This Prospectus Supplement qualifies the grant of the Over-Allotment Option, and the distribution of Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts issuable upon 

exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. See “Plan of Distribution”.  

Unless the context otherwise requires, when used herein, all references to the “Offering” include the Over-Allotment Option, and all 
references to “Offered Subscription Receipts” include the Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts issuable upon exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option. 

The gross proceeds from the sale of the Offered Subscription Receipts and the Private Placement Subscription Receipts, less 50% of the 
Underwriters’ Commission and the Underwriters’ expenses, and all interest earned thereon (collectively, the “Escrowed Funds”), will 
be held by Computershare Trust Company of Canada, as subscription receipt and escrow agent (the “Subscription Receipt Agent”) for 
the Corporation, and invested in Permitted Investments (as defined herein) pending the earlier to occur of: (i) the satisfaction of the 
Escrow Release Conditions; and (ii) a Termination Event. 



If, prior to the Escrow Release Deadline (as defined herein) and provided a Termination Event has not occurred: (i) each of the conditions 
precedent to the completion or satisfaction of the BankCard USA Acquisition substantially on the terms as set out in the BankCard USA 
Stock Purchase Agreement have been satisfied or waived (except for the payment of the Cash Consideration and issuance of the Share 
Consideration (as each such term is defined herein)); (ii) the Corporation has available to it all funds (in addition to the Net Proceeds) 
necessary to satisfy the payment of the Cash Consideration; (iii) all necessary corporate, regulatory, stock exchange, shareholder and 
other approvals or consents necessary for the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition and the Offering have been obtained; and 
(iv) the Corporation has delivered a notice to the Joint Bookrunners confirming that the conditions set forth in (i), (ii) and (iii) have been 
satisfied and thereafter the Corporation and the Joint Bookrunners have delivered a joint notice to the Subscription Receipt Agent, each 
confirming that the conditions set forth in (i), (ii) and (iii) have been satisfied (collectively, the “Escrow Release Conditions”), then: 
(a) the Subscription Receipt Agent will (i) remit to Scotia Capital Inc., on behalf of the Underwriters, the remaining 50% of the 
Underwriters’ Commission and any additional expenses of the Underwriters, together with the interest earned thereon, and (ii) release 
to the Corporation the balance of Escrowed Funds less any remaining fees and expenses of the Subscription Receipt Agent (the amount 
released to the Corporation referred to herein as the “Net Proceeds”); and (b) the holders of Offered Subscription Receipts and Private 
Placement Subscription Receipts will automatically receive, without payment of additional consideration or further action, one Common 
Share for each Subscription Receipt held, subject to any adjustments in accordance with the Subscription Receipt Agreement. See 
“Description of the Subscription Receipts”. 

If: (i) the Escrow Release Conditions have not been satisfied on or before 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on June 30, 2021 (the “Escrow 
Release Deadline”); (ii) the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement is terminated at any time prior to the Escrow Release Deadline; 
(iii) at any time prior to the Escrow Release Deadline the Corporation delivers to the Joint Bookrunners and the Subscription Receipt 
Agent a notice, executed by the Corporation, confirming that the Corporation will not be proceeding with the BankCard USA 
Acquisition; or (iv) at any time prior to the Escrow Release Deadline the Corporation formally announces to the public by way of a press 
release that it does not intend to proceed with the BankCard USA Acquisition (each, a “Termination Event”, and the date upon which 
such Termination Event occurs, the “Termination Date”), each holder of an Offered Subscription Receipt will be entitled to receive, 
commencing on the second business day following the Termination Date, an amount equal to the aggregate of: (a) the Offering Price 
multiplied by the number of Subscription Receipts held by such holder; and (b) his, her or its pro rata share of the interest or other 
income actually earned on the investment of the Escrowed Funds from, and including, the Closing Date to, but excluding, the 
Termination Date (less any applicable withholding taxes) (the “Earned Interest”) ((a) and (b) collectively, the “Subscription Receipt 
Refund Amount”); and (c) in respect of the holders of Offered Subscription Receipts only, his, her or its pro rata share of the interest 
that would otherwise have been earned on 50% of the Underwriters’ Commission as if such fee had been held in escrow as part of the 
Escrowed Funds and not paid to the Underwriters on the Closing Date (less any applicable withholding taxes) (the “Deemed Interest”). 
The Corporation will be responsible to fund any shortfall by payment to the Subscription Receipt Agent within two business days, where 
the Escrowed Funds is insufficient to satisfy payment to the holders Subscription Receipts in full of the aggregate Subscription Receipt 
Refund Amount plus, if applicable, the amount of the Deemed Interest. See “Description of the Subscription Receipts”. 

The Underwriters, as principals, conditionally offer the Offered Subscription Receipts, subject to prior sale, if, as and when issued by 
the Corporation and accepted by the Underwriters in accordance with the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement referred 
to under “Plan of Distribution” and subject to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Corporation by Cassels Brock & 
Blackwell LLP and on behalf of the Underwriters by Wildeboer Dellelce LLP.  

In connection with this Offering and subject to applicable laws, the Underwriters may over-allocate or effect transactions to stabilize or 
maintain the market price of the Common Shares. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. The Underwriters 
propose to offer the Offered Subscription Receipts initially at the Offering Price. After the Underwriters have made a reasonable 
effort to sell all of the Offered Subscription Receipts at the Offering Price, the price at which the Offered Subscription Receipts 
are distributed pursuant to the Prospectus may be decreased and may be further changed from time to time to an amount not 
greater than the Offering Price. Any reduction of the Offering Price will not reduce the Net Proceeds to be received by the 
Corporation as stated above. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

Subscriptions for the Offered Subscription Receipts will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is 
reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. The closing is expected to take place on or about April 8, 2021 or 
such other date as the Corporation and the Underwriters may agree (the “Closing Date”), but in any event not later than 42 days after 
the date of this Prospectus Supplement. It is anticipated that the Offered Subscription Receipts will be issued through the book-entry 
system, registered in the name of CDS Clearing and Depositary Services Inc. (“CDS”) or its nominee and will be deposited with CDS. 
Beneficial holders of the Offered Subscription Receipts will receive only a customer confirmation from the Underwriters, or another 
registered dealer who is a CDS participant, and from or through whom a beneficial interest in the Offered Subscription Receipts are 
acquired. If any Offered Subscription Receipts are not able to be issued in the book-entry system through CDS in advance of the Closing 
Date for any reason, then those investors or their designated holders will receive definitive certificates representing their interests in 
such Offered Subscription Receipts with restrictive legends, if applicable. For further information and certain restrictions on buyers in 
the United States, please see “Plan of Distribution”.



There is currently no market through which the Offered Subscription Receipts may be sold and purchasers may not be able to 
resell the Offered Subscription Receipts purchased hereunder. This may affect the pricing of the Offered Subscription Receipts 
in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the Offered Subscription Receipts 
and the extent of issuer regulation. An investment in the Offered Subscription Receipts, and the Common Shares issuable upon 
conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts upon satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions, is speculative and subject 
to a number of risks. Investors should review this Prospectus Supplement, together with the Base Shelf Prospectus, in their 
entirety and carefully consider the risk factors described under the heading “Risk Factors” in each of the Base Shelf Prospectus 
and this Prospectus Supplement and the risks identified in the documents incorporated by reference herein before purchasing 
the Offered Subscription Receipts. 

Prospective investors should be aware that the acquisition of Offered Subscription Receipts may have tax consequences in Canada. Such 
tax consequences for investors may not be described fully herein or in the Prospectus. See “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations”. Potential investors are advised to consult their own legal counsel and other professional advisors in order to assess the 
income tax, legal and other aspects of the Offering in their particular circumstances. 

No Canadian securities regulator has approved or disapproved of the securities offered hereby, passed upon the accuracy or adequacy 
of this Prospectus Supplement and the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus or determined if this Prospectus Supplement and the 
accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus are truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence. 

The head office of the Corporation is located at Suite 2325, 161 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1, and the principal office is located 
at Suite 1000, 1431 Greenway Drive, Irving, Texas.  

Mr. Michael Reinhart, the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Corporation, and Mr. Philip Sorgen, a director of the 
Corporation, each reside outside of Canada. Each of Messrs. Reinhart and Sorgen have appointed Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP, 
Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza, 40 King St. W., Toronto, Ontario M5H 3C2 as agent for service of process in Canada. Purchasers are advised 
that it may not be possible for investors to enforce judgments obtained in Canada against any person that resides outside of Canada, 
even if the party has appointed an agent for service of process. 
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IMPORTANT NOTICE ABOUT INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS 

This document is in two parts. The first part is this Prospectus Supplement, which describes the terms of the Offered Subscription 
Receipts being offered and also adds to and updates information contained in the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus and the 
documents incorporated herein and therein. The second part, the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus, gives more general information, 
some of which may not apply to the Offered Subscription Receipts being offered under this Prospectus Supplement. This Prospectus 
Supplement is deemed to be incorporated by reference into the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus solely for the purposes of the 
Offering constituted by this Prospectus Supplement. To the extent there is a conflict between information contained in this Prospectus 
Supplement and information contained in the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus or any document incorporated by reference herein 
or therein, you should rely on the information contained in this Prospectus Supplement. However, if any statement in one of these 
documents is inconsistent with a statement in another document having a later date—for example, a document incorporated by reference 
into this Prospectus Supplement or the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus—the statement in the document having the later date 
modifies or supersedes the earlier statement. 

Investors should rely only on information contained in or incorporated by reference into this Prospectus Supplement and the 
accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus and such information is accurate only as of the date of the applicable document. The Corporation’s 
business, financial condition, results of operations may have changed since those dates. Information in this Prospectus Supplement 
updates and modifies the information in the Base Shelf Prospectus and the information incorporated by reference herein and therein. 
The Corporation has not authorized anyone to provide investors with different information. Information contained on the Corporation’s 
website shall not be deemed to be a part of this Prospectus Supplement or incorporated by reference and should not be relied upon by 
prospective investors for the purpose of determining whether to invest in the securities offered hereby.  

The Corporation will not make an offer of these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. Investors should 
not assume that the information contained in this Prospectus Supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the face page 
of this Prospectus Supplement or the date of any documents incorporated by reference herein. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the disclosure in this Prospectus Supplement assumes that the Over-Allotment Option will not be exercised. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Prospectus Supplement to the “Corporation” refer to the Corporation and its 
subsidiary entities on a consolidated basis. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This Prospectus Supplement contains “forward-looking statements”, “forward-looking information”, “future-oriented financial  
information” and “financial  outlooks” within the meaning of applicable securities legislation (collectively referred to herein as 
“forward-looking information” or “forward-looking statements”). Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, the 
ability of the Corporation to complete the closing of the Offering, the BankCard USA Acquisition, and the related transactions 
contemplated herein on the terms and conditions described herein, including, but not limited to, the ability of the Corporation to satisfy 
the Escrow Release Conditions on or prior to the Escrow Release Deadline; the expected timing for closing of the Offering, the BankCard 
USA Acquisition, the Mazik Acquisition (as defined herein), and the other related transactions contemplated herein; the effects of the 
Offering, the BankCard USA Acquisition, and the related transactions contemplated herein on the financial performance and 
consolidated business of the Corporation; statements with respect to future business strategy, competitive strengths, and goals; the 
expansion and growth of the Corporation’s business, operations and plans; potential revenue and cost saving synergies (including, but 
not limited to, payment processing based on current transaction processing volume); projected milestones and timelines; the intention 
to scale operations and make technology investments; new revenue streams; estimated sales, revenue, margins and Adjusted EBITDA 
(as defined herein) and cost metrics; long term revenue and Adjusted EBITDA objectives, including BankCard USA’s transaction-based 
revenue model having significant recurring revenue and strong and growing Adjusted EBIDTA margin; targeted growth of 
approximately 15% from acquired companies including organic growth; debt leverage targets, revenue and gross margin metrics; the 
anticipated business, operation and financial performance and condition of the Corporation; management’s expectation with respect to 
the success of the Corporation in its industry; expectations regarding the ability to raise capital; the amount and use of proceeds of the 
Offering and other financings; market prices; values and other economic indicators and estimated valuation multiples; the expansion 
into additional markets; expectations of market size and growth in Canada and the United States; expectations for other economic, 
business, regulatory and/or competitive factors related to the Corporation or the computing and technology industries generally; and 
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other events or conditions that may occur in the future. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use 
of words and phrases such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, 
or “believes” or variations (including negative variations) of such words and phrases, or statements that certain actions, events or results 
“may”, “could”, “would”, “should”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved. 

Forward-looking information are based on certain material assumptions and analysis made by the Corporation, and the opinions and 
estimates of management as of the date such statements are made and they represent management's best judgment based on facts and 
assumptions that management considers reasonable in light of its experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and 
expected future developments and other factors it believes are appropriate, and are subject to risks and uncertainties. The material 
assumptions upon which forward-looking statements in this Prospectus are based include, among others, assumptions with respect to: 
the completion of the Offering and the ability of the Corporation to satisfy the Escrow Release Conditions on or prior to the Escrow 
Release Deadline; the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition, including receipt of all regulatory approvals and third-party 
consents; the completion of the Mazik Acquisition; the Corporation’s consolidation strategy; commercialization of intellectual property; 
growth plans and cash flows; potential revenue and cost saving synergies following the completion of the proposed BankCard USA 
Acquisition assumes the ability to modify agreements; reduction of redundant staff; consolidation of duplicate vendors and service 
providers including but not limited to benefits, payroll services, marketing services, legal, accounting and others; the demand for the 
Corporation’s services; future demand and trends in Microsoft Cloud services; the Corporation’s ability to scale revenue; the 
Corporation’s ability to access financing on favorable terms from time to time; the Corporation’s ability to protect its intellectual property 
rights and that the Corporation will not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others; the Corporation’s ability to attract and 
retain clients; the continuation of executive and operating management or the non-disruptive replacement of them on competitive terms; 
and stable market and general economic conditions. Long term revenue and Adjusted EBITDA objectives, approximate 15% growth 
targets from acquired companies including organic growth, debt leverage targets, revenue and gross margin metrics; long term revenue 
and Adjusted EBITDA objectives assume continued acquisition growth combined with organic and inorganic growth. 

Forward-looking information involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, 
performance or achievements of the Corporation to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements 
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, the anticipated use of proceeds of the 
Offering; the timing for completion, settlement and closing of the Offering; the satisfaction of the conditions to closing of the Offering, 
including receipt in a timely manner of regulatory and other required approvals and clearances, including the approval of the TSXV; the 
plan of distribution for the Offering; the Corporation’s  history of net losses and negative cash flow; the Corporation’s requirement for 
additional funding to develop its business; the limited history of operations of the Corporation’s LedgerPay business and future business 
strategy; changes in technology, customer markets and demand for the Corporation’s services; the efficacy of the Corporation’s software 
and product offering; sales and margin risk; acquisition and integration risks; dependence on economic and market conditions including, 
but not limited to, access to equity or debt capital on favourable terms if required; changes in market dynamics including business 
relationships and competition; information system risks; risks associated with the introduction of new products; product design risk; 
risks related to the Corporation being a holding company; environmental risks; customer and vendor risks; credit risks; tax and insurance 
related risks; risks of legislative changes; risks relating to remote operations; key executive risk; risk of litigation risks; risks related to 
contracts with third party service providers; risks related to the enforceability of contracts; risks related to the novel coronavirus disease 
(“COVID-19”) pandemic; risks related to the economy generally; the limited operating history of the Corporation; reliance on the 
expertise and judgment of senior management of the Corporation; risks related to proprietary intellectual property and potential 
infringement by third parties; failure to protect the Corporation’s intellectual property rights; risks relating to financing activities 
including leverage; risks relating to the management of growth; increased costs associated with the Corporation becoming a publicly 
traded company; increasing competition in the industry; risks relating to energy costs; reliance on key inputs, suppliers and skilled 
labour; cyber-security risks; failure to complete target acquisitions on the expected terms or at all; liabilities associated with acquired 
companies or assets; the expected results of the BankCard USA Acquisition could differ from management’s expectations; business 
integration risks; fluctuations in general macroeconomic conditions, failure to achieve potential revenue; cost synergies may be lower 
than expected if the Corporation is unable to amend agreements including as required to migrate merchants to LedgerPay (as defined 
herein); the Corporation’s failure to economically commercialize its service; litigation, including with respect to intellectual property 
infringement; the Corporation’s inability to maintain or improve its competitive position; future demand and trends in Microsoft Service 
offerings; the Corporation’s failure to retain key personnel and hire additional personnel needed to develop its business; the 
Corporation’s failure to adequately evaluate its current business and future prospects; and the Corporation’s business practice reputation 
being negatively affected by customer or user complaints or negative publicity Corporation’s expectations and predictions for long term 
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revenue and Adjusted EBITDA objectives, approximate 15% growth targets from acquired companies including organic growth, debt 
leverage targets, revenue and gross margin metrics objectives is subject to a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, 
assumptions and other factors, including: the Corporation’s history of net losses and negative cash flow; the Corporation’s requirement 
for additional funding to develop its business; and risks relating to the following: failure to complete target acquisitions on the expected 
terms or at all; liabilities associated with acquired companies or assets; risks related to quantifying the Corporation’s target market; risks 
related to industry growth and consolidation; fraudulent activity by employees, contractors and consultants; conflicts of interest; risks 
related to the cost structures of certain projects; risks relating to certain remedies being limited and the difficulty of enforcement of 
judgments and effect service outside of Canada; risks related to future dispositions; sales by existing shareholders; the limited market 
for securities of the Corporation; price volatility of the Common Shares; no guarantee regarding use of available funds; currency 
fluctuations; other factors beyond the Corporation’s control; and as well as those factors included herein and elsewhere in the 
Corporation’s public disclosure.  

Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list is not exhaustive of all factors and assumptions which may have been used. Although the 
Corporation has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in 
forward-looking information, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be 
no assurance that such information will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those 
anticipated in such information. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking information. The forward-
looking information contained herein is presented for the purposes of assisting investors in understanding the Corporation’s expected 
financial and operating performance and the Corporation’s plans and objectives and may not be appropriate for other purposes. The 
Corporation does not undertake to update any forward-looking information, except in accordance with applicable securities 
laws. 

This list is not exhaustive of the factors that may affect any of the Corporation’s forward-looking statements. Although the Corporation 
believes its expectations are based upon reasonable assumptions and have attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual 
actions, events or results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking statements, there may be other factors that cause 
actions, events or results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. See the section entitled “Risk Factors” in this Prospectus 
Supplement and in the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus, and in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in the Corporation’s annual 
information form dated as of May 15, 2020 for the financial year ended December 31, 2019 (the “Annual Information Form”), for 
additional risk factors that could cause results to differ materially from forward-looking statements. 

Investors are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking information. The forward-looking information contained herein 
are made as of the date of this Prospectus Supplement and, accordingly, are subject to change after such date. The Corporation disclaims 
any intent or obligation to update publicly or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements or the foregoing list of assumptions or 
factors, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except in accordance with applicable securities laws. Investors 
are urged to read the Corporation’s filings with Canadian securities regulatory agencies, which can be viewed online under the 
Corporation’s issuer profile on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (“SEDAR”) at www.sedar.com.  

NON-IFRS MEASURES 

This  Prospectus  makes  reference  to  certain  non-IFRS  measures.  These  measures  are  not  recognized measures  under  International  
Financial  Reporting  Standards  (“IFRS”),  do  not  have  a  standardized  meaning prescribed  by  IFRS  and  are  therefore  unlikely  
to  be  comparable  to  similar  measures  presented  by  other companies. Rather, these measures are provided as additional information 
to complement those IFRS measures by  providing  further  understanding  of  the  Corporation’s  results  of  operations  from  
management’s  perspective. Accordingly,  they  should  not  be  considered  in  isolation  nor  as  a  substitute  for  analysis  of  the  
Corporation’s  information  reported  under  IFRS. 

This Prospectus includes non-IFRS and non-US GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) (“US-GAAP”) measures, including 
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, and Adjusted EBITDA Growth. The Corporation uses these non-IFRS and non-US 
GAAP financial measures as it believes that these measures provide information that is useful to understanding financial performance 
and facilitate a comparison of its quarterly and full year results from period to period. These non-IFRS and non-US GAAP measures are 
not recognized under IFRS and US GAAP and, accordingly, readers are cautioned that these measures should not be construed as 
alternatives to the applicable measures determined in accordance with IFRS and US GAAP. Non-IFRS and non-US GAAP financial 
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measures included in this Prospectus do not have any standardized meaning under IFRS and US-GAAP may not be comparable with 
similar measures used by other companies. All other financial information relating to the Corporation in this Prospectus is presented in 
accordance with IFRS and all other financial information relating to BankCard USA in this Prospectus is presented in accordance with 
US-GAAP. 

Investors  should  review  this  information  in  conjunction  with  the  Audited Financial  Statements (as defined herein),  the Interim 
Financial Statements (as defined herein), the audited financial statements of BankCard USA as at and for the years ended December 31, 
2019 and 2018, and the unaudited condensed interim financial statements of BankCard USA as at September 30, 2020 and for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, which  are  included or incorporated by reference in  this  Prospectus. 

In this Prospectus, the defined terms below have the following meanings: 

“Adjusted EBIDTA” is referred to herein as a financial measure that the Corporation (and BankCard USA) defines as earnings before 
certain charges that management considers to be non-operating expenses and which consist of interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, 
stock-based compensation (for which the Corporation (and BankCard USA) includes related fees and taxes), changes in fair value of 
derivatives, transaction and acquisition related expenses, and earn-out settlement losses). 

“Adjusted EBITDA Growth” is defined as the percentage increase in Adjusted EBITDA period over period. 

“Adjusted EBITDA Margin” is defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue, expressed as a percentage. 

“EBITDA” means earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.  

“Recurring Revenues” means transaction fees related to merchant services, first party and third-party software and cloud license and 
consumption fees, managed services, support services, and hosting services on a monthly basis. 

Set out in the table below is the Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation (expressed in millions of United States Dollars) for the Corporation 
and BankCard USA: 

BankCard USA 

LTM  
(September 30, 2020) 

Year-Ended 
December 31, 2019 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2020 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2019 

Net Income $10.1 $7.0 $8.6 $5.5 

Add: 

Provision for Income Taxes $0.1 $0.1 $0.0 $0.1 

Depreciation and Amortization $0.6 $0.6 $0.4 $0.4 

EBITDA $10.8 $7.7 $9.0 $6.0 

EBITDA as a Percentage of Revenue 37.0% 32.5% 38.1% 33.1% 

Total Revenue $29.2 $23.7 $23.6 $18.1 
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The Corporation 

LTM  
(September 30, 2020) 

Year-Ended 
December 31, 2019 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2020 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2019 

Net Income (Loss) ($16.0) ($7.4) ($11.9) ($3.3) 

Add: 

Income Tax Expense $0.2 $0.1 $0.2 $0.1 

Interest Expense $3.7 $1.6 $3.1 $1.0 

Depreciation  $0.8 $0.7 $0.6 $0.5 

Amortization $4.0 $2.4 $3.1 $1.5 

EBITDA ($7.3) ($2.6) ($4.9) ($0.2) 

Add:

Foreign Exchange 
$0.0 ($0.2) $0.5 $0.3 

Stock Based Compensation $0.7 $0.3 $0.5 $0.1 

Earn Out Settlement $2.0 $1.6 $0.4 - 

Transaction and Acquisition Related Expenses $2.4 $2.1 $1.0 $0.7 

Grant Income ($0.1) - ($0.1) - 

Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liability $8.4 - $8.4 - 

Adjusted EBITDA $6.1 $1.2 $5.8 $0.9 

Adjusted EBITDA as a Percentage of Revenue 14.5% 6.5% 15.8% 6.9% 

Total Revenue $42.1 $18.5 $36.7 $13.1 

INDUSTRY DATA 

This Prospectus Supplement includes industry data and other statistical information that we have obtained from independent industry 
publications, government publications, market research reports and other published independent sources. Some data is also based on our 
good faith estimates, which are derived from our internal surveys. Such publications and reports generally state that the information 
contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable. Although management of the Corporation believes these 
publications and reports to be reliable, we have not independently verified any of the data or other statistical information contained 
therein, nor have we ascertained the underlying economic or other assumptions relied upon by these sources and cannot and do not 
provide any representation or assurance as to the accuracy or completeness of the information or data, or appropriateness of the 
information or data for any particular analytic purpose and, accordingly, disclaim any liability in relation to such information and data. 
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The Corporation have no intention and undertake no obligation to update or revise any information or data, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise. 

CURRENCY AND EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION 

In this Prospectus Supplement, Canadian dollars are referred to as “Canadian dollars” or “C$” and United States dollars are referred to 
as “United States dollars” or “US$”. 

On March 30, 2021, the daily exchange rate as quoted by the Bank of Canada was US$1.00=C$1.2631 or C$1.00=US$0.7917.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT 

In the opinion of Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP, counsel to the Corporation, and Wildeboer Dellelce LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, 
based on the current provisions of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the regulations thereunder (collectively the “Tax Act”), in force as of 
the date hereof, the Offered Subscription Receipts and the Common Share issuable pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipt, if 
issued on the date hereof, would be qualified investments for trusts governed by a registered retirement savings plan, registered retirement 
income fund, registered education savings plan, registered disability savings plan, tax-free savings account (collectively referred to as 
“Registered Plans”) or deferred profit sharing plan (“DPSP”), provided that,  

(a) in the case of the Common Shares, such shares are listed on a “designated stock exchange” as defined in the Tax Act 
(which currently includes Tiers 1 and 2 the TSXV) or the Corporation qualifies as a “public corporation”, as defined in the 
Tax Act, and  

(b) in the case of the Offered Subscription Receipts either:  

(i) the Offered Subscription Receipts are listed on a designated stock exchange, or  

(ii) the Common Shares are qualified investments as described in (a) above and neither the Corporation, nor any person 
with whom the Corporation does not deal at arm’s length, is an annuitant, a beneficiary, an employer or a subscriber 
under or a holder of such Registered Plan or DPSP. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the holder of, or annuitant or subscriber under, a Registered Plan (the “Controlling Individual”) will 
be subject to a penalty tax in respect of Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Common Shares issuable upon exchange of the 
Offered Subscription Receipts) held in the Registered Plan if such securities are a prohibited investment for the particular Registered 
Plan. An Offered Subscription Receipt and the Common Share issuable pursuant to the terms of the Offered Subscription Receipt 
generally will be a “prohibited investment” for a Registered Plan if the Controlling Individual does not deal at arm’s length with the 
Corporation for the purposes of the Tax Act or the Controlling Individual has a “significant interest” (as defined in subsection 207.01(4) 
of the Tax Act) in the Corporation. In addition, the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the terms of the Offered Subscription Receipts 
will generally not be a “prohibited investment” if such securities are “excluded property” (as defined in the Tax Act) for the Registered 
Plan. 

Persons who intend to hold Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the terms of the 
Offered Subscription Receipts) in a Registered Plan or DPSP should consult their own tax advisors in regard to the application 
of these rules in their particular circumstances.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

This Prospectus Supplement is deemed to be incorporated by reference into the Base Shelf Prospectus solely for the purpose of the 
Offering. 

As of the date hereof, the following documents, filed with the various securities commissions or similar authorities in each of the 
provinces and territories of Canada, are specifically incorporated by reference into the Base Shelf Prospectus for purposes of the 
Offering, and form an integral part of the Prospectus: 

1. the Annual Information Form;  

2. the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation as at, and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 
(the “Audited Financial Statements”), the notes thereto and the independent auditors’ report thereon, together with the related 
management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation; 

3. the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Corporation for the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2020 and 2019 (the “Interim Financial Statements”), and the notes thereto, together with the related MD&A 
of the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation; 

4. the material change report of the Corporation dated January 10, 2020 in respect of the acquisition by the Corporation of Menlo 
Technologies, Inc. (“Menlo”); 

5. the material change report of the Corporation dated March 5, 2020 in respect of the extension of the Corporation’s existing 
US$5.2 million loan with Gideon, LLC; 

6. the material change report of the Corporation dated June 25, 2020 announcing the June 2020 Bought Deal (as defined herein); 

7. the material change report of the Corporation dated June 30, 2020 announcing the completion of the June 2020 Bought Deal; 

8. the material change report of the Corporation dated July 7, 2020 announcing the issuance of Common Shares in connection 
with the conversion of certain convertible debentures and pursuant to the achievement of performance earn-outs; 

9. the material change report of the Corporation dated August 19, 2020 announcing the completion of its debt consolidation 
initiatives pursuant to the terms of a loan agreement entered into between the Corporation, certain material subsidiaries of the 
Corporation, as guarantors, and a leading Canadian Schedule I Chartered Bank; 

10. the material change report of the Corporation dated September 1, 2020 announcing the settlement of an existing note originally 
issued to the vendors of Corporate Renaissance Group Inc. (“CRG”) in June, 2019; 

11. the material change report of the Corporation dated March 25, 2021 announcing the completion of the March 2021 Private 
Placement (as defined herein); 

12. the re-filed business acquisition report dated June 11, 2020 in respect of the acquisition by the Corporation of CRG; 

13. the management information circular of the Corporation dated June 17, 2020 (the “Circular”), prepared in connection with the 
annual and special meeting of shareholders of the Corporation held on July 23, 2020; and 

14. the template version of the indicative term sheet for the Offering dated March 29, 2021. 

All material change reports (excluding confidential material change reports), annual information forms, annual financial statements and 
the auditors’ report thereon and related MD&A, interim financial statements and related MD&A, information circulars, business 
acquisition reports, any news release issued by the Corporation that specifically states it is to be incorporated by reference and any other 
documents as may be required to be incorporated by reference into the Base Shelf Prospectus for purposes of the Offering under 
applicable Canadian securities laws which are filed by the Corporation with a securities commission or any similar authority in Canada 
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after the date of this Prospectus Supplement and prior to termination of the distribution of the Offered Subscription Receipts pursuant 
to the Prospectus, shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into the Base Shelf Prospectus for purposes of the Offering. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any statement contained in this Prospectus Supplement or in a document 
incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in the Base Shelf Prospectus shall be deemed to be modified or 
superseded, for purposes of the Offering, to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other currently or 
subsequently filed document that is later dated and incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in the Base Shelf 
Prospectus modifies or supersedes such prior statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has 
modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or 
supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement shall not be deemed an admission for any purposes that the 
modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an 
omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of 
the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded shall thereafter neither constitute, nor be 
deemed to constitute, a part of the Prospectus, except as so modified or superseded. 

MARKETING MATERIALS 

Any “marketing materials” (as defined in National Instrument 41-101 — General Prospectus Requirements (“NI 41-101”)) are not part 
of this Prospectus Supplement or the Base Shelf Prospectus to the extent that the contents thereof have been modified or superseded by 
a statement contained in this Prospectus Supplement or any amendment hereof. Any “template version” (as defined in NI 41-101) filed 
with the securities commission or similar authority in each of the provinces and territories of Canada in connection with the Offering 
after the date hereof but prior to the termination of the distribution of the Offered Subscription Receipts under this Prospectus 
Supplement (including any amendments to, or an amended version of, any template version of marketing materials) is deemed to be 
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus Supplement and in the Base Shelf Prospectus. 

THE CORPORATION 

The Corporation was established as a strategic Microsoft National Solution Provider in the U.S. and has strong brand identity within 
Microsoft and its partner ecosystem. In addition, Quisitive’s CEO, Michael Reinhart, and Quisitive’s leadership team have strong 
executive Microsoft relationships as well as acquisition target executive relationships. The Corporation’s brand identity along with these 
senior executive relationships is considered a key pillar to the consolidation and scale partnership development.  The Corporation is a 
full-service digital technology consulting firm whose mission is to acquire and integrate companies to become the leading provider of 
Microsoft professional services in North America. 

The Corporation is a premier, global Microsoft partner that harnesses the Microsoft platform and complementary technologies, including 
custom solutions and first-party offerings, to generate meaningful impact for enterprise customers. The Corporation’s Cloud Solutions 
business focuses on helping enterprises move, operate, and innovate in the three Microsoft clouds.  

The Corporation is comprised of experts in technology who use cloud-based solutions to drive business value. With a long history and 
depth of knowledge in Microsoft products, as well as a commitment to continual learning and achievement of advanced specializations, 
the Corporation is positioned to provide high quality technical expertise to help achieve its customer’s goals.  

The Corporation’s Cloud Solutions business encompasses infrastructure, data and analytics, digital workplace, application development, 
and business applications services that apply the benefits of technology to empower enterprise customers.  As a complement to its Cloud 
Solutions services, the Corporation also develops complete first-party business applications, including emPerform, to better serve its 
customers and their business goals.  

The LedgerPay platform is an innovative cloud-based payment processing and payments intelligence and data insights provider whose 
solutions are designed to optimize a merchant’s payment processing and consumer engagement operations. LedgerPay is a scalable 
service and the only payment processing platform solution leveraging the Microsoft Azure cloud to deliver a full suite of acquiring, 
issuing, and processing services with unmatched speed, security, and access to customer’s data. Quisitive’s Payments Solutions business 



S-14 

provides payment processing services to both merchants and ISOs. It’s flagship product platform LedgerPay is a cloud-based data 
insights and Payments IntelligenceTM suite that turns everyday transaction data into customer loyalty for merchants.  

LedgerPay expects to generate revenue through payment processing, consumer data, consumer engagement and consumer activation 
transaction fees. LedgerPay’s payments intelligence solution captures and analyzes rich data from every card-based transaction. Its 
engagement engine transforms the merchant’s ability to deliver personalized promotions based on an individual’s historic buying 
behaviors and category preferences to shoppers at the point of purchase in real-time. By seamlessly integrating payments, AI-based 
predictive analytics, and targeted push marketing operations in a single cloud-based solution, LedgerPay’s payments intelligence service 
will have the potential to dramatically increase a merchant’s customer engagement, loyalty, and revenue. See “Cautionary Statement 
Regarding Forward-Looking Information”. 

As a digital technology consulting company, the Corporation is strategically positioned to help companies through their digital 
transformation journey. The foundation of the Corporation’s approach, and the principal products and services the Corporation delivers, 
are guided by its focused mission and strategy.  

More detailed information regarding the business of the Corporation as well as its operations and assets can be found in the Base Shelf 
Prospectus, the Annual Information Form and other documents incorporated by reference herein, as supplemented by the disclosure 
herein. See “Documents Incorporated by Reference”. 

BANKCARD USA ACQUISITION 

The Acquisition 

On March 29, 2021, the Corporation announced that it had entered into a definitive stock purchase agreement (the “BankCard USA 
Stock Purchase Agreement”) with Quisitive Payment Solutions, Inc. (“AcquireCo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, 
and the vendors (the “Vendors”) of Bankcard USA Merchant Services, Inc. (“BankCard USA”) to acquire all of the issued and 
outstanding shares of BankCard USA (the “BankCard USA Acquisition”). The consideration for the acquired shares of BankCard 
USA will consist of the following on closing: (i) US$100,000,000 in cash, payable to the Vendors, subject to customary adjustments as 
set out in the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Cash Consideration”); and (ii) the issuance to the Vendors of an 
aggregate of 50,000,000 Common Shares (the “Share Consideration”). The Common Shares comprising the Share Consideration shall 
be subject to a contractual restriction on resale for 24 months, with 25% of the number of Common Shares issued on closing being 
released every six months following the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition. The Corporation has also agreed, subject to 
certain conditions, to provide the Vendors with registration rights with respect to their Common Shares. 

The Vendors may also be entitled to additional contingent consideration in the form of a performance earn-out if BankCard USA 
achieves certain financial thresholds during the two-year period following the closing of the BankCard USA Acquisition. The amount 
of the earn-out is a maximum of US$20,000,000 payable 50% in cash and 50% in Common Shares, provided that the Corporation shall 
not issue any additional Common Shares to any of the Vendors pursuant to the provisions of the BankCard USA Stock Purchase 
Agreement to the extent that after giving effect to such issuance such Vendor, alone or together with any of its affiliates and persons 
acting jointly or in concert with such Vendor and its affiliates, would beneficially own in excess of 9.9% of the number of Common 
Shares outstanding immediately after giving effect to such issuance; in which case the Corporation shall pay to such Vendor(s) the 
balance of any contingent installment amount in cash in lieu of Common Shares. 

The BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement contains customary representations and warranties of BankCard USA and the Vendors 
(on a joint and several basis), on the one hand, and the Corporation and AcquireCo, on the other hand, which are typical for transactions 
of this size, nature and complexity negotiated between sophisticated purchasers and vendors acting at arm’s length, including 
representations by BankCard USA in connection with matters such as payment processing and age verification matters, intellectual 
property, assets, contracts, insurance, liabilities, compliance with laws, environmental matters, anti-corruption matters, and other 
customary industry representations in respect of the business of BankCard USA. Such representations and warranties will survive for a 
period of 12 months following the Transaction Closing Date, however (i) certain fundamental representations and warranties (including, 
but not limited to, matters regarding: (a) in respect of the Vendors, organization, standing and power, execution, delivery and 
enforceability, no conflicts and no consents, purchased stock, and brokers; (b) in respect of BankCard USA, organization, standing and 
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power, purchased stock and dividends, ownership, authority, execution, delivery and enforceability, intellectual property, taxes, and 
brokers; and (c) in respect of the Corporation, organization, standing and power, execution, delivery, and enforceability, no conflicts 
and no consents, securities act, brokers, and capitalization, which will survive for a period of 10 years, other than the representations 
and warranties of BankCard USA regarding intellectual property, tax matters, employee benefit plans and environmental compliance 
which shall survive until 60 days after the relevant limitation periods have expired.  

The BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement also contains indemnities and other protections in favour of the Corporation, AcquireCo, 
the Vendors and BankCard USA that are customary for arm’s length transactions of similar size, nature and complexity, including, but 
not limited to, indemnification by BankCard USA for breaches by it of its covenants, representations and warranties and for tax matters. 

The Transaction Closing is also subject to certain conditions for the benefit of the Corporation, including, among others, (i) the financings 
contemplated by the New Loan Agreement (as defined herein) and the engagement letter between the Corporation and the Joint 
Bookrunners in respect of this Offering shall have been provided on substantially the terms and conditions specified in such agreements 
or from other financing sources as contemplated by the terms of the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement; (ii) BankCard USA 
shall have received the consent of certain counterparties under operational agreements with respect to the change of control of BankCard 
USA; (iii) the TSXV shall have approved the closing of the transactions contemplated by the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement; 
and (iv) other customary conditions and deliverables. 

The Transaction Closing is expected to occur in the second quarter of calendar 2021, subject to receipt of all regulatory approvals and 
third-party consents, including the approval of the TSXV, and satisfaction of customary closing conditions. There is no assurance that 
the BankCard USA Acquisition will be consummated. See “Risk Factors – Risks Associated with the BankCard USA Acquisition”.  

The BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement can be terminated by either the Vendors or AcquireCo in certain situations, including, 
but not limited to, (i) the Transaction Closing not occurring prior to June 30, 2021; (ii) in the event that any order of a governmental 
entity restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the transactions contemplated by the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement 
shall have become final and non-appealable, through no failure, delay, fault of or breach by the terminating party; (iii) a representation 
or warranty of the other party being untrue or incorrect or the other party being in default in any material respect of any of its covenants 
or obligations such that, in each case, certain closing conditions for the benefit of such terminating party are incapable of being satisfied; 
and (iv) by mutual written consent of the parties. 

In connection with the issuance of the Share Consideration on the Transaction Closing Date, the Corporation intends to enter into a 
registration rights agreement with each of the Vendors that will provide certain demand registration and piggy-back registration rights 
in favour of the Vendors which will entitle the Vendors, in certain circumstances, to cause the Corporation to arrange for the sale of 
Common Shares held by the Vendors pursuant to a public offering undertaken by a prospectus, or permit the Vendors to include Common 
Shares that are held by the Vendors to be included in a public offering undertaken by a prospectus required to be filed by the Corporation 
by another selling securityholder of the Corporation exercising demand registration rights. 

The BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Delaware. 

The description herein of the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement is a summary only of the material terms and conditions thereof 
and does not purport to be complete. Reference should be made to the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement and the full text of 
its provisions for a complete description thereof, which will be available under the Corporation’s issuer profile on SEDAR at 
www.sedar.com. 
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General Description of the Business of BankCard USA 

Established in 2004, BankCard USA is a leading Independent Sales Organization/Merchant Services Provider (“ISO/MSP”) that 
provides a complete, all-in-one comprehensive suite of payment processing products and services to merchants located in the United 
States. As a registered and full-acquiring ISO/MSP, BankCard USA: 

 is an authorized liaison between merchants and banks; 

 provides a diverse range of scalable processing solutions for credit and debit accounts; 

 provides payment processing services, and complementary support services, with recurring revenue that supports high growth 
and drives favorable margins; 

 through existing relationships with banks and other industry operators, can accommodate an increase in merchants, transactions, 
and volume at minimal added variable cost; 

 has a payment processing solution that offers credit card processing products and services for new and existing businesses, 
enabling them to accept payments: (i) online through a consumer facing payment gateway; (ii) in store with a credit card 
terminal (with both point-of sale countertop and wireless options); (iii) over the phone via a merchant-facing virtual terminal; 
or (iv) on the go using a portable mobile credit card processing app; 

 has developed the expertise, resources, and infrastructure to provide merchant processing services to a diversified pool of 
merchants and industries, including underserved markets such as regulated and online products; 

 generates transaction-based service fees from its merchant accounts, which vary depending on the particular purchase, industry, 
financial condition, and card acceptance method of the merchant. Processing fees are settled monthly over the life of each 
account. As BankCard USA’s clients generate more sales, BankCard USA aggregates larger fees and increased processing 
volumes; 

 has a large U.S.-based sales force which consists of both inside employees and outside independent contractors. BankCard 
USA’s sales representatives are offered a balanced commission structure commonly between 15% to 80%. Sales commissions 
are based on a variety of factors, including the individual representative’s involvement with account set-up, customer support, 
and the account’s size or risk factors. BankCard USA currently has 23 sales representatives and over 70 sales agents. 
Approximately 80% of sales volume is generated by a cost-effective, multi-channel sales force; 

 has three bank identification numbers (BINs) / Interbank Card Association Numbers (ICAs) (which is how a credit card 
provider delineates which financial institution transactions, data and/or information belongs) two of which are dedicated and 
portable. BankCard USA is of the view that this offers it a distinct advantage by providing control over how BankCard USA’s 
portfolios are grown and managed, enabling it to choose processors that best fit its and its merchants’ needs; 

 offers a suite of complementary services, including: (i) risk management and fraud detection through the daily monitoring of 
transactions; (ii) payment card industry (PCI) data security compliance oversight; (iii) software-as-a-service age checking 
verification of 90% of customers without the requirement to upload photo identification; (iv) chargeback assistance in 
connection with consumer-merchant disputes; (v) dedicated 24/7 customer support services; and (vi) short-term merchant cash 
advances. 

Acquisition Rationale 

The Corporation has a successful track record of integration of accretive acquisitions and believes that the proposed BankCard USA 
Acquisition will transform the Corporation into an emerging global payments and cloud solutions company. 
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Operational Synergies 

Management of the Corporation believes there is a strong strategic rationale for the BankCard USA Acquisition. The Corporation seeks 
to establish itself as a high-growth payment technology company with a strong base of contracted revenue, creating a leading cloud 
payment provider that will serve as a catalyst to unlock the Corporation’s LedgerPay division’s growth potential. 

The LedgerPay service is an innovative payment processing and payments intelligence and data insights provider whose solutions are 
designed to optimize a merchant’s payment processing and consumer engagement operations. LedgerPay is a scalable service and the 
only payment processing platform solution leveraging the Microsoft Azure cloud to deliver a full suite of acquiring, issuing, and 
processing services with unmatched speed, security, and access to customer data. BankCard USA provides LedgerPay with a significant 
customer base for launch and is expected to help drive adoption with enterprise merchants on the LedgerPay platform. 

LedgerPay expects to generate revenue through payment processing, consumer data, consumer engagement and consumer activation 
transaction fees. LedgerPay’s payments intelligence solution captures and analyzes rich data from every card-based transaction. Its 
engagement engine transforms the merchant’s ability to deliver personalized promotions based on an individual’s historic buying 
behaviors and category preferences to shoppers at the point of purchase in real-time. By seamlessly integrating payments, AI-based 
predictive analytics, and targeted push marketing operations in a single cloud-based solution, management believes that LedgerPay’s 
payments intelligence service will have the potential to dramatically increase a merchant’s customer engagement, loyalty, and revenue. 
See “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information”. 

The Corporation is of the view that LedgerPay is well positioned to disrupt the traditional payment processing value chain through the 
deployment of its payment intelligence platform, cloud enabled payment processing, leveraging Quisitive and Microsoft‘s enterprise 
customers, and accelerating inorganic growth through the acquisition of key businesses that augment its core offerings to build scale. 

More detailed information regarding the business of LedgerPay can be found in the Base Shelf Prospectus, the Annual Information Form 
and other documents incorporated by reference herein, as supplemented by the disclosure herein. See “Documents Incorporated by 
Reference”. 

Cost Synergies 

Management of the Corporation has identified the following potential synergies that it expects to realize following the completion of 
the proposed BankCard USA Acquisition: (i) migration of certain BankCard USA clients to LedgerPay resulting in synergistic net 
revenue growth; (ii) additional cost synergies gained from operational costs savings from using the Corporation’s current suppliers; and 
(iii) cross-selling opportunities by selling LedgerPay’s data analytics platform and tools to BankCard USA clients. 

Financial Highlights 

Management of the Corporation believes the BankCard USA Acquisition is financially compelling and conservatively structured based 
on, among other factors, BankCard USA’s management team’s proven track record of growth driven by a high-quality, diverse portfolio. 

Over the 12-month period ended September 30, 2020, the pro-forma consolidated revenue of the Corporation and BankCard USA was 
approximately US$71 million (excluding potential synergies, the proposed Mazik Acquisition, and the calendar year impact of Menlo), 
with approximately 50% monthly recurring revenue, 45% gross margin and 24% Adjusted EBITDA Margin. The Corporation’s long-
term objective is to grow revenues to US$250 million and expects the BankCard USA Acquisition (and Mazik Acquisition) to further 
support the Corporation’s 15% per year organic growth goal. Following completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition, the Corporation 
will have over 360 employees. See “Non-IFRS Measures”, “Additional Recent Developments – Proposed Acquisition of Mazik”, “Risk 
Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information”. 

The Corporation believes BankCard USA’s transaction-based revenue model has significant monthly recurring revenue, and strong and 
growing EBIDTA margin. Over the 12 months ended September 30, 2020, BankCard USA collected fees on approximately US$3 billion 
in processing volume representing approximately 31% growth year-over-year (processing volume and growth based on a March, 2021 
Nilson report), revenues of approximately US$29 million with Adjusted EBITDA of approximately US$11 million.  The addition of 
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BankCard USA is expected to provide a three-year pro-forma compounded annual revenue growth rate of 50%, and a strong cash flow 
profile to support future growth and balance sheet flexibility with pro forma Adjusted EBITDA of US$17 million. Pro-forma revenue 
and Adjusted EBITDA figures are further illustrated in the graphic below. See “Non-IFRS Measures” and “Cautionary Statement 
Regarding Forward-Looking Information”. 

Notes:  
(1) Last 12-month financial metrics ended September 30, 2020, including nine-months of Menlo’s revenues and EBITDA, but excluding synergies and the proposed 
Mazik Acquisition. See “Additional Recent Developments”, “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information”. 
(2) Pro-forma includes the Corporation’s financial figures reported in IFRS and BankCard USA’s financial figures reported in US GAAP. See “Non-IFRS Measures”. 

Financing of the Transaction 

The Corporation intends to finance the Cash Consideration payable at the Transaction Closing from: 

1. approximately C$47,094,000 from the Net Proceeds (or approximately C$54,158,100 if the Over-Allotment Option is 
exercised in full);  

2. US$50,000,000 from the Increased Term Loan (as defined herein) pursuant to the terms of the New Loan Agreement, subject 
to reduction if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in whole or in part; 

3. approximately C$4,630,000 from the net proceeds from the Concurrent Private Placement; and 
4. the balance with cash currently on hand.  

The US$50 million of new debt to fund a portion of Cash Consideration is consistent with the Corporation’s long-term debt / Adjusted 
EBITDA target of 2.5x to 3x. See “Use of Proceeds”, “Additional Recent Developments – New Loan Agreement”, Risk Factors – Risks 
Associated with the BankCard USA Acquisition”. 

The draw down under the Increased Term Loan and the exchange of the Offered Subscription Receipts for Common Shares are cross 
conditional and conditional upon the closing of the BankCard USA Acquisition. 

ADDITIONAL RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

June 2020 Bought Deal 

On June 26, 2020, the Corporation completed a bought deal offering of an aggregate of 21,333,405 units of the Corporation (“June 
2020 Units”) at an issue price of C$0.75 per June 2020 Unit for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately C$16,000,000 (the “June 
2020 Bought Deal”). Each June 2020 Unit consisted of one Common Share and one-half one Common Share purchase warrant (each 
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whole such warrant, a “June 2020 Warrant”). Each June 2020 Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one Common Share at a 
price of $1.10 until June 26, 2022, provided however that if the daily volume weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on 
the TSXV for any 10 consecutive days exceeds C$1.60, the Corporation may, upon providing written notice to the holders of the June 
2020 Warrants within five trading days following the end of such 10 day period, accelerate the expiry date of the June 2020 Warrants 
to the date that is 30 days following the date of such written notice. The June 2020 Bought Deal was conducted by a syndicate of 
underwriters co-lead by Eight Capital and Scotia Capital Inc., and including Clarus Securities Inc., Raymond James Ltd., Echelon 
Wealth Partners Inc., and Beacon Securities Limited (collectively, the “June 2020 Underwriters”). In connection with the June 2020 
Bought Deal, the June 2020 Underwriters received a cash commission of approximately C$858,940, and an aggregate of 1,145,951 
compensation options, with each compensation option entitling the June 2020 Underwriters to purchase one June 2020 Unit at a price 
of C$0.75 until June 26, 2022.  

Debt Consolidation 

On August 10, 2020, the Corporation announced the completion of its debt consolidation initiatives pursuant to the terms of a loan 
agreement entered into between the Corporation, certain material subsidiaries of the Corporation, as guarantors, and a leading Canadian 
Schedule I Chartered Bank (the “Bank”) dated August 10, 2020 (the “Loan Agreement”). At the time the Loan Agreement was entered 
into, it provided for a five-year term loan of US$16,133,000 (the “Term Loan”) and a revolving operating facility of up to US$5,000,000 
(the “Operating Line”), with all debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Corporation and guarantors under the Term Loan and Operating 
Line collaterally secured by a first-ranking security interest in all of the present and future undertaking, property and assets of the 
Corporation and its material subsidiaries. The proceeds from the Term Loan were used to refinance and retire the existing debt 
obligations of the Corporation with Gideon, LLC and the lenders that advanced funds to the Corporation in 2019 in connection with the 
acquisitions of CRG and Menlo. On March 29, 2021, the Corporation entered into the New Loan Agreement in connection with the 
proposed BankCard USA Acquisition. See “Additional Recent Developments – New Loan Agreement”, “Cautionary Statement 
Regarding Forward-Looking Information” and “Risk Factors – Risks Associated with Future Acquisitions”. 

Strategic Private Placement 

On March 22, 2021, FAX purchased from the Corporation 16,000,000 Common Shares from treasury at a price of C$1.25 per Common 
Share for gross proceeds of C$20,000,000 (the “March 2021 Private Placement”). On closing of the March 2021 Private Placement, 
FAX held approximately 7.6% of the total issued and outstanding Common Shares. Pursuant to the terms of an investor rights agreement 
and a registration rights agreement entered into between the Corporation and FAX on completion of the March 2021 Private Placement, 
the Corporation granted to FAX, subject to certain conditions, the right to nominate one member to the board of directors of the 
Corporation (the “Board”), a pre-emptive right to participate in future offerings of securities of the Corporation, and registration rights 
with respect to its Common Shares. FAX also agreed to a lock-up on its Common Shares for a period of 12 months. 

Proposed Acquisition of Mazik  

On March 22, 2021, the Corporation entered into a definitive share purchase agreement to acquire all of the issued and outstanding 
shares (the “Mazik Shares”) of Mazik Global Inc. (“Mazik”), an independent software vendor that helps companies deploy Microsoft 
CRM (customer relationship management), Cloud, and ERP (enterprise resource planning) solutions to the healthcare, education, and 
manufacturing industries based near Chicago, Illinois (the “Mazik Acquisition”), in consideration for: (i) US$7,000,000 in cash payable 
to the vendors of Mazik on closing (the “Mazik Vendors”); and (ii) the issuance of an aggregate of 6,254,020 Common Shares to the 
Mazik Vendors. The Mazik Vendors may also be entitled to additional contingent consideration in the form of a performance earn-out 
if Mazik achieves certain financial thresholds during the three (3) year period following the closing of the transaction. The amount of 
the earn-out is a base maximum of US$6,000,000 payable in cash, plus an additional incentive amount of US$2,000,000 based on 
exceeding recurring revenue growth targets, payable in cash or Common Shares at the option of the Corporation. Completion of the 
Mazik Acquisition is subject to a number of standard conditions, including receipt of all regulatory approvals and the acceptance of the 
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TSXV. The Mazik Acquisition is expected to close on or about April 1, 2021. See “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking 
Information” and “Risk Factors – Risks Associated with Future Acquisitions”. 

New Loan Agreement 

On March 29, 2021, in connection with the announcement of the BankCard USA Acquisition, the Corporation entered into a loan 
agreement (the “New Loan Agreement”) with the Bank and a syndicate of Canadian Schedule I Chartered Banks party thereto to 
increase the maximum commitment amount under the Term Loan from US$15,662,000 to US$65,662,000 (the “Increased Term 
Loan”). The New Loan Agreement also provides that the Operating Line will remain in place. The New Loan Agreement is intended to 
replace the existing Loan Agreement on the Closing Date (as such term is defined in the New Loan Agreement), which allows the 
Corporation to draw down the amount of the Increased Term Loan. The Corporation expects to use the US$50,000,000 in proceeds 
secured from the Increased Term Loan to partially fund the Cash Consideration of the BankCard USA Acquisition. See “The BankCard 
USA Acquisition – Financing of the Transaction” and “Risk Factors – Risks Associated with the BankCard USA Acquisition – BankCard 
USA Acquisition will Increase the Corporation’s Debt Position.”   

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The estimated Net Proceeds to be received by the Corporation from the Offering (excluding any Earned Interest), and the estimated net 
proceeds to be received by the Corporation from the Concurrent Private Placement, assuming the satisfaction of the Escrow Release 
Conditions, the release of the Escrowed Funds and the Over-Allotment Option not being exercised, will amount to approximately 
C$51,224,000, after deducting the Underwriters’ Commission of C$3,006,000, the 3.5% capital commitment fee payable to FAX of 
C$175,000, the 3.5% finder’s fee payable to an eligible finder pursuant to the Concurrent Private Placement of C$175,000, and estimated 
expenses of the Offering and Concurrent Private Placement of approximately C$500,000 and C$20,000, respectively. If the Over-
Allotment Option is exercised in full, then the Net Proceeds (excluding any Earned Interest), and the estimated net proceeds to be 
received by the Corporation from the Concurrent Private Placement, assuming the satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions and 
release of the Escrowed Funds, will amount to approximately C$58,288,100, after deducting the Underwriters’ Commission of 
C$3,456,900 and estimated expenses of the Offering  and the and Concurrent Private Placement of approximately C$500,000 and 
C$20,000, respectively. 

The Escrowed Funds will be held by the Subscription Receipt Agent in escrow pending satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow Release 
Conditions. 

The Escrowed Funds, being gross proceeds from the sale of the Offered Subscription Receipts, the gross proceeds from the sale of the 
Private Placement Subscription Receipts, less 50% of the Underwriters’ Commission and the Underwriters’ expenses, and all interest 
earned thereon, will be held in escrow by the Subscription Receipt Agent on behalf of the holders of Subscription Receipts , until the 
earlier of (i) the delivery of an Escrow Release Notice and (ii) the occurrence of a Termination Event. See “Description of the 
Subscription Receipts”. 

Provided that an Escrow Release Notice is delivered prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event, the Escrowed Funds (together with 
any remaining Earned Interest), less any amount required to satisfy the remainder of the Underwriters’ Commission and any additional 
expenses of the Underwriters and the fees and expenses of the Subscription Receipt Agent, will be released by the Subscription Receipt 
Agent to or as directed by the Corporation and will be used to fund a portion of the cash purchase price of the BankCard USA Acquisition. 
The Corporation intends to finance the remainder of the Cash Consideration with a combination of (i) bank debt, including, by means 
of the Increased Term Loan, which as of the date of this Prospectus Supplement, there was US$15,662,000 outstanding; and (ii) existing 
cash on hand. In addition, the Corporation will issue the Share Consideration to the Vendors at the Transaction Closing. See “Description 
of the Subscription Receipts”, “The BankCard USA Acquisition”, and “Risk Factors”. 

If a Termination Event occurs, the Subscription Receipt Agent will deliver to the holders of Offered Subscription Receipts and Private 
Placement Subscription Receipts, commencing no later than the second business day following the Termination Date, the Subscription 
Receipt Refund Amount and the Deemed Interest. The Subscription Receipt Refund Amount will be paid from the Escrowed Funds, on 
the Termination Date, provided that if the Escrowed Funds are insufficient to cover the full amount of the Subscription Receipt Refund 
Amount and the Deemed Interest, the Corporation will be required, under the Subscription Receipt Agreement, to pay to the holders of 
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Offered Subscription Receipts and Private Placement Subscription Receipts the difference, if any, between the amount of Escrowed 
Funds, and the aggregate of the Subscription Receipt Refund Amount and the Deemed Interest due to the holders of Offered Subscription 
Receipts and Private Placement Subscription Receipts. If any amount of Earned Interest on the Escrowed Funds remains unused after 
the full payment of the Subscription Receipt Refund Amount and the Deemed Interest, it shall be paid by the Subscription Receipt Agent 
to or as directed by the Corporation. See “Description of the Subscription Receipts”. 

Pursuant to the Offering, if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the Corporation will receive additional net proceeds of 
C$7,064,100 after deducting the Underwriters’ Commission in respect of such exercise. The net proceeds from the exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option, if any, will be applied towards the uses set forth above. There is no assurance that the Over-Allotment Option will be 
exercised, in part or in full. 

The above noted proposed use of proceeds represents the Corporation’s intentions with respect to its use of proceeds based on current 
knowledge, planning and expectations of management of the Corporation. Actual expenditures may differ from the estimates set forth 
above. There may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of the net proceeds may be deemed prudent or 
necessary. The actual amount that the Corporation spends in connection with each of the intended uses of proceeds may vary significantly 
from the amounts specified above and will depend on a number of factors, including those referred to under “Risk Factors – Use of 
Proceeds”. 

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION OF THE CORPORATION 

Except as described in the Base Shelf Prospectus, and other than as contemplated pursuant to the Offering, the 2021 Private Placement, 
the BankCard USA Acquisition, the Mazik Acquisition, the Concurrent Private Placement, and the Increased Term Loan, there have not 
been any material changes in the share and loan capitalization of the Corporation since the date of the Interim Financial Statements, 
which are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus Supplement. 

As at September 30, 2020, there were a total of 192,761,158 Common Shares issued and outstanding. As at September 30, 2020, as 
adjusted to give effect to the Offering, the 2021 Private Placement, the BankCard USA Acquisition, the Mazik Acquisition and the 
Concurrent Private Placement, there will be a total of 303,416,151 Common Shares issued and outstanding (308,426,151 Common 
Shares if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full).  

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

Pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of the Underwriting Agreement, the Corporation has agreed to sell, and the 
Underwriters have severally agreed to purchase, on the Closing Date, an aggregate of 33,400,000 Initial Subscription Receipts at a price 
of C$1.50 per Initial Subscription Receipt. 

The closing of the Offering is expected to take place on April 8, 2021, or such other date as the Corporation and the Underwriters may 
agree, but in any event not later than 42 days after the date of this Prospectus Supplement. The obligations of the Underwriters under 
the Underwriting Agreement are several, and not joint, nor joint and several, and may be terminated at their discretion on the basis of 
customary “regulatory out”, “material adverse change out”, “disaster out” and “breach out” termination rights or may also be terminated 
upon the occurrence of certain stated events that would in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriters, operate to prevent, restrict or 
otherwise materially adversely affect or restrict the distribution or trading of the Offered Subscription Receipts or the Common Shares. 
The Underwriters are, however, severally obligated to take up and pay for all of the Initial Subscription Receipts that they have agreed 
to purchase if any of the Initial Subscription Receipts are purchased under the Underwriting Agreement. The terms of the Offering and 
the Offering Price have been determined by negotiation among the Corporation and the Joint Bookrunners with reference to the market 
price of the Common Shares on the TSXV and other factors. 

There is currently no market through which the Offered Subscription Receipts may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell the 
Offered Subscription Receipts purchased under this Prospectus Supplement. The Corporation has applied to have: (i) the Offered 
Subscription Receipts, and (ii) the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts listed on 
the TSXV. Listing is subject to the approval of the TSXV in accordance with its listing requirements and the completion of the Offering 
is conditional upon the listing of the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts on the TSXV. The 
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TSXV has not conditionally approved the Corporation’s listing application and there is no assurance that the TSXV will approve the 
listing application. See “Risk Factors”. 

Subject to certain qualifications and limitations, the Corporation has agreed to indemnify the Underwriters, their respective subsidiaries 
and affiliates, and their respective shareholders, partners, directors, officers, employees and agents against certain liabilities, including, 
without restriction, civil liabilities under Canadian securities legislation, and to contribute to any payments the Underwriters may be 
required to make in respect thereof. 

The Underwriters have been granted the Over-Allotment Option, exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time, and from time to time, on 
or before the Over-Allotment Deadline, to purchase up to an additional 5,010,000 Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts at the Offering 
Price to cover the Underwriters’ over-allocation position, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. The Over-Allotment Option is 
exercisable by the Joint Bookrunners giving notice to the Corporation prior to the Over-Allotment Deadline, which notice shall specify 
the number of Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts to be purchased. The Prospectus qualifies the grant of the Over-Allotment Option 
and the distribution of Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts issuable upon exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. A purchaser who 
acquires Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts forming part of the Underwriters’ over-allocation position acquires those Over-
Allotment Subscription Receipts under the Prospectus, regardless of whether the overallocation position is ultimately filled through the 
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or secondary market purchases. 

In consideration for the services provided by the Underwriters in connection with the Offering, and pursuant to the terms of the 
Underwriting Agreement, the Corporation has agreed to pay the Underwriters the Underwriters’ Commission equal to 6.0% of the gross 
proceeds from the Offering (including any gross proceeds raised on exercise of the Over-Allotment Option). If the Over-Allotment 
Option is exercised in full, the aggregate Underwriters’ Commission payable by the Corporation will be C$3,456,900. The Underwriters’ 
Commission is payable as to 50% on the Closing Date and 50% upon satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions. If the Subscription 
Receipt Refund Amount Payment becomes payable, the Underwriters’ Commission will be the amount payable on the Closing Date 
only. 

The Underwriters propose to offer the Offered Subscription Receipts initially at the Offering Price. After the Underwriters have made a 
reasonable effort to sell all of the Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts, if applicable) at 
the Offering Price, the price at which the Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Over-Allotment Subscription Receipts, if 
applicable) are distributed pursuant to the Prospectus may be decreased and may be further changed from time to time to an amount not 
greater than the Offering Price. Any reduction of the Offering Price will not reduce the net proceeds received by the Corporation. 

In accordance with rules and policy statements of certain Canadian securities regulators, the Underwriters may not, at any time during 
the period of distribution, bid for or purchase Offered Subscription Receipts and/or Common Shares. The foregoing restriction is, 
however, subject to exceptions where the bid or purchase is not made for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active trading in, or 
raising the price of, the Offered Subscription Receipts or the Common Shares, as applicable. These exceptions include a bid or purchase 
permitted under the by-laws and rules of applicable regulatory authorities and the TSXV, including the Universal Market Integrity Rules 
for Canadian Marketplaces, relating to market stabilization and passive market making activities and a bid or purchase made for and on 
behalf of a customer where the order was not solicited during the period of distribution. 

In connection with the Offering, the Underwriters may over-allocate or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market price 
of the Offered Subscription Receipts and/or Common Shares at levels other than those which otherwise might prevail on the open 
market, including: stabilizing transactions; short sales; imposition of penalty bids; and purchases to cover positions created by short 
sales; and syndicate covering transactions. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. Stabilizing transactions 
consist of bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or slowing a decline in the market price of the Offered Subscription 
Receipts and/or Common Shares while the Offering is in progress. The Underwriters must close out any short position by purchasing 
Offered Subscription Receipts and/or Common Shares in the open market. A short position is more likely to be created if the 
Underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the Offered Subscription Receipts and/or Common 
Shares in the open market that could adversely affect investors who purchase the Offered Subscription Receipts in the Offering.  

As a result of these activities, the price of the Offered Subscription Receipts may be higher than the price of the Offered Subscription 
Receipts and/or Common Shares that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be 
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discontinued by the Underwriters at any time. The Underwriters may carry out these transactions on any stock exchange on which the 
Offered Subscription Receipts and/or Common Shares are listed, in the over-the-counter market, or otherwise. 

It is anticipated that the Offered Subscription Receipts will be issued through the book-entry system, registered in the name of CDS or 
its nominee and will be deposited with CDS. Beneficial holders of the Offered Subscription Receipts will receive only a customer 
confirmation from the Underwriters, or another registered dealer who is a CDS participant, and from or through whom a beneficial 
interest in the Offered Subscription Receipt are acquired. If any Offered Subscription Receipts are not able to be issued in the book-
entry system through CDS in advance of the Closing Date for any reason, then those investors or their designated holders will receive 
definitive certificates representing their interest in such Offered Subscription Receipts. 

The Offering is being made in all of the provinces and territories of Canada. In addition, the Underwriters may offer the Offered 
Subscription Receipts outside of Canada in compliance with local securities laws. The Corporation is not making an offer to sell or a 
solicitation of an offer to buy the Offered Subscription Receipts in any jurisdiction where such offer is not permitted. 

The Corporation has agreed in the Underwriting Agreement that, subject to certain exceptions, for a period of 90 days after the Closing 
Date, it shall not (without the Joint Bookrunners’ prior written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld), directly or 
indirectly, issue, sell, offer, grant an option or right in respect of, or otherwise dispose of, or agree to or announce any intention to issue, 
sell, offer, grant an option or right in respect of, or otherwise dispose of any additional Common Shares or securities or other financial 
instruments convertible into or having the right to acquire Common Shares (other than pursuant to: (i) the exchange, transfer, conversion 
or exercise of rights of existing outstanding securities or existing commitments to issue securities on the completion of the BankCard 
USA Acquisition, the Mazik Acquisition, and pursuant to earn-outs payable to the vendors of CRG and Menlo., or any other arm’s 
length acquisition; (ii) the grant of securities or the exercise of securities granted pursuant to the Corporation’s stock and incentive plan; 
(iii) any bona fide transaction with an arm’s length third party whereby the Corporation directly or indirectly acquires shares or assets 
of a business; or (iv) the issuance of securities pursuant to the Offering or the Concurrent Private Placement. 

The Corporation has also agreed pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement to, subject to certain exceptions, cause its directors 
and officers and their respective associates to enter into undertakings in favour of the Joint Bookrunners on or before the Closing Date, 
agreeing not to directly or indirectly, offer, sell, contract to sell, lend, swap, or enter into any other agreement to transfer the economic 
consequences of, or otherwise dispose of or deal with, or publicly announce any intention to offer, sell, contract to sell, grant or sell any 
option to purchase, hypothecate, pledge, transfer, assign, purchase any option or contract to sell, lend, swap, or enter into any agreement 
to transfer the economic consequences of, or otherwise dispose of or deal with, whether through the facilities of a stock exchange, by 
private placement or otherwise, any securities of the Corporation held by them, directly or indirectly, for a period of 90 days from the 
Closing Date without the Joint Bookrunners’ prior written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, other than pursuant 
to a take-over bid or any other similar transaction made generally to all of the shareholders of the Corporation, to permit sales to cover 
tax obligations related to a director’s or officer’s ownership of securities of the Corporation, and to permit transfers by any such person 
to its affiliates for tax or other bona fide tax or estate planning purposes, provided that each transferee shall, as a condition precedent to 
such transfer, agree to enter into a substantially similar undertaking. 

The Corporation has not received conditional approval from the TSXV to list the Offered Subscription Receipts or the Common Shares 
issuable upon conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts to be distributed pursuant to the Prospectus. Listing will be subject to the 
Corporation fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSXV, and the completion of the Offering is conditional upon the listing of 
the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts on the TSXV. See “Risk Factors”. 

The Offered Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares underlying the Offered Subscription Receipts, have not been and will not 
be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or any state securities laws, and accordingly may not be offered or sold within the United 
States, except in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. 
Each Underwriter and each of its United States registered broker-dealer affiliates (“U.S. Affiliates”) has agreed that, except as permitted 
by the Underwriting Agreement (subject to all the agreements, covenants and restrictions set forth therein and exhibits and schedules 
thereto) and as expressly permitted by applicable United States federal and state securities laws, it will not offer or sell the Offered 
Subscription Receipts, as part of its distribution at any time, within the United States and that all offers and sales of the Offered 
Subscription Receipts will otherwise be made outside of the United States in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S under the U.S. 
Securities Act.  
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The Underwriting Agreement (and the exhibits and schedules thereto) enables the Underwriters, through their U.S. Affiliates, to offer 
and resell the Offered Subscription Receipts that they have acquired pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement to certain “qualified 
institutional buyers”, as such term is defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act (“Qualified Institutional Buyers”), in the 
United States, provided such offers and sales are made in accordance with Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state 
securities laws, if available.  Moreover, the Underwriting Agreement provides that the Underwriters will offer and sell the Offered 
Subscription Receipts outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.  

The Offered Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares underlying the Offered Subscription Receipts, offered or sold in the United 
States if any, will be “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the U.S. Securities Act and may only be offered, 
sold, pledged or otherwise transferred to the Corporation, outside the United States in compliance with Regulation S under the U.S. 
Securities Act, pursuant to an available exemption under the U.S. Securities Act, or pursuant to an effective registration statement under 
the U.S. Securities Act, and, in each case, in compliance with applicable local laws or regulations. With respect to Qualified Institutional 
Buyers who are acquiring Offered Subscription Receipts pursuant to Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act, no certificate evidencing 
the Offered Subscription Receipts will be issued to such purchasers under this Prospectus, and registration will be made in the depository 
service of CDS. Qualified Institutional Buyers who are acquiring Offered Subscription Receipts pursuant to Rule 144A under the U.S. 
Securities Act, will receive only a customer confirmation from the Underwriters or other registered dealer who is a CDS participant and 
from or through whom a beneficial interest in the Offered Subscription Receipts is purchased. Offered Subscription Receipts, if any, 
acquired by such Qualified Institutional Buyers may not be deposited into the facilities of the Depositary Trust Company, or a successor 
depository within the United States, or be registered or arranged to be registered, with Cede & Co. or any successor thereto and are 
subject to contractual restrictions on transfer agreed to by or on behalf of such Qualified Institutional Buyers in the United States. 

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, an offer or sale of the Offered Subscription Receipts within the 
United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the Offering) may violate the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities 
Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with exemptions from registration under the U.S. Securities Act and 
applicable state securities laws. 

Concurrent Private Placement 

FAX holds approximately 7.6% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as of the date of this Prospectus, on a non-diluted basis. 
FAX has a contractual right to acquire C$5,000,000 of securities of the Corporation in connection with the Offering. FAX has committed 
to subscribe for 3,333,333 Private Placement Subscription Receipts at the Offering Price pursuant to the Concurrent Private Placement 
(expected to close concurrently with the Offering). 

The TSXV has not conditionally approved the listing of the Private Placement Subscription Receipts (including the underlying Common 
Shares) being purchased under the Concurrent Private Placement. Listing is subject to the approval of the TSXV in accordance with its 
listing requirements. The Corporation will pay to FAX a capital commitment fee equal to 3.5% of the gross proceeds raised pursuant to 
the Concurrent Private Placement, and pay to an eligible finder a 3.5% finder’s fee on the gross proceeds raised pursuant to the 
Concurrent Private Placement.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS 

General

The Subscription Receipts will be issued on the Closing Date pursuant to the Subscription Receipt Agreement. The following is a 
summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the Subscription Receipts. This summary does not purport to be complete and 
is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, reference to the terms of the subscription receipt agreement (the “Subscription Receipt 
Agreement”) between the Corporation, the Subscription Receipt Agent and the Joint Bookrunners (on behalf of the Underwriters) to be 
dated the Closing Date, a copy of which will be filed on the Corporation’s issuer profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 

The Escrowed Funds will be delivered to and held by the Subscription Receipt Agent and deposited in one or more interest bearing trust 
accounts to be maintained by the Subscription Receipt Agent at one or more approved banks as specified in the Subscription Receipt 
Agreement provided that all such investments are “qualified investments”, within the meaning of the Tax Act, for Registered Plans or 
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DPSPs (collectively, the “Permitted Investments”), as directed by the Corporation, pending the earlier to occur of: (i) the satisfaction 
of the Escrow Release Conditions, and (ii) a Termination Event. 

The Subscription Receipt Agreement will contain customary adjustment provisions with respect to the Subscription Receipts and the 
Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Subscription Receipts. 

If each of the Escrow Release Conditions has been satisfied prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event: (i) the Subscription Receipt 
Agent will (a) remit to the Underwriters the remaining 50% of the Underwriters’ Commission and any additional expenses of the 
Underwriters, together with the interest earned thereon; and (b) release to the Corporation the Net Proceeds; and (ii) the holders of 
Subscription Receipts will automatically receive, without payment of additional consideration or further action, one Common Share for 
each Subscription Receipt held, subject to any adjustments in accordance with the Subscription Receipt Agreement. Promptly following 
the Transaction Closing, the Corporation will issue a news release announcing that the Transaction Closing has occurred and specifying 
that the Common Shares have been, or will be, issued, as applicable. 

In the event of a Termination Event, the Corporation will promptly notify the Subscription Receipt Agent, and will promptly issue a 
news release specifying the Termination Event and the Termination Date. Upon the occurrence of a Termination Event, the subscription 
evidenced by each Offered Subscription Receipt will be automatically terminated and cancelled and holders of Offered Subscription 
Receipts shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to the aggregate of the Subscription Receipt Refund Amount and the Deemed 
Interest. The Corporation will be responsible to fund any shortfall by payment to the Subscription Receipt Agent within two business 
days of the Termination Date, where the balance of the Escrowed Funds is insufficient to satisfy the aggregate Subscription Receipt 
Refund Amount plus the Deemed Interest. 

Holders of Subscription Receipts are not Shareholders 

The holders of Offered Subscription Receipts are not shareholders of the Corporation and will not have any voting or pre-emptive rights 
or other rights as shareholders. 

Amendments, Modifications or Alterations 

From time to time while the Subscription Receipts are outstanding, the Corporation and the Subscription Receipt Agent may, without 
the consent of the holders of the Subscription Receipts, amend or supplement the Subscription Receipt Agreement for certain purposes, 
including, but not limited to, making certain changes that, in the opinion of the Subscription Receipt Agent, do not prejudice the rights 
of the holders of Subscription Receipts. The Subscription Receipt Agreement provides for other modifications and alterations thereto 
and to the Subscription Receipts issued thereunder by way of an extraordinary resolution. The term “extraordinary resolution” will be 
defined in the Subscription Receipt Agreement to mean a resolution proposed at a meeting of holders of Subscription Receipts duly 
convened for that purpose at which there are present in person or by proxy holders of Subscription Receipts holding not less than 20% 
of the then outstanding Subscription Receipts and passed by the affirmative votes of holders of Subscription Receipts holding not less 
than two-thirds of the aggregate number of the then outstanding Subscription Receipts represented at the meeting and voted upon such 
resolution. 

Book-Entry, Delivery and Form of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares 

The Offered Subscription Receipts will be issued and delivered electronically through the non-certificated inventory (“NCI”) system of 
CDS in “book-entry” form and must be purchased or transferred through a participant in the depositary services of CDS, except in 
limited circumstances. Unless the book-entry or electronic settlements systems of CDS are terminated, a purchaser acquiring a beneficial 
interest in the Offered Subscription Receipts will not be entitled to receive a certificate for Offered Subscription Receipts. 

Each purchaser acquiring a beneficial interest in an Offered Subscription Receipt will receive a customer confirmation of purchase from 
the Underwriter from whom the beneficial interest is purchased in accordance with the practices and procedures of the selling 
Underwriter. Registration of ownership and transfers of Offered Subscription Receipts may be effected through the book-based system 
administered by CDS or its nominees (with respect to interests of participants of CDS) and on the records of participants of CDS (with 
respect to interests of persons other than participants of CDS). The ability of an owner of a beneficial interest in an Offered Subscription 
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Receipt to pledge such Offered Subscription Receipt or otherwise take action with respect to such owner’s interest in such Offered 
Subscription Receipt (other than through a CDS participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate. 

The Common Shares issued upon the exchange of the Offered Subscription Receipts will be delivered electronically through the NCI 
system of CDS.  On the date upon which the Escrow Release Conditions are satisfied or waived, the Corporation, via its transfer agent, 
will electronically deliver the Common Shares registered to CDS or its nominee. Transfers of ownership of Common Shares in Canada 
must be effected through a CDS participant, which includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies. All rights of 
shareholders who hold Common Shares in CDS must be exercised through, and all payments or other property to which such 
shareholders are entitled, will be made or delivered by CDS or the CDS participant through which the shareholder holds such Common 
Shares. A holder of a Common Share participating in the NCI system will not be entitled to a certificate or other instrument from the 
Corporation or the Corporation’s transfer agent evidencing that person’s interest in or ownership of Common Shares, nor, to the extent 
applicable, will such holder be shown on the records maintained by CDS, except through an agent who is a CDS participant. The ability 
of a beneficial owner of Common Shares to pledge such Common Shares or otherwise take action with respect to such owner’s interest 
in such Common Shares (other than through a CDS participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate. 

Contractual Right of Rescission 

Original purchasers of Offered Subscription Receipts under the Offering will have a contractual right of rescission following the issuance 
of Common Shares to such purchaser upon the conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts to receive the amount paid for the 
Offered Subscription Receipts if this Prospectus Supplement or the Base Shelf Prospectus (including documents incorporated by 
reference) and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to such purchaser, provided that such remedy for 
rescission is exercised within 180 days of the Closing Date and such original purchaser of Offered Subscription Receipts did not purchase 
its Offered Subscription Receipts with knowledge of the misrepresentation. This contractual right of rescission is consistent with the 
statutory right of rescission described under section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario), and is in addition to any other right or remedy 
available to original purchasers under section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario) or otherwise at law. This contractual right of rescission 
is not a right to withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities within two business days as provided in securities legislation in 
certain provinces and territories of Canada and described in the Base Shelf Prospectus. 

PRIOR SALES 

During the 12-month period before the date of this Prospectus Supplement, the Corporation issued the following Common Shares:  

Month of Issue  Type of Security Number Issued Issue/Exercise Price (C$) Reason for Issuance 

March 2021 Common Shares 16,000,000 1.25 March 2021 Private Placement(1)

March 2021 Common Shares 160,000 1.10 Exercise of Warrants

January 2021 Common Shares 108,537 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

January 2021 Common Shares 363,963 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

January 2021 Common Shares 50,758 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

January 2021 Common Shares 49,047 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

January 2021 Common Shares 15,000 0.35 Exercise of Options

January 2021 Common Shares 96,500 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

November 2020 Common Shares 823,855 0.35 Exercise of Warrants

September 2020 Common Shares 55,848 n/a Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

August 2020 Common Shares 12,071,428 0.35
Exercise of Warrants and Settlement of 

Purchase Price Notes

July 2020 Common Shares 500 1.10 Exercise of Warrants

July 2020 Common Shares 5,158,731 0.21 Settlement of Contingent Consideration

July 2020 Common Shares 9,861,441 0.35 Settlement of Contingent Consideration

July 2020 Common Shares 32,025,800 0.20 Conversion of Debentures

June 2020 Common Shares 21,333,405 0.75 June 2020 Bought Deal(2)

June 2020 Common Shares 419,428 0.35 Exercise of Warrants

June 2020 Common Shares 3,750 0.50 Exercise of Warrants

May 2020 Common Shares 15,000 0.35 Exercise of Warrants

May 2020 Common Shares 7,500 0.50 Exercise of Warrants
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Notes: 
(1) See “Additional Recent Developments – Strategic Private Placement”. 
(2) See “Additional Recent Developments – June 2020 Bought Deal”. 

During the 12-month period before the date of this Prospectus Supplement, the Corporation issued the following securities convertible 
into Common Shares:

Month of Issue Type of Security Number Issued  Issue/Exercise Price (C$)  

February 2021 Restricted Stock Units 318,430 n/a 

October 2020 Restricted Stock Units 100,000 n/a 

September 2020 Restricted Stock Units 100,000 n/a 

June 2020 Compensation Options 1,145,951(1) 0.75 

June 2020 Warrants 10,666,703(1) 1.10 

Note: 
(1) See “Additional Recent Developments – June 2020 Bought Deal”. 

TRADING PRICE AND VOLUME 

The Common Shares are listed on the TSXV under the symbol “QUIS”. The following table sets forth the market price ranges and 
trading volumes of the Common Shares on the TSXV over the 12-month period prior to the date of this Prospectus Supplement, as 
reported by the TSXV: 

Period
High
(C$) 

Low
(C$) 

Volume

2021
March1 ....................................................................................................................................................... 1.73 1.13 7,464,465
February .................................................................................................................................................... 1.75 0.97 6,675,911
January ...................................................................................................................................................... 1.12 0.86 5,477,901

2020
December .................................................................................................................................................. 1.13 0.88 3,442,687
November.................................................................................................................................................. 1.02 0.70 7,116,904
October...................................................................................................................................................... 0.85 0.67 2,792,244
September.................................................................................................................................................. 0.81 0.56 3,485,149
August ....................................................................................................................................................... 0.67 0.495 3,343,373
July............................................................................................................................................................ 0.69 0.40 7,587,446
June ........................................................................................................................................................... 0.98 0.61 4,960,850
May ........................................................................................................................................................... 1.26 0.57 3,703,888
April .......................................................................................................................................................... 0.85 0.31 1,332,980
March ........................................................................................................................................................ 0.55 0.265 1,834,585

Note: 
(1) Period from March 1, 2021 to March 30, 2021. 

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS 

In the opinion of Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP, counsel to the Corporation, and Wildeboer Dellelce LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, 
the following summary describes the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations pursuant to the Tax Act generally applicable 
to a holder who acquires Offered Subscription Receipts pursuant to this Offering and Common Shares pursuant to the terms of such 
Offered Subscription Receipts (collectively the “Offered Securities”) and who, for purposes of the Tax Act and at all relevant times: 
(i) holds the Offered Securities as capital property; (ii) deals at arm’s length with the Corporation, the Underwriters and any subsequent 
purchaser of the Offered Securities, and (iii) is not affiliated with the Corporation or the Underwriters (a “Holder”). Generally, the 
Offered Securities will be considered to be capital property to a Holder provided the Holder does not hold the Offered Securities in the 



S-28 

course of carrying on a business of trading or dealing in securities and has not acquired them in one or more transactions considered to 
be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. 

This summary is not applicable to a Holder: (i) that is a “financial institution” (as defined in the Tax Act for the purposes of the mark-
to-market rules); (ii) an interest in which would be a “tax shelter investment” (as defined in the Tax Act); (iii) that is a “specified financial 
institution” (as defined in the Tax Act); (iv) that has elected to report its “Canadian tax results” (as defined in the Tax Act) in a currency 
other than Canadian currency; (v) that has entered into or will enter into a “derivative forward agreement” or “synthetic disposition 
arrangement” (as defined in the Tax Act) with respect to the Offered Securities or (vi) that receives dividends on the Common Shares 
under or as part of a “dividend rental arrangement” (as defined in the Tax Act). Additional considerations, not discussed herein, may be 
applicable to a Holder that is a corporation resident in Canada (for the purpose of the Tax Act) or a corporation that does not deal at 
arm’s length (for purposes of the Tax Act) with a corporation resident in Canada, and that is or becomes as part of a transaction or event 
or series of transactions or events that includes the acquisition of the Offered Securities, controlled by a non-resident person, or group 
of non-resident persons not dealing with each other at arm’s length for the purposes of the foreign affiliate dumping rules in Section 
212.3 of the Tax Act. Any such Holder should consult its own tax advisor with respect to an investment in Offered Securities. 

This summary is based upon (i) the provisions of the Tax Act in force as of the date hereof, (ii) all specific proposals to amend the Tax 
Act that have been publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance prior to the date hereof (the “Proposed 
Amendments”), and (iii) counsel’s understanding of the current published administrative policies and assessing practices of the Canada 
Revenue Agency. This summary assumes the Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form proposed, however, no assurance can 
be given that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form proposed, if at all. This summary is not exhaustive of all possible 
Canadian federal income tax considerations and, except for the Proposed Amendments, does not take into account any changes in the 
law, whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action, nor does it take into account provincial, territorial or foreign tax 
considerations, which may differ significantly from those discussed herein. 

This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice to any 
particular Holder or prospective Holder of Offered Securities, and no representations with respect to the income tax 
consequences to any Holder or prospective Holder are made. Consequently, Holders and prospective Holders of Offered 
Securities should consult their own tax advisors for advice with respect to the tax consequences to them of acquiring Offered 
Securities pursuant to this Offering, having regard to their particular circumstances.

Holders Resident in Canada

The following discussion applies to a holder of Offered Securities who, at all relevant times, for purposes of the Tax Act, is or is 
deemed to be resident in Canada (a “Canadian Holder”). 

Certain Canadian Holders and who might not otherwise be considered to hold their Common Shares as capital property may, in certain 
circumstances, be entitled to have their Common Shares, and every other “Canadian security” (as defined in the Tax Act) owned by 
such holders, treated as capital property by making the irrevocable election permitted by subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act. This election 
is not available in respect of Offered Subscription Receipts. Canadian resident holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding 
this election. 

Taxation of Canadian Holders of Offered Subscription Receipts 

Acquisition of Common Shares Pursuant to the Terms of the Offered Subscription Receipts 

A Canadian Holder of Offered Subscription Receipts will not realize any capital gain or capital loss upon the acquisition of Common 
Shares pursuant to the terms of the Offered Subscription Receipts. 

The cost of a Common Share acquired pursuant to the terms of an Offered Subscription Receipt will generally be equal to the subscription 
price thereof. The adjusted cost base to a Canadian Holder of Common Shares at any time will be determined by averaging the cost of 
such Common Shares with the adjusted cost base immediately before that time of any other Common Shares owned by the Canadian 
Holder as capital property at such time. 
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Other Dispositions of Subscription Receipts 

A disposition or deemed disposition by a Canadian Holder of an Offered Subscription Receipt (other than on the acquisition of a 
Common Share pursuant to the terms of Offered Subscription Receipts as discussed above) will generally result in the Canadian Holder 
realizing a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition exceed (or are less than) the aggregate 
of the adjusted cost base to the Canadian Holder thereof and any reasonable costs of disposition. The cost to a Canadian Holder of an 
Offered Subscription Receipt will generally be equal to the amount paid to acquire the Offered Subscription Receipt. Such capital gain 
(or capital loss) will be subject to the tax treatment described below under “- Taxation of Holders of Common Shares - Capital Gains 
and Capital Losses”. 

In the event that a Canadian Holder becomes entitled to the repayment of the issue price of an Offered Subscription Receipt as a 
consequence of a Termination Event, any amount that is paid to the holder by the Corporation as, or on account of, interest and that is 
included in the Canadian Holder’s income, will be excluded from the holder’s proceeds of disposition of the Offered Subscription 
Receipt. 

Pro Rata Share of Interest 

In the event that a Termination Event occurs, holders of Offered Subscription Receipts shall be entitled to receive from the Escrow 
Agent an amount equal to the full subscription price thereof plus their pro rata share of Earned Interest and Deemed Interest. 

A Canadian Holder that is a corporation, partnership, unit trust or any trust of which a corporation or a partnership is a beneficiary will 
be required to include in computing its income for a taxation year the amount of any such interest accrued to the Canadian Holder to the 
end of the Canadian Holder’s taxation year, or that is receivable or received by the Canadian Holder before the end of that taxation year, 
except to the extent that such interest was included in computing the Canadian Holder’s income for a preceding taxation year. 

Any other Canadian Holder that is entitled to receive its pro rata share of Earned Interest and Deemed Interest will be required to include 
in computing income for a taxation year such interest that is receivable or received by the Canadian Holder in that taxation year, 
depending upon the method regularly followed by the Canadian Holder in computing income. 

Taxation of Canadian Holders of Common Shares 

Dividends on Common Shares 

Dividends received or deemed to be received on Common Shares held by a Canadian Holder will be included in the Canadian Holder’s 
income for the purposes of the Tax Act. 

Such dividends received by a Canadian Holder that is an individual (other than certain trusts) will be subject to the gross-up and dividend 
tax credit rules in the Tax Act normally applicable to dividends received from taxable Canadian corporations, including the enhanced 
gross-up and dividend tax credit in respect of dividends designated by the Corporation as “eligible dividends”. There may be limitations 
on the ability of the Corporation to designate dividends as “eligible dividends”.  

A Canadian Holder that is a corporation will include such dividends in computing its income and generally will be entitled to deduct the 
amount of such dividends in computing its taxable income. A Canadian Holder that is a “private corporation” or “subject corporation” 
(as such terms are defined in the Tax Act) may be liable to pay a tax under Part IV of the Tax Act (which generally is refundable, subject 
to the detailed rules of the Tax Act) on dividends received or deemed to be received on the Common Shares to the extent such dividends 
are deductible in computing the Canadian Holder’s taxable income. In certain circumstances, subsection 55(2) of the Tax Act will treat 
a taxable dividend (other than, generally, any portion thereof that is subject to non-refunded Part IV tax) received by a Canadian Holder 
that is a corporation as proceeds of disposition or a capital gain. Canadian Holders that are corporations are urged to consult their own 
tax advisors having regard to their particular circumstances. 
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Disposition of Common Shares 

A disposition or a deemed disposition of a Common Share by a Canadian Holder (except to the Corporation) will generally result in the 
Canadian Holder realizing a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition of the Common 
Share exceeds (or are less than) the aggregate of the adjusted cost base to the Canadian Holder thereof and any reasonable costs of 
disposition. Such capital gain (or capital loss) will be subject to the tax treatment described below under “ - Capital Gains and Capital 
Losses”. 

Capital Gains and Capital Losses 

Generally, one-half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Canadian Holder in a taxation year must be included in 
the Canadian Holder’s income for the year, and one-half of any capital loss (an “allowable capital loss”) realized by a Canadian Holder 
in a taxation year must be deducted from taxable capital gains realized by the Canadian Holder in that year. Allowable capital losses in 
excess of taxable capital gains realized in a taxation year generally may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding 
taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any subsequent taxation year against net taxable capital gains realized in such years, 
to the extent and under the circumstances described in the Tax Act. 

The amount of any capital loss realized by a Canadian Holder that is a corporation on the disposition of a Common Share may be reduced 
by the amount of dividends received or deemed to be received by it on such Common Share (or on a share for which the Common Share 
has been substituted) to the extent and under the circumstances described by the Tax Act. Similar rules may apply where a corporation 
is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns Common Shares, directly or indirectly, through a partnership or a trust. 

Other Taxes

A Canadian Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in the Tax 
Act) may be liable to pay an additional tax (which is generally refundable, subject to the detailed rules of the Tax Act) on its “aggregate 
investment income” (as defined in the Tax Act) for the year, which will include amounts in respect of interest, certain dividends and 
taxable capital gains. 

A Canadian Holder that is an individual or a trust (other than certain specified trusts) that receives or is deemed to have received taxable 
dividends on the Common Shares or realizes a capital gain may be liable for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act. Such Canadian 
Holders should consult their own tax advisors in this regard. 

Holders Not Resident in Canada

The following summary applies to a holder of Offered Securities who, at all relevant times, for purposes of the Tax Act: (i) is neither 
resident nor deemed to be resident in Canada, and (ii) does not, and is not deemed to, use or hold Offered Securities in carrying on a 
business in Canada (a “Non-Canadian Holder”). In addition, this discussion does not apply to: (i) an insurer who carries on an insurance 
business in Canada and elsewhere, (ii) an “authorized foreign bank” as defined in the Tax Act, or (ii) a Non-Canadian Holder that is, or 
does not deal at arm’s length with, a “specified shareholder” (as defined in subsection 18(5) of the Tax Act) of the Corporation. A 
“specified shareholder” for these purposes generally includes a person who (either alone or together with persons with whom that person 
is not dealing at arm’s length for the purposes of the Tax Act) owns or has the right to acquire or control 25% or more of Corporation’s 
shares determined on a votes or fair market value basis. 

Taxation of Non-Canadian Holders of Offered Subscription Receipts 

Acquisition of Common Shares Pursuant to the Terms of the Offered Subscription Receipts 

A Non-Canadian Holder of Offered Subscription Receipts will not realize any capital gain or capital loss upon the acquisition of 
Common Shares pursuant to the terms of Offered Subscription Receipts. 

Other Dispositions of Subscription Receipts 
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On a disposition or deemed disposition of an Offered Subscription Receipt (other than on the acquisition of a Common Share pursuant 
to the terms of Offered Subscription Receipts as discussed above) a Non-Canadian Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act 
in respect of any capital gain realized by such Non-Canadian Holder unless the Offered Subscription Receipt constitutes “taxable 
Canadian property” (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Non-Canadian Holder at the time of disposition and the Non-Canadian Holder is 
not entitled to relief under an applicable income tax convention. 

As long as the Common Shares are listed on a designated stock exchange (which currently includes tiers 1 and 2 of the TSXV), the 
Offered Subscription Receipts will generally not constitute taxable Canadian property of a Non-Canadian Holder, unless at any time 
during the 60-month period immediately preceding the disposition of the Subscription Receipts: (i) (a) the Non-Canadian Holder, (b) 
persons with whom the Non-Canadian Holder did not deal at arm’s length, (c) partnerships in which the Non-Canadian Holder or a 
person described in (b) holds a membership interest directly or indirectly through one or more partnership, or (d) the Non-Canadian 
Holder together with such persons, owned 25% or more of the issued shares of any class or series of the capital stock of the Corporation, 
and (ii) more than 50% of the fair market value of the Common Shares was derived directly or indirectly from one or any combination 
of: (a) real or immovable property situated in Canada; (b) “Canadian resource properties” (as defined in the Tax Act); (c) “timber 
resource properties”, (as defined in the Tax Act) and (d) options in respect of, or interests in or for civil law rights in, property described 
in (a) to (c) (the “TCP Conditions”). A Non-Canadian Holder contemplating a disposition of Offered Subscription Receipts that may 
constitute taxable Canadian property should consult a tax advisor prior to such disposition. 

Pro Rata Share of Interest

In the event that a Termination Event occurs, holders of Subscription Receipts shall be entitled to receive from the Subscription Receipt 
Agent an amount equal to the full subscription price thereof plus their pro rata share of Earned Interest and Deemed Interest. A Non-
Canadian Holder will generally not be subject to Canadian withholding tax in respect of amounts paid or credited or deemed to have 
been paid or credited as, on account or in lieu of payment of, or in satisfaction of, any such interest. 

Taxation of Non-Canadian Holders of Common Shares 

Disposition of Common Shares 

A Non-Canadian Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of any capital gain realized by such Non-Canadian 
Holder on a disposition or deemed disposition of a Common Share issuable pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipts, unless 
the Common Shares constitute “taxable Canadian property” (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Non-Canadian Holder at the time of 
disposition and the Non-Canadian Holder is not entitled to relief under an applicable income tax convention. 

As long as the Common Shares are then listed on a designated stock exchange (which currently includes tiers 1 and 2 of the TSXV), 
Common Shares generally will not constitute taxable Canadian property of a Non-Canadian Holder, unless at any time during the 60-
month period immediately preceding the disposition of the Common Shares the TCP Conditions (as discussed above) are satisfied. A 
Non-Canadian Holder contemplating a disposition of Common Shares that may constitute taxable Canadian property should consult a 
tax advisor prior to such disposition. 

Dividends on Common Shares 

Any dividends paid or credited, or deemed to be paid or credited, on the Common Shares to a Non-Canadian Holder will be subject to 
Canadian withholding tax at the rate of 25% of the gross amount of the dividend unless the rate is reduced under the provisions of an 
applicable income tax convention between Canada and the Non-Canadian Holder’s country of residence. For example, where the Non-
Canadian Holder is a resident of the United States that is entitled to full benefits under the Canada-United States Tax Convention (1980), 
as amended, and is the beneficial owner of the dividends, the rate of Canadian withholding tax applicable to dividends is generally 
reduced to 15%. 
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RISK FACTORS 

An investment in the Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Common Shares issuable upon conversion of the Offered Subscription 
Receipts) is speculative and subject to certain risks. Investors should carefully consider the risks described below, in the Annual 
Information Form, the MD&A, the Base Shelf Prospectus and other information elsewhere in this Prospectus Supplement, including the 
documents incorporated by reference into this Prospectus, prior to making an investment in the Offered Subscription Receipts. If any of 
such or other risks occur, the Corporation’s prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially 
adversely impacted. In that case, the trading price of the Common Shares could decline, and investors could lose all or part of their 
investment. While the Corporation has attempted to identify the primary known risks that are material to its business, such risks and 
uncertainties may not the only ones the Corporation faces. Additional risks and uncertainties of which the Corporation is currently 
unaware or that are unknown or that it currently deems to be immaterial could also have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s 
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. The Corporation cannot assure prospective purchasers that it will 
successfully address any or all of these risks. There is no assurance that any risk management steps taken will avoid future loss due to 
the occurrence of any of the risks described in this Prospectus Supplement and the accompanying Base Shelf Prospectus and in the 
documents incorporated by reference herein and therein, or other unforeseen risks. 

Risks Related to the Corporation 

Negative Operating Cash Flow 

Although the Corporation had positive operating cash flow beginning in the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and for the quarters ended 
March 31, June 30, and September 30, 2020, the Corporation had negative cash flow from operating activities for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2019, and has historically incurred net losses. There is no assurance that sufficient revenues will be generated in the near 
future, including without limitation, revenue generated by each of LedgerPay, Inc., Menlo, and CRG, or BankCard USA or Mazik 
assuming the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition and the Mazik Acquisition, respectively. To the extent that the Corporation 
has negative operating cash flows in future periods, it may need to deploy a portion of its existing working capital to fund such negative 
cash flows. The Corporation may be required to raise additional funds through the issuance of additional equity securities or through 
loan financing. There is no assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that these financings 
will be on terms at least as favourable to the Corporation as those previously obtained, or at all. Given its expected rate of cash burn, the 
Corporation expects to be able to continue operations and advance its business operations using its currently available non-contingent 
resources for at least 12 months from the date of this Prospectus Supplement. 

Use of Proceeds 

The Corporation currently intends to allocate the Net Proceeds as described under “Use of Proceeds”. However, management will have 
discretion in the actual application of the Net Proceeds, and may elect to allocate Net Proceeds differently from that described under 
“Use of Proceeds” if they believe it would be in the Corporation’s best interests to do so. Shareholders of the Corporation will have to 
rely upon the judgment of management with respect to the use of proceeds. Accordingly, although such allocations are based on the 
current expectation of management of the Corporation there may be circumstances where for sound business reasons, a reallocation of 
funds may be necessary. Shareholders may not agree with the manner in which management chooses to allocate and spend the Net 
Proceeds. The failure by management to apply these funds effectively could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business. 
Risks Associated with Future Acquisitions  

The Corporation intends to continue to acquire additional businesses. Acquisitions involve a number of special risks, including diversion 
of management’s attention, failure to retain key acquired personnel, unanticipated events or circumstances, and legal liabilities, some or 
all of which could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations, prospects and financial condition. In addition, 
there can be no assurance that the Corporation can complete any acquisition it pursues on favourable terms, that any acquired businesses, 
products or technologies will achieve anticipated revenues and income, that any acquired businesses will be successfully integrated 
without significant use of the Corporation’s resources and management’s attention, or at all, or that any acquisitions completed will 
ultimately benefit the business. Furthermore, the potential funding of any such future acquisitions could require diversion of revenue or 
securing of debt or equity financings by the Corporation which could, in turn, result in a potentially dilutive issuance of equity securities. 
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If a strategy of growth through acquisition is pursued, the failure of the Corporation to successfully manage this strategy could have a 
material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, results of operations, prospects and financial condition.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The recent global outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread 
of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, 
have caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced 
significant volatility and weakness. Governments and central banks have reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions 
designed to stabilize economic conditions. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown at this time, as is the 
efficacy of the government and central bank interventions. It is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of these 
developments and the impact on the financial results and condition of the Corporation and its operating subsidiaries in future periods. 
To date, certain customers of the Corporation have suspended or scaled back their operations for precautionary purposes or as 
governments have declared a state of emergency or taken other actions, which may adversely affect the price and demand for the 
Corporation’s services as well as its ability to collect outstanding receivables from its customers. Conversely, the Corporation has also 
experienced an increased demand for its services as certain customers have accelerated their use and dependence of the Corporation’s 
cloud services as a result of work from home measures. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Corporation’s financial results will 
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information that may emerge 
concerning the severity of COVID-19 and the actions taken by governments to curtail or treat its impact, including shelter in place 
directives, which, if extended, may impact the economies in which the Corporation now, or may in the future, operate. 

Risks Related to the Securities 

Satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions 

There can be no assurance that the Escrow Release Conditions will be satisfied prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event. Each 
subscriber’s subscription proceeds from the issuance of Offered Subscription Receipts will be held in escrow pending the satisfaction 
of the Escrow Release Conditions or the occurrence of a Termination Event and, accordingly, subscribers will not be able to use such 
funds for other investment opportunities that occur prior to the satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions or the occurrence of a 
Termination Event nor to participate in any growth in the trading price of the Common Shares if the Escrow Release Conditions are not 
satisfied before the occurrence of a Termination Event. Holders of Offered Subscription Receipts have only the rights described under 
“Description of the Subscription Receipts” and as set out in the Subscription Receipt Agreement. 

No Prior Public Market for the Subscription Receipts 

Prior to the Offering, no public market existed for the Offered Subscription Receipts. There can be no assurance that an active and liquid 
market for the Offered Subscription Receipts will develop following the completion of the Offering, or if developed, that such a market 
will be sustained. If an active public market does not develop or is not maintained, investors may have difficulty selling their Offered 
Subscription Receipts. The Corporation has applied to have: (i) the Offered Subscription Receipts, and (ii) the Common Shares issuable 
pursuant to the conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts listed on the TSXV. Listing is subject to the approval of the TSXV in 
accordance with its listing requirements. The TSXV has not conditionally approved the Corporation’s listing application and there is no 
assurance that the TSXV will approve the listing application. The Offering Price for the Offered Subscription Receipts was determined 
by negotiation between the Corporation and the Joint Bookrunners and may not be indicative of the price at which the Offered 
Subscription Receipts or Common Shares will trade following the completion of the Offering. The Corporation cannot assure investors 
that the market price of the Offered Subscription Receipts or Common Shares will not materially decline below the initial Offering 
Price. 

Subscription Receipt Structure 

Common Shares will automatically be issued in satisfaction of the Offered Subscription Receipts concurrently with the  satisfaction of 
the Escrow Release Conditions. The Corporation may agree to amend the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement and consummate 
the BankCard USA Acquisition on terms that may be different from those described in this Prospectus Supplement, subject to the consent 
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of the Joint Bookrunners, on behalf of the Underwriters, in certain circumstances. As a result, the expected benefits of the BankCard 
USA Acquisition may not be fully realized. As a consequence, holders of Offered Subscription Receipts will essentially assume the 
same risk as though they had invested directly in Common Shares on the Transaction Closing Date.

Equity Securities are Subject to Trading and Volatility Risks 

The securities of publicly traded companies can experience a high level of price and volume volatility and the value of the Corporation’s 
securities can be expected to fluctuate depending on various factors, not all of which are directly related to the success of the Corporation 
and its operating performance, underlying asset values or prospects. These include the risks described elsewhere in the Prospectus, 
including the documents incorporated by reference herein. Factors which may influence the price of the Corporation’s securities, 
including the Offered Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares, include, but are not limited to: worldwide economic conditions; 
changes in government policies; investor perceptions; movements in global interest rates and global stock markets; variations in 
operating costs; the cost of capital that the Corporation may require in the future; recommendations by securities research analysts; 
issuances of Common Shares or debt securities by the Corporation; operating performance and, if applicable, the share price performance 
of the Corporation’s competitors; the addition or departure of key management and other personnel; the expiration of lock-up or other 
transfer restrictions on outstanding Common Shares; significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint 
ventures or capital commitments by or involving the Corporation or its competitors; news reports relating to trends, concerns, 
technological or competitive developments, regulatory changes and other related industry and market issues affecting the technology 
sector; publicity about the Corporation, the Corporation’s personnel or others operating in the industry; loss of a major funding source; 
and all market conditions that are specific to the tech industry. 

There can be no assurance that such fluctuations will not affect the price of the Corporation’s securities, and consequently purchasers 
of Offered Subscription Receipts may not be able to sell Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Common Shares issuable on 
conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts) at prices equal to or greater than the price or value at which they purchased the Offered 
Subscription Receipts or acquired them by way of the secondary market. 

Investors May Lose Their Entire Investment 

An investment in the Offered Subscription Receipts (including the Common Shares issuable on conversion of the Offered Subscription 
Receipts) is speculative and may result in the loss of an investor’s entire investment. Only potential investors who are experienced in 
high risk investments and who can afford to lose their entire investment should consider an investment in the Corporation. 

Dilution from Equity Financing Could Negatively Impact Holders of Common Shares

The Corporation may from time to time raise funds through the issuance of Common Shares or the issuance of debt instruments or other 
securities convertible into Common Shares. The Corporation cannot predict the size or price of future issuances of Common Shares or 
the size or terms of future issuances of debt instruments or other securities convertible into Common Shares, or the effect, if any, that 
future issuances and sales of the Corporation’s securities will have on the market price of the Common Shares. Sales or issuances of 
substantial numbers of Common Shares, or the perception that such sales could occur, may adversely affect prevailing market prices of 
the Common Shares. With any additional sale or issuance of Common Shares, or securities convertible into Common Shares, investors 
will suffer dilution to their voting power and the Corporation may experience dilution in its earnings per share. 

The Corporation Does Not Pay Dividends 

No dividends on the Common Shares have been declared or paid to date. The Corporation anticipates that, for the foreseeable future, it 
will retain its cash resources for the operation and development of its business. Payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion 
of the Board after taking into account many factors, including earnings, operating results, financial condition, current and anticipated 
cash needs and any restrictions in financing agreements, and the Corporation may never pay dividends.  
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Risks Associated with the BankCard USA Acquisition 

No Assurance Regarding the BankCard USA Acquisition

Completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition is subject to, among other things (a) the approval of the TSXV; (b) receipt of all third-
party approvals; and (c) satisfaction or waiver of all conditions precedent as set out in the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement. 
Closing of the BankCard USA Acquisition is expected to occur in the second quarter of calendar 2021. While the Corporation is 
diligently pursuing the BankCard USA Acquisition, there is no assurance that this transaction will be successfully completed on the 
proposed contemplated timeline or at all, as to whether conditions, including the receipt of applicable regulatory approvals, to the 
consummation of the  transaction will be satisfied or waived, or that any additional conditions or limitations will not be prescribed in 
connection with such conditions and approvals, or as to the resulting benefits or consequences of completion of such transaction on the 
business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects of the Corporation. Compliance with such additional conditions or 
limitations may have a material adverse effect on the prospects for the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition or impose 
additional obligations or compliance costs on the combined business or have a material adverse effect on the business, financial 
condition, results of operations or prospects of the combined business. 

Failure to Realize the Anticipated Benefits of the BankCard USA Acquisition

Achieving the benefits of the BankCard USA Acquisition depends in part on successfully supporting BankCard USA’s growth initiatives 
and operations in a timely and efficient manner, as well as the Corporation’s ability to realize the anticipated growth opportunities. The 
process will require the dedication of management effort, time and resources which may divert management’s focus and resources from 
other strategic opportunities and from operational matters during this process. These decisions and completion of the BankCard USA 
Acquisition will present challenges to management and special risks pertaining to possible unanticipated liabilities, unanticipated costs, 
and the potential loss of key employees. This process may result in the loss and the disruption of ongoing business and customer and 
employee relationships that may adversely affect the Corporation’s ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of the BankCard USA 
Acquisition, and as a result of these factors, it is possible that the anticipated benefits of the BankCard USA Acquisition and the growth 
of the Corporation and BankCard USA will not be realized as anticipated. Additionally, BankCard USA’s business is subject to 
substantially the same risks as the Corporation’s business. 

Integration of BankCard USA 

To effectively integrate BankCard USA into the Corporation’s current operations, the Corporation must establish appropriate 
operational, administrative, finance, management systems and controls and marketing functions relating to BankCard USA. These 
efforts will require substantial attention from the Corporation’s management team. This diversion of management attention, as well as 
any other difficulties which the Corporation may encounter in completing the transition and integration process, could have an adverse 
impact on the Corporation’s business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects and cash flows. There can be no assurance, 
however, that the Corporation will be successful in integrating BankCard USA’s operations without the use of the Corporation’s 
resources and management’s attention beyond anticipated levels, or at all, or that the expected benefits will be realized. 

BankCard USA Acquisition will Cause Dilution

Pursuant to the terms of the BankCard USA Stock Purchase Agreement, the Corporation will issue 50,000,000 Common Shares to the 
Vendors of BankCard USA as partial consideration for the acquisition of BankCard USA. In addition, it is expected that the Net Proceeds 
will be used to partially fund the cash portion of the consideration price of the BankCard USA Acquisition. Following the completion 
of the proposed BankCard USA Acquisition (and assuming the completion of the Mazik Acquisition, the Concurrent Private Placement, 
the Over-Allotment Option not being exercised, and no further issuances of Common Shares) the former Vendors of BankCard USA 
will hold, in the aggregate, approximately 16.5% of the Common Shares on a non-diluted basis. Accordingly, the issuance of Common 
Shares to the former Vendors of BankCard USA, and the issuance of Common Shares on conversion of the Offered Subscription Receipts 
pursuant to the Offering, will dilute the ownership interest of the shareholders of the Corporation who hold Common Shares immediately 
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prior to the satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions and the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition. See “BankCard USA 
Acquisition – Acquisition” and “Use of Proceeds”. 

BankCard USA Acquisition will Increase the Corporation’s Debt Position 

The Corporation will  be required  to  make  its  first  payment  of  interest  on  the  Increased Term Loan on the last day of the calendar 
month on which the Transaction Closing occurs. Annual  cash  interest  requirements  on  the Increased Term Loan are estimated to be  
approximately US$3,250,000. There can  be  no  assurance  that  the Corporation will  achieve  or  sustain  profitability  or  positive  
cash  flow  from  operations in the future.  If the Corporation cannot achieve operating profitability or positive cash flow from operations,  
it may  not  be  able  to  meet  its debt  service  or  working  capital  requirements  or  to  obtain additional capital required in order to 
execute its business plan. Pursuant to the terms of the New Loan Agreement, all debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Corporation are 
collaterally secured by a first-ranking security interest in all of the present and future undertaking, property and assets of the Corporation 
and its material subsidiaries The occurrence of an event of default may result in the Corporation’s lenders requiring the repayment of 
all amounts outstanding, collection of all amounts owing from the Corporation, or enforcement of security and seizure of the secured 
assets of the Corporation.  

Potential Undisclosed BankCard Liabilities

In the event that the BankCard USA Acquisition is completed, BankCard USA will continue to have the liabilities that existed prior to 
completion of the same. The Corporation will also face the risks associated with the business of BankCard USA. There may be liabilities 
and risks of BankCard USA that the Corporation failed to discover prior to the completion of the BankCard USA Acquisition or was 
unable to accurately assess or quantify in its due diligence. 

Risks Related to BankCard Customers 

BankCard USA currently operates as an independent sales organization (and provides merchant services) across a broad range of 
industries from time to time, including without limitation, highly regulated industries such as the firearms and firearms related industries, 
(collectively, the “Regulated Industries”). Some of the Regulated Industries may have extensive regulations, the non-compliance with 
which may trigger penalties that could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business and financial condition, and may 
involve reputational risk (which could impact the Corporation’s relationship with other customers and suppliers in a materially adverse 
manner). In addition, under the terms of the New Loan Agreement, the Corporation has covenanted following the date of the Transaction 
Closing, to transition the dealings of BankCard USA with current merchant customers operating in certain Regulated Industries. Failure 
to comply with this covenant could result in an event of default and trigger penalties under the terms of the New Loan Agreement unless 
a new credit facility is secured. There is no guarantee that BankCard USA will be able to transition its dealings from clients that operate 
in the Regulated Industries within the prescribed time periods under the New Loan Agreement or be able to fund any penalty provisions 
under the New Loan Agreement (either with available funds or by securing a new credit facility). The failure to do so could lead to a 
material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business and financial condition. 

Change in the Laws, Regulations, and Guidelines that Impact Our Business May Cause Adverse Effects on Our Operations

BankCard USA currently operates as an independent sales organization (and provides merchant services) across a broad range of 
industries that are subject to a variety of laws, regulations, and guidelines. Certain laws, regulations and guidelines are subject to possible 
significant legislative amendments that may still be enacted in the future which address current or  future  regulatory  issues  or perceived 
inadequacies in the regulatory framework. Different  competitive  pressures,  additional  compliance requirements, and other costs may 
limit our ability to participate in certain industries and markets in the future, and changes to such laws, regulations, and guidelines may 
cause material adverse effects on our business, financial condition and operations. 
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LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters relating to the Offering will be passed upon by Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP on behalf of the Corporation, and 
Wildeboer Dellelce LLP on behalf of the Underwriters. 

As at March 31, 2021, the partners and associates of each of Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP and Wildeboer Dellelce LLP beneficially 
owned, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of the issued and outstanding securities of each class of the Corporation or of any associate 
or affiliate of the Corporation. 

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR  

The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares is Computershare Trust Company of Canada at the principal offices in 
Vancouver and Toronto.  

The Corporation’s auditors are KPMG LLP, Bay Adelaide Centre, 333 Bay Street, Suite 4600 Toronto, Ontario M5H 2R2. KPMG LLP 
have confirmed to the Corporation that they are independent within the meaning of the relevant rules and related interpretations 
prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any applicable legislation or regulations. BankCard USA’s auditors are 
BDO USA, LLP, 515 Flower St 47th floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071, United States. BDO USA, LLP have performed the audit in respect 
of certain financial statements of BankCard USA attached to this Prospectus. 
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APPENDIX A – AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANKCARD USA 
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BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
BankCard USA Merchant Services, Inc. 
Westlake Village, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BankCard USA Merchant Services, Inc., 
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements 
of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 



 

4 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of BankCard USA Merchant Services, Inc. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of a Matter – Adoption of ASU No. 2014-09  
 
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method for 
recognizing revenue and costs to obtain revenue contracts in 2019 due to the adoption of 
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 
(“Topic 606”), and the related amendments.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
 
 
 
Los Angeles, California 
March 12, 2021 
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December 31, 2019 2018

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,567,365 $ 2,847,967

Processing receivable 2,012,964 2,210,661

Accounts receivable 237,495 209,538

Purchase of future revenue receivables 280,224 255,000

Total current assets 5,098,048 5,523,166

Property and equipment, net 1,161,782 1,414,135

Intangible assets, net 1,196,517 1,484,850

Other assets 292,871 293,634

Total assets $ 7,749,218 $ 8,715,785

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 585,360 $ 1,537,962

Note payable                    -   600,000

Deferred rent and lease incentive, current portion 148,665 136,512

Total current liabilities          734,025      2,274,474 

Long-term liabilities

Deferred rent and lease incentive, net of current portion 852,203 1,000,303

Total liabilities 1,586,228 3,274,777

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 

500 shares issued and outstanding December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively

Additional paid-in capital 10,000 10,000

Retained earnings 6,152,990 5,431,008

Total stockholders’ equity 6,162,990 5,441,008

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 7,749,218 $ 8,715,785

                -                    - 

 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Years ended December 31, 2019 2018

Revenue

Processing revenue, net $ 22,184,186 $ 22,281,799

Other revenue 1,560,125 386,340

Total revenue 23,744,311 22,668,139

Operating expenses

Commissions/Residuals 11,492,246 10,886,076

General and administrative expense 3,897,673 3,465,344

Depreciation and amortization 587,895 255,561

Cost of products sold 617,158 300,579

Total operating expenses 16,594,972 14,907,560

Income from operations before provision for income taxes 7,149,339 7,760,579

Provision for income taxes 146,583 62,506

Net income $ 7,002,756 $ 7,698,073  
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Common Stock

Shares
Par

Value
Additional

Paid-In-Capital
Retained
Earnings

Balance, January 1, 2018 500 $      -   $ 10,000 $ 4,612,456 $        4,622,456 

Distributions to stockholders        -        -                       -          (6,879,521)       (6,879,521)

Net income        -        -                       -            7,698,073        7,698,073 

Balance, December 31, 2018 500      -                10,000          5,431,008        5,441,008 

Distributions to stockholders        -        -                       -          (6,280,774)       (6,280,774)

Net income        -        -                       -            7,002,756        7,002,756 

Balance, December 31, 2019 500 $      -   $              10,000 $          6,152,990 $        6,162,990 

Total 
Stockholders' 

Equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Years ended December 31, 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $      7,002,756 $        7,698,073 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization         587,895           255,561 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Processing receivable         197,697         (387,859)

Accounts receivable          (27,957)         (149,456)

Purchase of future revenue receivable          (25,224)           (20,000)

Other assets                763            53,153 

Accounts payable        (952,602)           324,174 

Deferred rent and lease incentive liability        (135,947)           303,198 

Net cash provided by operating activities      6,647,381        8,076,844 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment          (27,184)         (689,911)

Purchase of AgeChecker.net                   -           (936,052)

Purchase of AgeChecker.com domain          (20,025)                   - 

Net cash used in investing activities          (47,209)      (1,625,963)

Cash flows from financing activities

Notes payable        (600,000)                   - 

Distributions to stockholders    (6,280,774)      (6,879,521)

Net cash used in financing activities    (6,880,774)      (6,879,521)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents        (280,602)         (428,640)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year      2,847,967        3,276,607 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $      2,567,365 $        2,847,967 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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1. Organization and Operations 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
BankCard USA Merchant Services, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on September 1, 2004 in 
the State of California as a sub-chapter S Corporation. The Company operates principally as an 
Independent Sales Organization/Merchant Services Provider (“ISO/MSP”) that provides all-in-one 
payment processing services to merchants located in the U.S. 
 
As a registered and full-acquiring ISO/MSP, the Company is party to sponsorship agreements with 
several member banks (“Sponsoring Banks”) to process and settle bankcard transactions for its 
merchant customers. The Company’s products and services include: (1) merchant accounts capable 
of a diverse range of scalable processing solutions, (2) payment processing equipment and software 
corresponding to each card solution, (3) complimentary support services designed to best meet each 
new and existing merchant’s specific needs, and (4) online age verification software offered through 
the Company’s AgeChecker.Net platform. 
 
Basis of Financial Statements Presentation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period. Estimates include, among other things, merchant cash advances and chargebacks 
on transactions that are unrecoverable from merchants, determining the depreciable lives of 
property and equipment, and intangible assets. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and 
the differences may be material to the financial statements. 
 
2. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and money market accounts with 
original maturities of 90 days or less. Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial 
institutions and, at times, balances may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has never 
experienced any losses related to these balances. 
 
Processing Receivable, Accounts Receivable, Merchant Advance Receivable and Other 
Receivables (“Receivables”) & Contract Assets / Liabilities 
 
The Company continuously monitors collections and payments from its Sponsoring Banks and 
maintains a provision for estimated credit losses based upon its historical experience. Receivables 
are reported net of an allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible in the future. Payment 
terms are typically net 30 from the date of invoice. No allowance for receivables was considered 
necessary as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. The Company believes that its allowance for doubtful 
accounts is sufficient for the receivable balances as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.  
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The Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09, “Revenues from Contracts 
with Customers (Topic 606)” as well as other clarifications and technical guidance issued by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) related to this new revenue standard (“ASC 606”) 
and ASC Subtopic 340-40: “Other Assets and Deferred Costs - Contracts with Customers” (“ASC 340-
40”) on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Upon adoption of ASC 606, the 
Company was required to describe its accounting policies for accounts receivable, contract assets, 
and contract liabilities. A contract with a customer creates legal rights and obligations. As the 
Company performs under customer contracts, the Company’s right to consideration that is 
unconditional is considered to be accounts receivable. If the Company’s right to consideration for 
such performance is contingent upon a future event or satisfaction of additional performance 
obligations, the amount of revenue the Company has recognized in excess of the amount the 
Company has billed to the customer is recognized as a contract asset. Contract liabilities represent 
consideration received from customers in excess of revenue recognized. At December 31, 2019, the 
Company was not subject to future performance obligations and did not have any contract assets 
and contract liabilities. 
 
Property and Equipment, Net 
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
Depreciation has been calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over their estimated useful lives, or the term of 
the lease, whichever is shorter. 
 
Major improvements and replacements of property and equipment are capitalized. Minor additions 
and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations in the year incurred. 
Upon retirement or other disposition of property, applicable cost and accumulated depreciation and 
amortization are removed from the accounts and any gains and losses are included in the reporting 
of operations. 
 
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:  
 
 Years  
   

Computer equipment and software 3  
Furniture  5  
Leasehold improvements 7.25  
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
 
The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability 
of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted cash flows attributable to 
such assets to their carrying value. If the carrying value of the assets exceeds the forecasted 
undiscounted cash flows, then the assets are written down to their fair value. Fair value is 
determined based on the discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon the nature of 
the assets. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there have been no impairments of 
long-lived assets. 
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Revenue Recognition 
 
Prior to the adoption of ASC 606, the Company presented payments to certain third-parties, 
including those to payment networks, as a component of net processing revenue. Beginning 
January 1, 2019, the Company’s presentation of revenue net of third-party payments to payment 
networks remains consistent with the prior presentation. As such, the presentation of expenses to 
payment networks had no effect to the Company’s reporting of revenue. As a result, total revenue 
remained unchanged from the adoption of ASC 606 and did not have a material effect on any other 
line items in the Company’s statement of income for year ended December 31, 2019 or on any other 
line items in the Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2019 and had no effect on the 
Company’s cash flows from operating activities, investing activities or financing activities included 
in the Company’s statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2019. 
 
The Company’s payment services merchant contracts, which are provided in exchange for 
consideration of completed transactions, enable its customers to accept various payment cards in-
person and online. The Company’s comprehensive offerings include, but are not limited to, 
authorization services, settlement and funding services, customer support and help-desk functions, 
chargeback resolution, payment security services, consolidated billing and statements, and on-line 
reporting. In addition, the Company may sell point-of-sale terminals or other software and 
equipment to customers, and offer an age validation software service at point-of-sale.  
 
Pursuant to ASC 606, at contract inception, the Company assesses the goods and services promised 
in its contracts with customers and identifies a performance obligation for each promise to transfer 
a good or service to the customer that is distinct. For the Company’s payment services specifically, 
the nature of its promise to the customer is that the Company stands-ready to process transactions 
on a daily basis over the contract term. Since the timing and quantity of transactions to be processed 
by the Company is usage-based and undeterminable, the Company views payment services as an 
obligation to stand-ready to process as many transactions as the customer requests. Under a stand-
ready obligation, the evaluation of the nature of the Company’s performance obligation is focused 
on each time increment rather than the underlying activity. Therefore, the Company views payment 
services to comprise a series of distinct transactions at specific points in time that are substantially 
the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer. Accordingly, the promise to stand-
ready is accounted for as a single-event performance obligation. 
 
The Company’s payment services are priced as a percentage of transaction value and/or a specified 
fee per transaction, depending on the payment method. The Company also charges other per 
occurrence fees based on specific services that may be unrelated to the number of transactions or 
transaction value. Given the nature of the promise and the underlying fees based on unknown 
quantities or outcomes of services to be performed over the contract term, the total consideration 
is determined to be variable consideration. The variable consideration for the Company’s payment 
services is usage-based and, therefore, it specifically relates to the Company’s efforts to satisfy its 
payment services obligation. The variability is satisfied each day the service is provided to the 
customer. The Company directly ascribes variable fees to the distinct day of service to which it 
relates, and the Company considers the services performed each day in order to ascribe the 
appropriate amount of total fees to that day. Therefore, the Company measures revenue for its 
payment service on a daily basis based on the services that are performed on that day. 
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In order to provide payment services, the Company routes and clears each transaction through the 
applicable payment network. The Company obtains authorization for the transaction and request 
funds settlement from the card issuing financial institution through the payment network. When 
third-parties are involved in the transfer of goods or services to the Company’s customer, the 
Company considers the nature of each specific promised good or service and applies judgment to 
determine whether the Company controls the good or service before it is transferred to the customer 
or whether the Company is acting as an agent of the third-party. To determine whether or not the 
Company controls the good or service before it is transferred to the customer, the Company assesses 
indicators including whether it or the third-party is primarily responsible for fulfillment and which 
party has discretion in determining pricing for the good or service, as well as other considerations. 
Based on the Company’s assessment of these indicators, the Company has concluded that the 
promise to its customer to provide payment services is distinct from the services provided by the 
card issuing financial institutions and payment networks in connection with payment transactions. 
The Company does not have the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the 
benefits of the services provided by the card issuing financial institutions and payment networks 
before those services are transferred to the Company’s customer, and on that basis, the Company 
does not control those services prior to being transferred to the customer. As a result, upon adoption 
of ASC 606, the Company presents its revenue net of the interchange fees charged by the card 
issuing financial institutions and the fees charged by the payment networks. With regard to any 
sales commissions due by the Company, these amounts are based on usage and ultimate collections 
by the Company, and therefore variable in nature; as a result, the commissions are not a component 
of net processing revenue because the Company controls the relationship and the obligation to 
support each merchant account with the sole discretion to set pricing and services. 
 
Certain of the Company’s technology-enabled customer arrangements contain multiple promises, 
such as payment services, age verification services and other software-as-a-service (“SaaS”), and 
equipment, each of which is evaluated to determine whether it represents a separate performance 
obligation. SaaS arrangements are generally offered on a subscription basis with per transaction 
fees, providing the customers with access to the SaaS platform (such as age verification software or 
online payment gateway) along with general support and maintenance services. Because these 
promised services within the Company’s SaaS arrangements are delivered concurrently over the 
contract term with monthly fees and no minimum commitment period and the ability to terminate 
at any time, the Company accounts for these promises as if they are a single performance obligation 
(usage-based) that include a series of distinct services with the same pattern of transfer to the 
customer. 
 
Therefore, in accordance with ASC 606, the amount of variable consideration received by the 
Company for merchant processing services is highly susceptible to factors outside its control, 
because it’s directly supporting an action of a third-party customer that is engaged with the 
Company’s merchants (customers). As a result, all of the Company’s revenue is variable and 
recognized only when the usage occurs. 
 
The Company satisfies the combined SaaS performance obligation by standing-ready to provide 
access to the SaaS. Consideration for SaaS arrangements may consist of fixed monthly and/or usage-
based transaction fees. Revenue is recognized over the period for which the services are provided 
or by directly ascribing any fees to the distinct day of service based on the services that are 
performed on that day, also in accordance with ASC 606-10-55-65. In the case of the Company’s 
proprietary internet age verification software application, the Company retains control over the 
relationship with its customer and the stand-ready obligation to meet the daily service requirement 
that is usage-based.   
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Equipment revenue is recognized when control is transferred to the customer which is typically at 
the time of delivery.  
 
Revenue from point-in-time recognition was not material for the years ended December 31, 2019 or 
2018.  
 
Prior to the Company’s adoption of ASC 606, the Company presented payments to certain third-
parties, including those to payment networks, as a component of net processing revenue and 
recognized revenue when transactions were processed and services were performed. For 
arrangements with multiple elements, the Company allocated consideration to each element based 
on the fixed transaction price agreed between the parties at contract inception and was responsible 
for these promises as stand-ready obligations or when the transfer of title occurred (as in the case 
of an equipment sale). For arrangements with payment processing services provided by the 
Company, the Company offset its revenue due to principal versus agent considerations whereby 
some of the performance obligations were engaged with other third-parties through the payment 
network, and as a result, the Company historically presented its revenue net of the interchange 
fees charged by the card issuing financial institutions and the fees charged by the payment 
networks.  
 
Beginning January 1, 2019, the Company’s presentation of revenue net of third-party payments to 
payment networks remains consistent with the prior presentation. As such, the presentation of 
expenses to payment networks had no effect to the Company’s reporting of revenue. As a result, 
total revenue remained unchanged from the adoption of ASC 606 and did not have a material effect 
on any other line items in the Company’s statement of income for year ended December 31, 2019 
or on any other line items in the Company’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2019 and had no 
effect on the Company’s cash flows from operating activities, investing activities or financing 
activities included in the Company’s statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2019. 
Therefore, the Company’s presentation of revenue net of third-party payments to payment networks 
remains consistent with the presentation prior to January 1, 2019. 
 
Contract Costs 
 
Under ASC 340-40, the Company is required to amortize customer contracts and certain assets over 
the expected period of benefit. Under this new standard, the Company is also required to capitalize 
certain costs, including certain commissions and related payroll taxes and other costs incurred to 
fulfill a contract before the performance obligation has been satisfied. Since the Company’s 
customer contracts and related costs, commissions, and other costs are based on usage-based fees 
with monthly service charges with the ability to terminate at any time, the Company does not 
capitalize any such assets or expenses. 
 
The Company capitalizes certain acquisition costs representing the estimated cost of purchasing 
future net revenue or residual commissions of certain merchants and vested salespersons. 
Capitalized acquisition costs represented incremental, direct fees that were recoverable through 
merchant profitability. The capitalized acquisition costs were amortized upon repayment, which 
was usage-based and therefore variable in nature. The repayment to the Company was 
proportionally allocated to amortization of the capitalized cost, which was recorded as an asset by 
the Company, and revenue. The Company made no related provision for doubtful accounts because 
the Company retained control over the merchant relationships that provided the repayment 
methods for such purchases of future revenue to its merchants and salespersons and had reasonable 
expectation that the balances would be settled from future revenue streams based on analysis of 
past performance.   
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Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed under provisions of Sub-Chapter S of the Internal Revenue 
Code. Under those provisions, the Company does not pay federal corporate income taxes on its 
taxable income and incurs a liability for California income taxes at a rate of 1.5% of taxable income. 
The stockholders are liable for individual federal and state income taxes on the Company’s taxable 
income. The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 consists 
of state franchise taxes. 
 
Uncertain Tax Positions 
 
The Company follows accounting guidance applicable to uncertain tax positions, which prescribes 
when to recognize and how to measure the financial effects, if any, of income tax positions taken 
or expected to be taken on its income tax returns. As of and for the years ended December 31, 2019 
and 2018, the Company did not recognize a liability for uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 
2019, the income tax returns for 2014 through 2018 were open to examination by the major taxing 
jurisdictions to which the Company is subject. The Company recognizes interest and penalties 
related to unrecognized tax positions as tax expense. As of and for the years ended December 31, 
2019 and 2018, the Company did not incur any related interest and penalties. 
 
Contingencies 
 
Accounting guidance requires that the Company record an estimated loss from a loss contingency 
when information available prior to issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable 
that an asset has been impaired, or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting for contingencies 
such as legal matters requires significant judgment. Many of these legal matters can take years to 
resolve. Generally, as the time period increases over which the uncertainties are resolved, the 
likelihood of changes to the estimate of the ultimate outcome increases. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk and Risk Factors 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may 
exceed federally insured limits. To date, the Company has never experienced any losses related to 
these balances. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had approximately $2,178,187 and 
$2,123,959 in excess of federally insured limits of $250,000 per financial institution. 
 
At December 31, 2019, the entire balance of the processing receivable, or $2,012,964, is due from 
the Company’s Sponsoring Banks; the Company received the full amount outstanding in January 
2020. At December 31, 2018, the entire balance of the processing receivable, or $2,210,661, is due 
from the Company’s Sponsoring Banks. The Company received the full outstanding amount in 
January 2019. 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-2, “Leases (Topic 842).” ASU No. 2016-2 requires the 
recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating 
leases under previous U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. It is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early 
adoption is permitted. Entities are required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of 
the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach. In June 2020, the FASB issued 
ASU No. 2020-05 to provide a one-year deferral of adoption of ASC No. 2016-2 for privately held 
entities. For these private entities, which applies to the Company, the leasing standard is effective 
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim reporting periods within annual 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is evaluating the impact of 
adoption of this ASU on its financial statements. 
 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments.” The amendments in this update change 
how companies measure and recognize credit impairment for many financial instruments measured 
at amortized cost. The new model for current expected credit losses (“CECL”) will require the 
Company to recognize an estimate of credit losses expected to occur over the remaining life of the 
financial instruments that are within the scope of the update, including accounts receivable and 
certain settlement processing assets, each of which are short-term in nature. Under current GAAP, 
credit losses on these financial instruments are not recognized until their occurrence is deemed to 
be probable. The guidance will become effective for the Company on January 1, 2023. In general, 
the new guidance will require modified retrospective application to all outstanding financial assets 
that are within the scope of the update, with a cumulative-effect adjustment, if any, recorded to 
retained earnings as of the date of adoption. The Company is evaluating the impact of adoption of 
this ASU on its financial statements. 
 
In August 2016 and November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 
230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, and ASU 2016-18, Statement of 
Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash,” respectively, which updates the guidance as to how 
restricted cash, certain cash receipts, and certain cash payments should be presented and classified. 
The updates are intended to reduce diversity in practice. The amendments are effective for fiscal 
years and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. The Company early adopted these ASUs effective January 1, 2018. The impact 
of adoption was not material to the Company’s financial statements. 
 
In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use 
Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud 
Computing Arrangement That Is a Service Contract.” The amendments in this update align the 
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a 
service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or 
obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an internal-use software 
license). Accordingly, the amendments require an entity (customer) in a hosting arrangement that 
is a service contract to follow the guidance in Subtopic 350-40 to determine which implementation 
costs to capitalize as an asset related to the service contract and which costs to expense. The 
amendments in this update are effective for the Company for annual reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 
2021. Early adoption of the amendments in this update is permitted, including adoption in any 
interim period, for all entities. The amendments in this update should be applied either 
retrospectively or prospectively to all implementation costs incurred after the date of adoption. 
The Company is evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on its financial statements.  



BankCard USA Merchant Services, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

17 

3. Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following: 
 
December 31, 2019 2018 
  
Computer equipment $ 184,145 $ 169,817 
Furniture 355,479 342,533 
Leasehold improvements 1,129,507 1,129,597 
   
 1,669,131 1,641,947 
   
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (507,349) (227,812) 
  
Property and equipment, net $ 1,161,782 $ 1,414,135 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was 
$279,537 and $204,359, respectively. 
 
4. Intangible Asset 
 
On November 1, 2018, the Company acquired the proprietary internet age verification software 
application known as AgeChecker.Net (“AgeChecker”) for total purchase consideration of 
$1,500,000. The transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition and all of the $1,500,000 
purchase price plus transaction expenses of $36,052 was allocated to the AgeChecker software 
intangible asset. The AgeChecker software is being amortized on a straight-line basis over an 
estimated useful life of 5 years. Gross accumulated amortization for the AgeChecker software 
intangible asset as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $358,412 and $51,202, respectively. 
 
Intangible assets also include the AgeChecker.com domain name that the Company acquired on 
February 19, 2019 for total purchase consideration of $20,025. This transaction has been accounted 
for as an asset acquisition and all of the $20,025 purchase price was allocated to the 
AgeChecker.com domain intangible asset. The AgeChecker.com domain is being amortized on a 
straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of 15 years. Gross accumulated amortization for the 
AgeChecker.com domain intangible asset as of December 31, 2019 was $1,148. 
 
Gross accumulated amortization for the AgeChecker software and AgeChecker.com domain 
intangible assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $359,560 and $51,202, respectively. 
 
Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $308,358 and 
$51,202, respectively. 
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The estimated future annual amortization expense for intangible assets for the next five years are 
as follows at December 31, 2019: 
 
  
  
2020 $ 308,545 
2021 308,545 
2022 308,545 
2023 257,345 
2024 1,335 
  
 $ 1,184,315 
  
5. Other Assets 
 
Other assets consist of the following: 
 
December 31, 2019 2018 
  
Deposits with sponsoring banks $ 250,000 $ 250,000 
Security deposits 42,871 43,634 
  
 $ 292,871 $ 293,634 
 
The deposits with Sponsoring Banks are interest-bearing accounts held by the Company’s Sponsoring 
Banks for the benefit of the Company. The Sponsoring Banks may withdraw funds from the account 
for any losses suffered or incurred by the bank in connection with (1) merchant chargebacks, 
assessments or charges made by VISA or MasterCard, (2) any payable by the Company to the 
Sponsoring Banks, or (3) any charges or assessments by VISA or MasterCard against the Company. 
The Company is required to replenish any funds withdrawn from the deposit accounts.  
 
6. Promissory Note 
 
On November 1, 2018, the Company acquired AgeChecker.Net from Lion Industries International, 
Inc. for a total consideration of $1,500,000 (see Note 4); the Company paid Lion Industries 
International, Inc. $900,000 in cash at close, and issued a promissory note for the remaining 
$600,000 balance. 
 
This promissory note was due on or before July 1, 2019. The promissory note was paid by the 
Company in full on June 25, 2019. 
 
7. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Company leases its office under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires July 2025. Certain 
leases include rent escalations and renewal options. Future minimum rental payments under the 
non-cancelable operating leases are as follows: 
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Years ending December 31, Amount 
  
2020 $ 439,413 
2021 452,595 
2022 466,173 
2023 480,158 
2024 494,563 
2025 295,069 
  
 $ 2,627,971 
 
The Company recognizes rent expense for operating leases with rent escalation clauses on a straight-
line basis over the applicable lease term. The deferred rent liability on the accompanying balance 
sheet represents the cumulative amount of rent expense recognized in excess of rental payments 
made in cash. Rent expense for its office lease for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 
was $290,756 (net of lease incentive amortization of $135,373) and $344,001 (net of lease incentive 
amortization of $94,024), respectively. 
 
Bank Sponsoring Agreements 
 
Under VISA and MasterCard program rules, only member banks are allowed to directly process 
bankcard transactions through their network as the Company’s Sponsoring Banks are member banks. 
The Sponsoring Bank agreements generally expire either annually or every two years and are subject 
to automatic renewal for one- or two-year terms, respectively, unless canceled by either party. 
 
The agreement permits the funds to be routed under the Sponsoring Bank’s control and 
identification numbers to clear credit bank card transactions through Visa and MasterCard. The 
sponsorship agreement also enables the Company to settle funds between cardholders and 
merchants by delivering funding files to the Sponsoring Bank, which in turn transfers settlement 
funds to the merchants’ bank accounts. These restrictions place the settlement assets and 
obligations under the control of the Sponsoring Bank.  
 
The sponsorship agreement requires, among other things, that the Company abide by the by-laws 
and regulations of the Visa and MasterCard networks. In addition, the agreement requires the 
Company maintain a reserve account (see Note 5).  
 
Under the terms of the agreement, in the event that one of the Company’s merchant customers is 
unable to settle charge-backs, resulting from valid customer disputes, the Company is required to 
fulfill any remaining obligation, up to the gross amount paid by the customer. As the Company’s 
customer base consists predominantly of small retail merchants that fulfill obligations at the time 
of payment, the Company’s cost of fulfilling this obligation has not historically been material. The 
Company further mitigates this risk by withholding a percentage of amounts due to high risk 
merchants that collect significant amounts of customer funds in advance of delivery or performance. 
Costs of fulfilling customer chargeback obligations are accrued when such amounts become probable 
and estimable. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded bad debt 
expense of $11,347 and $10,295, respectively, in relation to the fulfillment of merchant-related 
fees and expense that are deemed uncollectible.  
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Claims and Litigations 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has been and will become involved in certain legal 
claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, the disposition of legal matters pending against 
the Company will not have a materially adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations, 
or cash flows. 
 
The Company collects and stores sensitive data about its merchant customers and bankcard holders. 
If the Company’s network security is breached or sensitive merchant or cardholder data is 
misappropriated, the Company could be exposed to assessments, fines or litigation costs. 
 
8. Cash Flow Presentation and Supplemental Disclosures 
 
The statement of cash flow is presented using the indirect method, which reconciles net earnings 
to cash flows from operating activities. The reconciliation adjustments include the removal of timing 
differences between the occurrence of operating receipts and payments and their recognition to 
net earnings. The adjustments also remove cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, 
which are presented separately from operating activities. 
 
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company paid $146,583 and $62,506, 
respectively, for state income taxes. 
 
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities 
 
As of and during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company completed tenant improvements 
to its leased corporate headquarters office. The lessor provided a tenant improvement allowance 
of $981,517 and as of December 31, 2018 the lessor had paid for improvements up to the total 
allowance available. The $981,517 of leasehold improvements paid by the lessor on behalf of the 
Company during the year ended December 31, 2018 are included in property and equipment, net in 
the accompanying balance sheet. The $981,517 of tenant leasehold improvements paid by the lessor 
during 2018 are excluded from the purchase of property within investing activities on the 
accompanying statement of cash flows since they were not paid directly by the Company and 
resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability. 
 
During 2018, the Company acquired AgeChecker.net from Lion Industries International, Inc. for a 
total consideration of $1,500,000 (see Note 4); the Company paid Lion Industries International, Inc. 
$900,000 in cash at close and $36,052 in transaction costs. The Company issued a promissory note 
for the remaining $600,000 balance for the acquisition of AgeChecker.net (see Note 6). 
 
9. Subsequent Events 
 
The Company evaluated subsequent events through the time of issuance of this financial report on 
March 12, 2021. 
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COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency 
because of a new strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19 Outbreak”) and the risks to the international 
community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified 
the COVID-19 Outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally. 
 
On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Security (CARES) Act (“CARES Act”). The CARES Act, among other things, includes provisions relating 
to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of employer side social security payments, net 
operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications to the net 
interest deduction limitations, increased limitations on qualified charitable contributions, and 
technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property. It also 
appropriated funds for the Small Business Administration (“SBA”) Paycheck Protection Program 
(“PPP”) loans that are forgivable in certain situations to promote continued employment, as well 
as Economic Injury Disaster Loans to provide liquidity to small businesses harmed by COVID-19.  
 
In March 2020, the Company started to see a decrease in demand for its services which recovered 
within a short time frame. As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will 
have on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity, operations, customers, industry and workforce 
Given the continual evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, 
the Company is not able to estimate the full effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its future results 
of operations, financial position and cash flows. 
 
Paycheck Protection Program Loan 
 
On April 29, 2020, the Company received a loan from Pacific Western Bank in the amount of $659,220 
under the PPP established under the CARES Act. The application for these funds required the 
Company to, in good faith, certify that the current economic uncertainty made the loan request 
necessary to support the ongoing operations of the Company. This certification further required the 
Company to take into account the current business activity and the ability to access other sources 
of liquidity sufficient to support ongoing operations in a manner that is not significantly detrimental 
to the business. The receipt of these funds, and the forgiveness of the loan attendant to these 
funds, is dependent on the Company having initially qualified for the loan and qualifying for the 
forgiveness of such loan based on our future adherence to the forgiveness criteria. The loan may be 
forgiven to the extent proceeds of the loan are used for eligible expenditures such as payroll and 
other expenses described in the CARES act. The loan bears interest at a rate of 1.0% and is payable 
in monthly installments of principal and interest starting in the seventh month from the month the 
note is dated and maturing 24 months after the note is dated. Payments must be made on the 29th 
calendar day in the months they are due. No payments have been made to the PPP loan, and the 
Company’s PPP full forgiveness application is under review by Pacific Western Bank as of January 
27, 2021.  
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Amendment to the Prevent All Cigarette Trafficking (PACT) Act 
 
The most recent COVID-19 relief bill signed into law by U.S. Congress on December 27, 2020 included 
an amendment to the Prevent All Cigarette Trafficking (“PACT”) Act, which added certain regulatory 
requirements to the Company’s merchants who supply e-cigarettes to the consumer marketplace. 
While the Company retains both B2B and B2C relationships in this industry, it’s undetermined what 
impact, if any, the Company will experience as its merchants implement the required changes to 
comply with the PACT Act. 
 
With the exception of the aforementioned events, the Company is not aware of any other significant 
events that would have a material impact on its financial statements. 



B-1 

APPENDIX B – UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANKCARD USA 









































C-1 

C

CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION 

Dated: March 31, 2021 

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated by reference, as supplemented by the foregoing, constitutes full, 
true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by the short form prospectus and this supplement as 
required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces and territories of Canada. 

(“Signed”) Michael Reinhart (“Signed”) Michael Murphy
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(“Signed”) Gordon McMillan (“Signed”) David Guebert
Director Director
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CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS 

Dated: March 31, 2021 

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated by reference, 
as supplemented by the foregoing, constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by the 
short form prospectus and this supplement as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces and territories of Canada. 

SCOTIA CAPITAL INC. EIGHT CAPITAL 

(“Signed”) By: “John Medland” 
Director 

(“Signed”) By: “Michelle Goh” 
Principal, Managing Director 

CANACCORD GENUITY CORP. DESJARDINS SECURITIES INC. 

(“Signed”) By: “Myles Hiscock” 
Managing Director 

(“Signed”) By: “Andrew Kennedy” 
Managing Director, Investment Banking 

RAYMOND JAMES LTD. 

(“Signed”) By: “Jimmy Leung” 
Managing Director 

ECHELON WEALTH PARTNERS INC. 

(“Signed”) By: “Asad Said” 
Managing Director, Co-Head of Capital Markets 

BEACON SECURITIES LIMITED 

(“Signed”) By: “Justin Gilman” 
Director 
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This short form base shelf prospectus has been filed under legislation in each of the provinces and territories of Canada that permits certain 
information about these securities to be determined after this prospectus has become final and that permits the omission from this prospectus of 
that information. Unless an exemption from the prospectus delivery requirement has been granted, or is otherwise available, the legislation 
requires the delivery to purchasers of a prospectus supplement containing the omitted information within a specified period of time after agreeing 
to purchase any of these securities. 

No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. This short form 
base shelf prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale 
and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. Information has been incorporated by reference in this short form base shelf 
prospectus from documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by 
reference may be obtained on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of Quisitive Technology Solutions, Inc., at 161 Bay Street, 
Suite 2325, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1, telephone (416) 625-5064 and are also available electronically at www.sedar.com.

SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS

New Issue June 12, 2020 

QUISITIVE TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, INC.

$100,000,000

Common Shares 
Debt Securities 

Subscription Receipts 
Warrants 

Units 

Quisitive Technology Solutions, Inc. (“Quisitive” or the “Corporation”) may from time to time offer and issue the 
following securities: (i) common shares of the Corporation (the “Common Shares”); (ii) debt securities of the 
Corporation (“Debt Securities”); (iii) subscription receipts (“Subscription Receipts”) exchangeable for Common 
Shares and/or other securities of the Corporation; (iv) warrants exercisable to acquire Common Shares and/or other 
securities of the Corporation (“Warrants”); and (v) securities comprised of more than one of Common Shares, Debt 
Securities, Subscription Receipts and/or Warrants offered together as a unit (“Units”), or any combination thereof 
having an offer price of up to $100,000,000 aggregate (or the equivalent thereof, at the date of issue, in any other 
currency or currencies, as the case may be) at any time during the 25-month period that this short form base shelf 
prospectus (including any amendments hereto, the “Prospectus”) remains valid. The Common Shares, Debt 
Securities, Subscription Receipts, Warrants and Units (collectively, the “Securities”) offered hereby may be offered 
separately or together, in separate series, in amounts, at prices and on terms to be set forth in one or more prospectus 
supplements (collectively or individually, as the case may be, “Prospectus Supplements”). In addition, Securities 
may be offered and issued in consideration for the acquisition of other businesses, assets or securities by the 
Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation. The consideration for any such acquisition may consist of any of the 
Securities separately, a combination of Securities or any combination of, among other things, Securities, cash and 
assumption of liabilities.  

The specific terms of any offering of Securities will be set forth in the applicable Prospectus Supplement and may 
include, without limitation, where applicable: (i) in the case of Common Shares, the number of Common Shares 
being offered, the offering price, whether the Common Shares are being offered for cash, and any other terms 
specific to the Common shares being offered; (ii) in the case of Debt Securities, the specific designation, aggregate 
principal amount, the currency or the currency unit for which the Debt Securities may be purchased, maturity, 
interest provisions, authorized denominations, offering price, whether the Debt Securities are being offered for cash, 
the covenants, the events of default, any terms for redemption or retraction, any exchange or conversion rights 
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attached to the Debt Securities, and any other terms specific to the Debt Securities being offered; (iii) in the case of 
Subscription Receipts, the number of Subscription Receipts being offered, the offering price, whether the 
Subscription Receipts are being offered for cash, the terms, conditions and procedures for the exchange of the 
Subscription Receipts into or for Common Shares and/or other securities of the Corporation and any other terms 
specific to the Subscription Receipts being offered; (iv) in the case of Warrants, the number of such Warrants 
offered, the offering price, whether the Warrants are being offered for cash, the terms, conditions and procedures for 
the exercise of such Warrants into or for Common Share and/or other securities of the Corporation and any other 
specific terms; and (v) in the case of Units, the number of Units being offered, the offering price, the terms of the 
Common Shares, Debt Securities, Subscription Receipts and/or Warrants underlying the Units, and any other 
specific terms. The Corporation does not intend on issuing “novel” securities pursuant to this Prospectus, as such 
term is defined under National Instrument 44-102 – Shelf Distributions (“NI 44-102”). 

All shelf information permitted under applicable securities legislation to be omitted from this Prospectus will be 
contained in one or more Prospectus Supplements that will be delivered to purchasers together with this Prospectus, 
unless an exemption from the prospectus delivery requirements has been granted. Each Prospectus Supplement will 
be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus as of the date of such Prospectus Supplement and only for the 
purposes of the distribution of the Securities covered by that Prospectus Supplement. 

This Prospectus does not qualify for issuance Debt Securities, or Securities convertible or exchangeable into Debt 
Securities, in respect of which the payment of principal and/or interest may be determined, in whole or in part, by 
reference to one or more underlying interests including, for example, an equity or debt security, a statistical measure 
of economic or financial performance including, without limitation, any currency, consumer price or mortgage 
index, or the price or value of one or more commodities, indices or other items, or any other item or formula, or any 
combination or basket of the foregoing items. This Prospectus may qualify for issuance Debt Securities, or 
Securities convertible or exchangeable into Debt Securities in respect of which the payment of principal and/or 
interest may be determined, in whole or in part, by reference to published rates of a central banking authority or one 
or more financial institutions, such as a prime rate or bankers’ acceptance rate, or to recognized market benchmark 
interest rates such as CDOR (the Canadian Dollar Offered Rate) or LIBOR (the London Interbank Offered Rate), 
and/or convertible into or exchangeable for Common Shares. 

The Corporation may sell the Securities to or through underwriters or dealers purchasing as principals and may also 
sell the Securities to one or more purchasers directly, through applicable statutory exemptions, or through agents 
designated by the Corporation from time to time. The Prospectus Supplement relating to a particular offering of 
Securities will identify each underwriter, dealer or agent engaged in connection with the offering and sale of the 
Securities, as well as the method of distribution and the terms of the offering of such Securities, including the net 
proceeds to the Corporation and, to the extent applicable, any fees, discounts, concessions or any other 
compensation payable to underwriters, dealers or agents and any other material terms. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

In connection with any offering of the Securities, other than an “at-the-market distribution” (unless otherwise 
specified in the relevant Prospectus Supplement), the underwriters or agents may over-allot or effect transactions 
that stabilize or maintain the market price of the offered Securities at a level above that which might otherwise 
prevail on the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be interrupted or discontinued at any time. See 
“Plan of Distribution”. 

No underwriter or dealer involved in an “at-the-market distribution” under this Prospectus, no affiliate of such an 
underwriter or dealer and no person or Corporation acting jointly or in concert with such an underwriter or dealer 
will over-allot securities in connection with such distribution or effect any other transactions that are intended to 
stabilize or maintain the market price of the Securities. 

The outstanding Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV”) under 
the symbol “QUIS”. On June 11, 2020, the last full trading day prior to the date of this Prospectus, the closing price 
per Common Share on the TSXV was $0.82. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Prospectus 
Supplement, the Debt Securities, Subscription Receipts, Warrants and Units will not be listed on any 
securities exchange. There is no market through which these Securities may be sold and purchasers may not 
be able to resell such Securities purchased under this Prospectus. This may affect the pricing of the Securities 
in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the Securities, 
and the extent of issuer regulation.  
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Investing in Securities involves a high degree of risk. A prospective purchaser should therefore review this 
Prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in their entirety and carefully consider the risk 
factors described under “Risk Factors” prior to investing in such Securities.  

No underwriter, agent, or dealer has been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus or performed any 
review of the contents of this Prospectus. 

The head office of the Corporation is located at Suite 2325, 161 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1, and the 
principal office is located at Suite 1000, 1431 Greenway Drive, Irving, Texas. 

Michael Reinhart, the President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Corporation, and Philip Sorgen, a 
director of the Corporation, each reside outside of Canada and has each appointed Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP, 
Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 3C2, as his agent for service of process in 
Canada. Prospective investors of Securities are advised that it may not be possible for investors to enforce 
judgments obtained in Canada against any person that resides outside of Canada, even if such person has appointed 
an agent for service of process. 
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ABOUT THIS SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS 

An investor should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus (including the documents incorporated 
by reference herein) and is not entitled to rely on parts of the information contained in this Prospectus (including the 
documents incorporated by reference herein) to the exclusion of others. The Corporation has not authorized anyone 
to provide investors with additional or different information. The Corporation is not offering to sell the Securities in 
any jurisdictions where the offer or sale of the Securities is not permitted. The information contained in this 
Prospectus (including the documents incorporated by reference herein) is accurate only as of the date of this 
Prospectus (or the date of the document incorporated by reference herein, as applicable), regardless of the time of 
delivery of this Prospectus or any sale of the Common Shares, Debt Securities, Subscription Receipts, Warrants 
and/or Units. The Corporation’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed 
since the date of this Prospectus. 

MEANING OF CERTAIN REFERENCES AND CURRENCY PRESENTATION 

References to dollars or “$” are to Canadian currency unless otherwise indicated. All references to “US$” refer to 
United States dollars. On June 11, 2020, the daily exchange rate as quoted by the Bank of Canada was 
US$1.00=C$1.3553 or C$1.00=US$0.7378. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Prospectus to the “Corporation” refer to the Corporation 
and its subsidiary entities on a consolidated basis. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This Prospectus contains “forward-looking statements” or “forward-looking information” within the meaning of 
applicable securities legislation (collectively referred to herein as “forward-looking information” or “forward-
looking statements”). Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, statements with respect to future 
business strategy, competitive strengths, and goals; the expansion and growth of the Corporation’s business, 
operations and plans; the intention to scale operations and make technology investments; new revenue streams; the 
completion by the Corporation of contemplated acquisitions; the expansion into additional markets; expectations of 
market size and growth in Canada and the United States; expectations for other economic, business, regulatory 
and/or competitive factors related to the Corporation or the computing and technology industries generally; and 
other events or conditions that may occur in the future. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be 
identified by the use of words and phrases such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, 
“estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, or “believes” or variations (including negative variations) of such 
words and phrases, or statements that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “should”, “might” 
or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved. 

Forward-looking information involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause 
the actual results, performance or achievements of the Corporation to be materially different from any future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among 
others, changes in technology, customer markets and demand for the Corporation’s services; the efficacy of the 
Corporation’s software and product offering; sales and margin risk; acquisition and integration risks; dependence on 
economic and market conditions including, but not limited to, access to equity or debt capital on favourable terms if 
required; changes in market dynamics including business relationships and competition; information system risks; 
risks associated with the introduction of new products; product design risk; risks related to the Corporation being a 
holding company; environmental risks; customer and vendor risks; credit risks; tax and insurance related risks; risks 
of legislative changes; risks relating to remote operations; key executive risk; risk of litigation risks; risks related to 
contracts with third party service providers; risks related to the enforceability of contracts; risks related to the novel 
coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) pandemic; risks related to the economy generally; the limited operating history 
of the Corporation; reliance on the expertise and judgment of senior management of the Corporation; risks related to 
proprietary intellectual property and potential infringement by third parties; risks relating to financing activities 
including leverage; risks relating to the management of growth; increased costs associated with the Corporation 
becoming a publicly traded company; increasing competition in the industry; risks relating to energy costs; reliance 
on key inputs, suppliers and skilled labour; cyber-security risks;  risks related to quantifying the Corporation’s target 
market; risks related to industry growth and consolidation; fraudulent activity by employees, contractors and 
consultants; conflicts of interest; risks related to the cost structures of certain projects; risks relating to certain 
remedies being limited and the difficulty of enforcement of judgments and effect service outside of Canada; risks 
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related to future dispositions; sales by existing shareholders; the limited market for securities of the Corporation; 
price volatility of the common shares of the Corporation; no guarantee regarding use of available funds; currency 
fluctuations; other factors beyond the Corporation’s control; and as well as those factors included herein and 
elsewhere in the Corporation’s public disclosure. Readers are cautioned that the foregoing list is not exhaustive of 
all factors and assumptions which may have been used. Although the Corporation has attempted to identify 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking 
information, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can 
be no assurance that such information will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ 
materially from those anticipated in such information. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on 
forward-looking information. The forward-looking information contained herein is presented for the purposes of 
assisting investors in understanding the Corporation’s expected financial and operating performance and the 
Corporation’s plans and objectives and may not be appropriate for other purposes. The Corporation does not 
undertake to update any forward-looking information, except in accordance with applicable securities laws.  

This list is not exhaustive of the factors that may affect any of the Corporation’s forward-looking statements. 
Although the Corporation believes its expectations are based upon reasonable assumptions and have attempted to 
identify important factors that could cause actual actions, events or results to differ materially from those described 
in forward-looking statements, there may be other factors that cause actions, events or results not to be as 
anticipated, estimated or intended. See the section entitled “Risk Factors” below, and in the section entitled “Risk 
Factors” in the AIF (as defined herein), for additional risk factors that could cause results to differ materially from 
forward-looking statements.  

Investors are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking information. The forward-looking information 
contained herein are made as of the date of this Prospectus and, accordingly, are subject to change after such date. 
The Corporation disclaims any intent or obligation to update publicly or otherwise revise any forward-looking 
statements or the foregoing list of assumptions or factors, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise, except in accordance with applicable securities laws. Investors are urged to read the Corporation’s filings 
with Canadian securities regulatory agencies, which can be viewed online under the Corporation’s issuer profile on 
the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (“SEDAR”) at www.sedar.com.  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The financial statements of the Corporation are presented in United States dollars and such financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless otherwise indicated, any 
other financial information included or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus has been prepared in accordance 
with IFRS. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Information has been incorporated by reference in this Prospectus from documents filed with the securities 
commissions or similar regulatory authorities in Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference 
may be obtained on request without charge from the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation, at Suite 2325, 161 Bay 
Street, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1, and are also available electronically at www.sedar.com. 

As of the date hereof, the following documents, filed with the various securities commissions or similar authorities 
in each of the provinces and territories of Canada are specifically incorporated by reference into and form an integral 
part of this Prospectus: 

1. the annual information form (“AIF”) of the Corporation dated May 15, 2020 for the year ended December 
31, 2019; 

2. the audited consolidated financial statements of the Corporation as at, and for the year ended December 31, 
2019 and 2018, together with the notes thereto and the independent auditors’ report thereon; 

3. the management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and financial performance (“MD&A”) of 
the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2019; 
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4. the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Corporation for the three months 
ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, together with the notes thereto (the “Interim Financial Statements”);  

5. the MD&A of the Corporation for the three months ended March 31, 2020; 

6. the material change report dated January 10, 2020 in respect of the acquisition by the Corporation of Menlo 
Technologies, Inc. (“Menlo”); 

7. the material change report dated March 5, 2020 in respect of the extension of the Corporation’s existing 
US$5.2 million loan (the “Gideon Loan”) with Gideon, LLC; 

8. the re-filed business acquisition report dated June 11, 2020 (the “Business Acquisition Report”) in respect 
of the acquisition by the Corporation of Corporate Renaissance Group Inc. (“CRG”); and 

9. the management information circular of the Corporation dated March 18, 2019 (the “Circular”), prepared 
in connection with the annual and special meeting of shareholders of the Corporation held on April 23, 
2019. 

All material change reports (excluding confidential material change reports), AIFs, annual financial statements and 
the auditors’ report thereon and related MD&A, interim financial statements and related MD&A, information 
circulars, business acquisition reports, any news release issued by the Corporation that specifically states it is to be 
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus and any other documents as may be required to be incorporated by 
reference herein under applicable Canadian securities laws which are filed by the Corporation with a securities 
commission or any similar authority in Canada after the date of this Prospectus, during the 25-month period this 
Prospectus remains valid, shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus. 

Upon a new interim financial report and related MD&A of the Corporation being filed with the applicable securities 
regulatory authorities during the currency of this Prospectus, the previous interim financial report and related 
MD&A of the Corporation most recently filed shall be deemed no longer to be incorporated by reference into this 
Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder. Upon new annual financial statements and 
related MD&A of the Corporation being filed with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the 
currency of this Prospectus, the previous annual financial statements and related MD&A and the previous interim 
financial report and related MD&A of the Corporation most recently filed shall be deemed no longer to be 
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder. Upon a 
new AIF of the Corporation being filed with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the currency of 
this Prospectus, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the following documents shall be deemed no longer 
to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder: 
(i) the previous AIF; (ii) material change reports filed by the Corporation prior to the end of the financial year in 
respect of which the new AIF is filed; (iii) business acquisition reports filed by the Corporation for acquisitions 
completed prior to the beginning of the financial year in respect of which the new AIF is filed; and (iv) any 
information circular of the Corporation filed prior to the beginning of the Corporation’s financial year in respect of 
which the new AIF is filed. Upon a new management information circular prepared in connection with an annual 
general meeting of the Corporation being filed with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the 
currency of this Prospectus, the previous management information circular prepared in connection with an annual 
general meeting of the Corporation shall be deemed no longer to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus 
for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder. 

A Prospectus Supplement to this Prospectus containing the specific variable terms in respect of an offering of the 
Securities will be delivered to purchasers of such Securities together with this Prospectus, unless an exemption from 
the prospectus delivery requirements has been granted or is otherwise available, and will be deemed to be 
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus as of the date of such Prospectus Supplement only for the purposes of 
the offering of the Securities covered by such Prospectus Supplement. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any statement contained in this Prospectus or in a 
document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or 
superseded, for purposes of this Prospectus, to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other 
subsequently filed document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or 
supersedes such prior statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified 
or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or 
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supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement shall not be deemed an admission for any 
purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue 
statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is 
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any 
statement so modified or superseded shall thereafter neither constitute, nor be deemed to constitute, a part of 
this Prospectus, except as so modified or superseded. 

THE CORPORATION 

The Corporation was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) on August 12, 2011 under the name 
“Nebo Capital Corp.” (“Nebo”). On March 2, 2012, Nebo completed an initial public offering by way of a capital 
pool company prospectus. On May 1, 2017, Nebo was continued into British Columbia under the Business 
Corporations Act (British Columbia). On August 9, 2018, the Corporation completed its “Qualifying Transaction” in 
accordance with the applicable policies of the TSXV and pursuant to the terms of a definitive business combination 
agreement among Fusion Agiletech Holdings, Ltd. (“Fusion Agiletech”), Nebo, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Nebo dated June 25, 2018, as amended July 28, 2018, which provided for the acquisition of all of the issued and 
outstanding common shares of Fusion Agiletech (the “Business Combination”). In connection with the completion 
of the Business Combination, which constituted a reverse takeover of Nebo by Fusion Agiletech, Nebo filed Articles 
of Amendment to effect a name change from “Nebo Capital Corp.” to “Quisitive Technology Solutions, Inc.” The 
Common Shares commenced trading on the TSXV on August 13, 2018 under the symbol “QUIS”. 

Summary Description of the Business 

The Corporation was established as a strategic Microsoft National Solution Provider in the U.S. and has strong 
brand identity within Microsoft and its partner ecosystem. In addition, Quisitive’s CEO, Michael Reinhart, and 
Quisitive’s leadership team have strong executive Microsoft relationships as well as acquisition target executive 
relationships. The Corporation’s brand identity along with these senior executive relationships is considered a key 
pillar to the consolidation and scale partnership development.   

The Corporation is a full-service digital technology consulting firm whose mission is to acquire and integrate 
companies to become the leading provider of Microsoft professional services in North America.  Microsoft has more 
than 64,000 cloud partners with over 30 percent of Microsoft’s partners joining the network in the past year, and 
over 6,000 partners added each month.  With Microsoft generating more than 95% of its business through its partner 
ecosystem, Microsoft is looking to make focused investments in a limited number of “scale partners”. The 
Corporation is one of 35 companies that have earned the designation of National Solution Provider.  Most National 
Solutions Providers are regionally based and have limited ability to expand services to scale to Microsoft’s 
addressable market. The Corporation plans to create its own tier within the NSP designation as the premier 
Microsoft Solution Provider in North America, providing scale through acquisition to address the growing demand 
for Microsoft Azure based services. 

As a digital technology consulting company, the Corporation is uniquely positioned to help companies through their 
digital transformation journey. The foundation of the Corporation’s approach, and the principal products and 
services the Corporation delivers, are guided by its focused mission and strategy.  

More detailed information regarding the business of the Corporation as well as its operations and assets can be 
found in the AIF and other documents incorporated by reference herein, as supplemented by the disclosure herein. 
See “Documents Incorporated by Reference” and “Recent Developments”. 

Recent Developments 

On January 2, 2020, pursuant to the terms of a stock purchase agreement dated December 9, 2019 among Gary 
Prioste and William Chang (the “Sellers”), the Corporation, Menlo, and Gary Prioste as the Sellers’ representative 
(the “Menlo Stock Purchase Agreement”), the Corporation acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares (the 
“Purchased Menlo Shares”) of Menlo, a leading provider of Microsoft technology, corporate consulting, and 
business software and systems based in Menlo Park, California, specializing in cloud development, data analytics, 
mobile technology and enterprise business application services.  
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The consideration for the Purchased Shares consisted of the following: (i) US$3,296,000 in cash, payable to the 
Sellers; (ii) the issuance to the Sellers of 19,784,981 Common Shares; and (iii) the issuance to former 
securityholders of Menlo of convertible debentures (the “Convertible Debentures”) with an aggregate face value of 
US$5,000,000 accruing at a rate of interest of 10.0% per annum compounded on an annual basis and payable 
annually, having a term of up to 36 months from the closing date of the acquisition. The holders of the Convertible 
Debentures may, at their option, elect to convert the principal outstanding and all accrued and unpaid interest owing 
thereunder into Common Shares at a deemed price of C$0.20 per Common Share at any time on or prior to the 
maturity date of the Convertible Debentures, and the Corporation, at its sole discretion, will have the option to 
automatically convert the Convertible Debentures if the volume weighted average trading price of the Common 
Shares on the TSXV is greater than or equal to C$0.40 for 20 consecutive trading days. The former securityholders 
of Menlo may also be entitled to additional contingent consideration in the form of a performance earn-out if Menlo 
achieves certain financial thresholds during the three-year period following the closing of the acquisition. The 
amount of the earn-out is a base maximum of US$3,500,000, plus an additional incentive amount of US$1,000,000 
based on exceeding growth targets during the first two years. The earn-out is payable 50% in cash and 50% in 
Common Shares. In accordance with the terms of the Menlo Stock Purchase Agreement, the Corporation will not 
issue any Common Shares to former securityholders of Menlo to the extent that after giving effect to such issuance 
any former securityholder, alone or together with any of its affiliates and persons acting jointly or in concert with 
such securityholder would beneficially own in excess of 19.99% of the number of Common Shares outstanding 
immediately after giving effect to such issuance. The funds representing the cash payment of the acquisition of 
Menlo, acquisition fees, and working capital for the Corporation were obtained pursuant to a 12-month 
US$7,500,000 demand loan (the “Demand Loan”) from an investment company with interest accruing based on the 
Bank of Montreal Prime Rate plus 8.05% per annum, calculated and payable monthly, with the principal amount to 
be repaid on demand or within 12 months from the date of initial advance of funds. The loan is a direct obligation of 
Menlo guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of Menlo, and is secured by: (i) a first ranking general security interest 
granted by Menlo and each of the guarantors over all of their respective present and future personal property; and 
(ii) a pledge of the issued and outstanding shares of Menlo acquired by the Corporation. On January 21, 2020, Gary 
Prioste converted an aggregate of US$300,000 of Convertible Debentures into 1,968,649 Common Shares. 

On February 26, 2020, the Corporation extended the Gideon Loan for an additional six months until September 25, 
2020. All other terms and provisions with respect to the Gideon Loan remain unamended.  

On March 24, 2020, the Corporation announced the release of LedgerPay, a secure, Microsoft cloud-based payment 
processing and data insights product platform. LedgerPay is a cloud-based payment processing platform to 
incorporate data collection and analysis with each transaction, thereby transforming payment transactions into 
beneficial, profitable, and actionable experiences for brick-and-mortar merchants such as grocers, quick serve 
restaurants and big box retailers and their customers. 

On March 26, 2020, the Corporation announced a strategic partnership and software licensing agreement with 
Rev19, LLC (“Rev19”), a merchant services and financial technology company. Terms of the agreement include a 
software license as well as annual license support and maintenance, and annual production support services. Under 
the terms of the agreement, Rev19 will license LedgerPay’s payment processing and payment tokenization platform, 
leveraging the latest technology to provide added value and insights to its merchant base. The capabilities provided 
by LedgerPay's product suite empower Rev19’s merchants to utilize enhanced performance with better control of 
their financial cost structure due to its cloud-enabled architecture. LedgerPay empowers Rev19 to connect its 
merchants with consumer insights previously unavailable, offering merchants the ability to provide customers with 
improved experiences in stores and restaurants. 

On April 7, 2020, the Corporation announced a strategic Go-to-Market relationship with dunnhumby Limited, a 
global leader in customer data science. The LedgerPay-dunnhumby offering is a novel service for brick-and-mortar 
merchants such as quick service restaurants (QSRs), grocers, and other retailers who want to encourage repeat and 
more valuable sales by capitalizing on past purchases at the point of sale (POS). It combines the power of an 
innovative payment processing platform with tokenization to offer merchants an unprecedented level of precise, 
secure, and actionable customer data derived from real-time, non-cash POS transaction data. 

On May 1, 2020, Quisitive, LLC (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation) and Menlo entered into two 
separate note arrangements with Bank of America and Cross River Bank (collectively, the “Lenders”), respectively, 
to obtain unsecured loans for an aggregate of US$2,929,000 (collectively, the “Loans”) made under the United 
States Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”). The PPP is a program organized by the U.S. Small Business 
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Administration established under the recently-enacted Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the 
“CARES Act”). The Loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum with a maturity date of two years from 
the date of the Loans. Interest payments are deferred for the first six months, and the Loans will be forgiven in their 
entirety provided that the proceeds from the Loans are used by Quisitive, LLC and Menlo to cover payroll costs, rent 
and utilities during the eight-week period following the origination dates of the Loans. As federal authorities 
continue to update relevant policies and guidelines regarding the PPP, including some that have retroactive effect, 
the Corporation will continue to monitor these developments and assess any changes in the any of the Corporation’s 
subsidiaries’ eligibility for the PPP or any other subsidies or support mechanisms under the CARES Act. See “Risk 
Factors – COVID-19 Pandemic”. 

Emerging Market Issuer Disclosure 

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation does not generate any revenue from its operations in India as it is a 
labor source only. Revenue generated from CRG’s operations in the Caribbean was US$208,000 for the three 
months ended March 31, 2020, representing less than 2% of the overall revenue generated by Corporation, which is 
consistent with past quarters since the acquisition of CRG in June 2019. Although the Corporation has no significant 
business operations in emerging markets, the Corporation will provide disclosure in accordance with OSC Staff 
Notice 51-720 – Issuer Guide for Companies Operating in Emerging Markets in its prospective continuous 
disclosure filings if either the Indian or Caribbean (or any new emerging) markets become material to the 
Corporation’s operations in the future. 

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

Except for the Loans, there have not been any material changes in the share and loan capitalization of the 
Corporation since the date of the Interim Financial Statements, which are incorporated by reference in this 
Prospectus. See “The Corporation – Recent Developments”. 

As at March 31, 2020, the Corporation had a working capital deficiency of approximately US$12.8 million, and as 
at May 27, 2020, the Corporation had a working capital deficiency of approximately US$9.4 million and cash and 
cash equivalents balance of approximately US$9.3 million. The principal reasons for the Corporation’s negative 
working capital are:   

(i) the Demand Loan and a term loan in the amount of $6,000,000 (the “CRG Loan”), both entered into in 
2019, to partially fund the acquisition of CRG, in the case of the CRG Loan (of which US$492,000 is due 
in the next 12 months and therefore reflected on the balance sheet of the Corporation as a current liability) 
and Menlo, in the case of the Demand Loan, which is due on December 31, 2020, and therefore fully 
reflected on the balance sheet of the Corporation as a current liability. The Corporation and an arm’s length 
third party (the “Proposed Lender”) have entered into an indicative term sheet to refinance the 
Corporation’s existing debt, which is comprised of the Demand Loan, the CRG Loan and the Gideon Loan 
(the “Debt Consolidation”). The Debt Consolidation is subject to satisfactory due diligence, formal credit 
approval, negotiation and execution of definitive documentation and other customary conditions precedent. 
Further details with respect to the Debt Consolidation will be announced if, as and when a more definitive 
arrangement has been agreed to. The Corporation expects to complete the Debt Consolidation in July, 
2020. In the event that the Debt Consolidation does not occur, the Corporation intends to seek other 
methods of fulfilling its debt obligations which may include, without limitation, repaying some or all of the 
debt, or deferring some or all of the debt. There can be no assurances that such alternatives will be available 
to the Corporation on satisfactory terms or at all (see “Risk Factors - There is no assurance that the 
Corporation will complete the proposed Debt Consolidation”); 

(ii) an aggregate of approximately US$4.1 million in contingent earn-out obligations that will be settled 
through an issuance of Common Shares in 2020 or be deferred to the earlier of June 2021 or the completion 
of the Debt Consolidation (resulting in it no longer being an adjustment to working capital); and  

(iii) deferred revenue sales in 2020 and 2021 of approximately US$3.9 million which had been shown as a 
current liability as at March 31, 2020 but has since been, or will be, recognized as revenue, or cannot be 
recognized pursuant to applicable accounting treatment under IFRS, but is not at risk of being refunded. 
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The applicable Prospectus Supplement will describe any material change, and the effect of such material change, on 
the Corporation’s share and loan capitalization that will result from the issuance of Securities pursuant to such 
prospectus supplement. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The net proceeds to the Corporation from the sale of Securities, the proposed use of those proceeds and the specific 
business objectives which the Corporation expects to accomplish with such proceeds will be set forth in the 
applicable Prospectus Supplement relating to that offering of Securities. The Corporation expects the net proceeds to 
the Corporation from the sale of the Securities to be used to acquire IT consulting services companies, investment in 
sales and marketing initiatives, activate the LedgerPay Payment platform, and for general working capital purposes. 
The Corporation has a strong pipeline of acquisition targets and is in active dialogue with several companies, 
however, as at the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation has not entered into any letters of intent or settled the 
terms of any specific acquisition, and no specific acquisition target has been identified at this present time. See “Risk 
Factors”. 

The Corporation’s success will depend on making significant capital investments in the future. Although the 
Corporation generated negative cash flow from operating activities in its most recently completed financial year for 
which financial statements have been included in this Prospectus, the Corporation expects to generate positive cash 
from operating activities throughout 2020, and does not expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of Securities to 
fund any anticipated negative cash flow from operating activities in future periods, on the basis that Corporation has 
growing recurring revenues from its legacy businesses (including revenue in the amount of US$5,000,000 expected 
to be generated in 2020 and 2021 by LedgerPay pursuant to a software licensing arrangement agreed to in March 
2020, and future similar arrangements relating to LedgerPay that are anticipated), revenue generated from the 
acquisition of Menlo, and positive operating cash flow beginning in Q4 2019 and continuing into Q1 2020, and the 
Corporation expects that future reporting periods will remain positive with cash provided by operating activities for 
the remainder of 2020 and into 2021. See “Risk Factors”. 

Without factoring in the impact of potential future acquisitions, as at the date hereof, the Corporation expects to 
generate positive cash flow from operating activities for the next 12 months and for the three and six months ended 
June 30, 2020. See “Risk Factors”. 

Until prior to the completion of the Debt Consolidation or some other alternative transaction that results in the 
Demand Loan and the Gideon Loan no longer fully reflected on the balance sheet of the Corporation as a current 
liability, the Corporation will not issue any Securities under the initial Prospectus Supplement filed and delivered 
pursuant to this Prospectus unless the gross proceeds raised under the initial Prospectus Supplement are at least $5 
million. 

EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIO  

Earnings coverage ratios will be provided in the applicable Prospectus Supplement relating to the issuance of Debt 
Securities having a term to maturity in excess of one year, as required by applicable securities laws. 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON SHARES 

The holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive notice of any meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation 
and to attend and vote thereat. Each Common Share entitles its holder to one vote. The holders of Common Shares 
are entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, such dividends as the board of directors of the Corporation may declare 
out of funds legally available therefor. In the event of the dissolution, liquidation, winding-up or other distribution of 
the assets of the Corporation, such holders are entitled to receive, on a pro rata basis, all of the assets of the 
Corporation remaining after payment of all of the Corporation’s liabilities. The Common Shares carry no pre-
emptive, conversion, redemption or retraction rights. The Common Shares carry no other special rights and 
restrictions other than as described herein. 
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DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES 

The following sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the Debt Securities. The particular terms and 
provisions of Debt Securities offered by a Prospectus Supplement, and the extent to which the general terms and 
provisions described below may apply to such Debt Securities, will be described in such Prospectus Supplement. 

The Debt Securities will be issued in series under one or more trust indentures to be entered into between the 
Corporation and a financial institution to which the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) applies or a financial 
institution organized under the laws of any province of Canada and authorized to carry on business as a trustee. Each 
such trust indenture, as supplemented or amended from time to time, will set out the terms of the applicable series of 
Debt Securities. The statements in this Prospectus relating to any trust indenture and the Debt Securities to be issued 
under it are summaries of anticipated provisions of an applicable trust indenture and do not purport to be complete 
and are subject to, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, all provisions of such trust indenture, as 
applicable. 

Each trust indenture may provide that Debt Securities may be issued thereunder up to the aggregate principal 
amount which may be authorized from time to time by the Corporation. Any Prospectus Supplement for Debt 
Securities will contain the terms and other information with respect to the Debt Securities being offered, including 
(i) the designation, aggregate principal amount and authorized denominations of such Debt Securities, (ii) the 
currency for which the Debt Securities may be purchased and the currency in which the principal and any interest is 
payable (in either case, if other than Canadian dollars), (iii) the percentage of the principal amount at which such 
Debt Securities will be issued, (iv) the date or dates on which such Debt Securities will mature, (v) the rate or rates 
at which such Debt Securities will bear interest (if any), or the method of determination of such rates (if any), (vi) 
the dates on which any such interest will be payable and the record dates for such payments, (vii) any redemption 
term or terms under which such Debt Securities may be defeased, (viii) any exchange or conversion terms, and (ix) 
any other specific terms. 

Each series of Debt Securities may be issued at various times with different maturity dates, may bear interest at 
different rates and may otherwise vary. 

The Debt Securities will be direct obligations of the Corporation. The Debt Securities will be senior or subordinated 
indebtedness of the Corporation as described in the relevant Prospectus Supplement. 

DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS 

The following sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the Subscription Receipts. The Corporation may 
issue Subscription Receipts that may be exchanged by the holders thereof for Common Shares and/or other 
Securities of the Corporation upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. The particular terms and provisions of the 
Subscription Receipts offered pursuant to this Prospectus will be set forth in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, 
and the extent to which the general terms described below apply to those Subscription Receipts, will be described in 
the Prospectus Supplement. 

The Corporation may offer Subscription Receipts separately or together with Common Shares, Debt Securities or 
Warrants, as the case may be. The Corporation will issue Subscription Receipts under one or more subscription 
receipt agreements. Under each subscription receipt agreement, a purchaser of Subscription Receipts will have a 
contractual right of rescission following the issuance of the Common Shares and/or other Securities of the 
Corporation, as the case may be, to such purchaser, entitling the purchaser to receive the amount paid for the 
Subscription Receipts upon surrender of the Common Shares and/or other Securities of the Corporation, as the case 
may be, if this Prospectus, the relevant Prospectus Supplement, and any amendment thereto, contains a 
misrepresentation, provided such remedy for rescission is exercised within 180 days of the date the Subscription 
Receipts are issued. 

Any Prospectus Supplement will contain the terms and conditions and other information relating to the Subscription 
Receipts being offered including: 

 the number of Subscription Receipts; 

 the price at which the Subscription Receipts will be offered and whether the price is payable in 
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installment; 

 any conditions to the exchange of Subscription Receipts into Common Shares, and/or other Securities 
of the Corporation, as the case may be, and the consequences of such conditions not being satisfied; 

 the procedures for the exchange of the Subscription Receipts into Common Shares and/or other 
Securities of the Corporation, as the case may be; 

 the number of Common Shares and/or other Securities of the Corporation, as the case may be, that 
may be exchanged upon exercise of each Subscription Receipt; 

 the designation and terms of any other Securities with which the Subscription Receipts will be offered, 
if any, and the number of Subscription Receipts that will be offered with each Security; 

 the dates or periods during which the Subscription Receipts may be exchanged into Common Shares 
and/or other Securities of the Corporation; 

 whether such Subscription Receipts will be listed on any securities exchange; 

 any other rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Subscription Receipts; and 

 any other specific terms. 

Prior to the exchange of their Subscription Receipts, holders of Subscription Receipts will not have any of the rights 
of holders of the securities issuable on the exchange of the Subscription Receipts. 

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS 

The following sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the Warrants. We may issue Warrants for the 
purchase of Common Shares and/or other Securities of the Corporation. Warrants may be issued independently or 
together with Common Shares, Debt Securities and Subscription Receipts offered by any Prospectus Supplement 
and may be attached to, or separate from, any such offered Securities. Warrants will be issued under one or more 
warrant agreements entered into between the Corporation and a warrant agent named in the applicable Prospectus 
Supplement. 

Selected provisions of the Warrants and the warrant agreements are summarized below. This summary is not 
complete. The statements made in this Prospectus relating to any warrant agreement and Warrants to be issued 
thereunder are summaries of certain anticipated provisions thereof and are subject to, and are qualified in their 
entirety by reference to, all provisions of the applicable warrant agreement. 

Any Prospectus Supplement will contain the terms and other information relating to the Warrants being offered 
including: 

 the exercise price of the Warrants; 

 the designation of the Warrants; 

 the aggregate number of Warrants offered and the offering price; 

 the designation, number and terms of the Common Shares and/or other Securities of the Corporation 
purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants, and procedures that will result in the adjustment of those 
numbers; 

 the dates or periods during which the Warrants are exercisable; 

 the designation and terms of any securities with which the Warrants are issued; 

 if the Warrants are issued as a unit with another security, the date on and after which the Warrants and 
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the other security will be separately transferable; 

 the currency or currency unit in which the exercise price is denominated; 

 any minimum or maximum amount of Warrants that may be exercised at any one time; 

 whether such Warrants will be listed on any securities exchange; 

 any terms, procedures and limitations relating to the transferability, exchange or exercise of the 
Warrants; 

 any rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Warrants; and 

 any other specific terms. 

Prior to the exercise of their Warrants, holders of Warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the 
Securities subject to the Warrants. 

DESCRIPTION OF UNITS 

Units are a security comprised of more than one of the other Securities described in this Prospectus offered together 
as a “Unit”. A Unit is typically issued so the holder thereof is also the holder of each Security included in the Unit. 
Thus, the holder of a Unit will have the rights and obligations of a holder of each Security comprising the Unit. The 
agreement, if any, under which a Unit is issued may provide that the Securities comprising the Unit may not be held 
or transferred separately at any time or at any time before a specified date. 

The particular terms and provisions of Units offered by any Prospectus Supplement, and the extent to which the 
general terms and provisions described below may apply to them, will be described in the Prospectus Supplement 
filed in respect of such Units. This description will include, where applicable: (i) the designation and terms of the 
Units and of the Securities comprising the Units, including whether and under what circumstances those Securities 
may be held or transferred separately; (ii) any provisions for the issuance, payment, settlement, transfer or exchange 
of the Units or of the Securities comprising the Units; (iii) whether the Units will be issued in registered or global 
form; and (iv) any other material terms and conditions of the Units. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION  

The Corporation may sell the Securities, separately or together: (a) to one or more underwriters or dealers; (b) 
through one or more agents; or (c) directly to one or more purchasers through applicable statutory exemptions. The 
Prospectus Supplement relating to a particular offering of Securities will identify each underwriter, dealer or agent 
engaged in connection with the offering and sale of the Securities, as well as the method of distribution and the 
terms of the offering of such Securities, including the net proceeds to the Corporation and, to the extent applicable, 
any fees, discounts, concessions or any other compensation payable to underwriters, dealers or agents and any other 
material terms. Only underwriters so named in the Prospectus Supplement are deemed to be underwriters in 
connection with the Securities offered thereby. 

The Securities may be sold, from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices which may be 
changed or at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at 
negotiated prices, including sales in transactions that are deemed to be “at-the-market distributions” as defined in NI 
44-102, including sales made directly on the TSXV. The prices at which the Securities may be offered may vary as 
between purchasers and during the period of distribution. If, in connection with the offering of Securities at a fixed 
price or prices, the underwriters have made a bona fide effort to sell all of the Securities at the initial offering price 
fixed in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, the public offering price may be decreased and thereafter further 
changed, from time to time, to an amount not greater than the initial public offering price fixed in such Prospectus 
Supplement, in which case the compensation realized by the underwriters will be decreased by the amount that the 
aggregate price paid by purchasers for the Securities is less than the gross proceeds paid by the underwriters to the 
Corporation. 
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Underwriters, dealers and agents who participate in the distribution of the Securities may be entitled under 
agreements to be entered into with the Corporation to indemnification by the Corporation against certain liabilities, 
including liabilities under securities legislation, or to contribution with respect to payments which such underwriters, 
dealers or agents may be required to make in respect thereof. Such underwriters, dealers and agents may be 
customers of, engage in transactions with, or perform services for, the Corporation in the ordinary course of 
business. 

Any offering of Debt Securities, Subscription Receipts, Warrants or Units will be a new issue of securities with no 
established trading market. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, the Debt Securities, 
Subscription Receipts, Warrants or Units will not be listed on any securities exchange. See “Risk Factors”.  Certain 
dealers may make a market in these Securities, but will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market 
making at any time without notice. No assurance can be given that any dealer will make a market in these Securities 
or as to the liquidity of the trading market, if any, for these Securities. 

In connection with any offering of the Securities, other than an “at-the-market distribution” (unless otherwise 
specified in a Prospectus Supplement), the underwriters or agents may over-allot or effect transactions which 
stabilize or maintain the market price of the Securities offered at a higher level than that which might exist in the 
open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be interrupted or discontinued at any time. The Corporation 
will obtain any exemptive relief required prior to conducting any “at-the-market distributions”.  

PRIOR SALES  

During the 12-month period before the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation has issued the following Common 
Shares and securities convertible into Common Shares:  

Month of Issue Type of Security Number Issued Issue/ Exercise/ 
Conversion Price

Reason for Issuance 

June 2020 Common Shares 419,428 $0.35 Exercise of Warrants 

June 2020 Common Shares 3,750 $0.50 Exercise of Warrants 

May 2020 Common Shares 15,000 $0.35 Exercise of Warrants 

May 2020 Common Shares 7,500 $0.50 Exercise of Warrants 

January 2020 Common Shares 1,968,6491 $0.20 Conversion of Convertible Securities 

January 2020 Common Shares 19,784,9811 $0.25 Acquisition of Menlo 

January 2020 Convertible Debentures US$5,000,0001 $0.20  Acquisition of Menlo 

January 2020 Restricted Stock Units 1,796,500 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

January 2020 Stock Options 200,000 $0.25 Grant of Stock Options 

December 2019 Stock Options 1,025,000 $0.20 Grant of Stock Options 

December 2019 Restricted Stock Units 1,600,000 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

November 2019 Restricted Stock Units 1,675,000 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

October 2019 Restricted Stock Units 300,000 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

August 2019 Restricted Stock Units 125,000 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

August 2019 Stock Options 300,000 $0.15 Grant of Stock Options 

July 2019 Common Shares 750,000 $0.20 Private Placement 

July 2019 Restricted Stock Units 350,000 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

June 2019 Common Shares 4,473,684 $0.17 Acquisition of CRG 

June 2019 Warrants 19,500,000 $0.35 Acquisition of CRG 

June 2019 Restricted Stock Units 275,301 N/A Grant of Restricted Stock Units 

Note: 
(1) See “The Corporation – Recent Developments”. 



- 12 - 

MARKET FOR SECURITIES  

The Common Shares are listed on the TSXV under the symbol “QUIS”. The following table sets forth the market 
price ranges and trading volumes of the Common Shares on the TSXV over the 12-month period prior to the date of 
this Prospectus, as reported by the TSXV: 

Period

High

($) 

Low

($) 

Volume

2020
June1 0.93 0.77 1,163,118 

May ................................................................................................................................1.26 0.57 3,703,888

April ................................................................................................................................0.85 0.31 1,332,980 

March ................................................................................................................................0.55 0.265 1,834,585 

February ................................................................................................................................0.51 0.35 2,228,535 

January ................................................................................................................................0.38 0.24 2,166,326 

2019   

December ................................................................................................................................0.265 0.14 1,313,591 

November................................................................................................................................0.155 0.085 3,247,130 

October ................................................................................................................................0.14 0.105 964,911 

September ................................................................................................................................0.15 0.115 1,367,500 

August ................................................................................................................................0.13 0.07 761,593 

July ................................................................................................................................ 0.16 0.105 3,050,800 
June ................................................................................................................................0.20 0.115 1,749,550 

Note: 

(1) Period from June 1, 2020 to June 11, 2020. 

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS 

The applicable Prospectus Supplement may describe certain Canadian federal income tax considerations generally 
applicable to investors described therein of purchasing, holding and disposing of applicable Securities, including, in 
the case of an investor who is not a resident of Canada, Canadian non-resident withholding tax consideration. 

RISK FACTORS 

An investment in the Securities involves risks. Prospective investors should carefully consider the risks described in 
the sections entitled “Risk Factors” in any Prospectus Supplement and those set forth in documents incorporated by 
reference in this Prospectus and any applicable Prospectus Supplement, as well as other information in this 
Prospectus and any applicable Prospectus Supplement, before purchasing any of the Securities. Each of the risks 
described in these sections and documents could materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition, 
results of operations and prospects of the Corporation, and could result in a loss of investment. Additional risks and 
uncertainties not known to the Corporation or that the Corporation currently deems immaterial may also impair the 
Corporation’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.  

Negative Operating Cash Flow 

Although the Corporation had positive operating cash flow beginning in the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2020, the Corporation had negative cash flow from operating activities for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2019, and has historically incurred net losses. There is no assurance that sufficient 
revenues will be generated in the near future, including without limitation, revenue generated by each of LedgerPay, 
Menlo, and CRG. To the extent that the Corporation has negative operating cash flows in future periods, it may need 
to deploy a portion of its existing working capital to fund such negative cash flows. The Corporation may be 
required to raise additional funds through the issuance of additional equity securities or through loan financing. 
There is no assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that these 
financings will be on terms at least as favourable to the Corporation as those previously obtained, or at all. Given its 
expected rate of cash burn, the Corporation expects to be able to continue operations and advance its business 
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operations using its currently available non-contingent resources for at least 12 months from the date of this 
Prospectus. 

The Corporation is a developing company with limited operating history and no profitability  

There is no assurance that the Corporation will earn profits in the future, or that profitability will be sustained. There 
is no assurance that future revenues will be sufficient to generate the funds required to continue the Corporation’s 
business development and marketing activities. If the Corporation does not have sufficient capital to fund its 
operations, it may be required to reduce its sales and marketing efforts or forego certain business opportunities. 

The Corporation’s reliance on the Microsoft cloud platform and services 

The Corporation works collaboratively with Microsoft to assist with the introduction, marketing, sale, and system 
administration and operations of its products to selected enterprise level customers. There can be no assurance that 
other Microsoft solutions providers will not develop competing products to the Corporation’s that are also based on 
Microsoft’s cloud platform and services, and/or on competing cloud technology platforms. Risks associated with the 
Corporation’s reliance upon Microsoft include Microsoft increasing its rates for its cloud platform and services that 
power the Corporation’s products, which might render the Corporation’s products uncompetitive, and the possibility 
that Microsoft may elect to work with other solutions providers that complete directly with the Corporation. The 
Corporation’s future financial performance will also depend, in part, on the continued growth in the number of 
businesses that successfully adopt Microsoft’s suite of cloud platform and services. Potential changes to Microsoft’s 
current cloud platform and services pricing model, the technical capabilities of Microsoft’s cloud platform and 
services, or a reduction in the level of support that Microsoft currently provides to assist the Corporation in 
advancing its business, could have a material impact the business and operations of the Corporation. Although the 
Corporation’s core business is dependent on its working relationship with Microsoft, no agreements currently in 
place with Microsoft or its subsidiaries are considered material for the purposes of National Instrument 51-102 – 
Continuous Disclosure Obligations. 

Client Concentration

A substantial proportion of the Corporation’s total revenues are derived from a small number of clients, and the loss 
of one or more of these top clients or a reduction in sales to one or more of the top clients may have a material 
adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, results of operations or liquidity. The concentration of the 
Corporation’s sales to a few clients could make the Corporation more vulnerable to collection risk if one or more of 
these clients were unable to pay for the Corporation’s products. Also, having such a large portion of its total net 
revenue concentrated in a few clients may hinder the Corporation’s negotiating leverage with these clients.  

Changes in the IT Industry

The IT industry is characterized by rapid technological innovation, changing client needs, evolving industry 
standards and frequent introductions of new products, product enhancements, services and distribution methods. The 
success of the Corporation depends on its ability to develop expertise with these new products, product 
enhancements, and services and to implement IT consulting and professional services, technology integration and 
managed services that anticipate and respond to rapid and continuing changes in technology, industry dynamics and 
client needs. The introduction of new products, product enhancements and distribution methods could decrease 
demand for current products/services or render them obsolete. Sales of products and services can be dependent on 
demand for specific product categories, and any change in demand for or supply of such services could have a 
material adverse effect on net sales, if the Corporation fails to adapt to such changes in a timely manner.  

As client requirements evolve and competitive pressures increase, the Corporation will likely be required to modify, 
enhance, reposition or introduce new IT solutions and service offerings.  

The Corporation may experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development, introduction 
and marketing of services and solutions that respond to technological changes or evolving industry standards, or fail 
to develop services and solutions that adequately meet the requirements of the marketplace or achieve market 
acceptance. The Corporation may not be successful in doing so in a timely, cost-effective and appropriately 
responsive manner, or at all, which could adversely affect its competitive position and financial condition. All of 
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these factors make it difficult to predict future operating results, which may impair the Corporation’s ability to 
manage its business and its investors' ability to assess the Corporation’s prospects.  

Risks Associated with Future Acquisitions 

The Corporation intends to continue to acquire additional businesses. Acquisitions involve a number of special risks, 
including diversion of management’s attention, failure to retain key acquired personnel, unanticipated events or 
circumstances, and legal liabilities, some or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the business, results 
of operations and financial condition. In addition, there can be no assurance that the Corporation can complete any 
acquisition it pursues on favourable terms, that any acquired businesses, products or technologies will achieve 
anticipated revenues and income, or that any acquisitions completed will ultimately benefit the business. 
Furthermore, the potential funding of any such future acquisitions could require diversion of revenue or securing of 
debt or equity financings by the Corporation which could, in turn, result in a potentially dilutive issuance of equity 
securities. If a strategy of growth through acquisition is pursued, the failure of the Corporation to successfully 
manage this strategy could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business, results of operations and 
financial condition.  

There is no assurance that the Corporation will complete the proposed Debt Consolidation

As disclosed under the heading “Consolidated Capitalization” in this Prospectus, the Corporation entered into the 
non-binding Term Sheet with the Proposed Lender which contemplates the completion of the Debt Consolidation. 
The Debt Consolidation remains subject to the Proposed Lender’s completion of satisfactory due diligence, formal 
credit approval from the Proposed Lender, the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation, and other 
customary conditions precedent.  Accordingly, there can no assurance that the Debt Consolidation will occur. In the 
event that the Debt Consolidation does not occur, the Corporation will seek other methods of fulfilling its debt 
obligations which may include, without limitation, repaying some or all of the debt, or deferring some or all of the 
debt. There can be no assurances that such alternatives will be available to the Corporation on satisfactory terms or 
at all.   

COVID-19 Pandemic

The recent global outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to 
combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed 
quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an 
economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced significant volatility and weakness. Governments and 
central banks have reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed to stabilize economic 
conditions. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown at this time, as is the efficacy of the 
government and central bank interventions. It is not possible to reliably estimate the length and severity of these 
developments and the impact on the financial results and condition of the Corporation and its operating subsidiaries 
in future periods. To date, certain customers of the Corporation have suspended or scaled back their operations for 
precautionary purposes or as governments have declared a state of emergency or taken other actions, which may 
adversely affect the price and demand for the Corporation’s services as well as its ability to collect outstanding 
receivables from its customers. Conversely, the Corporation has also experienced an increased demand for its 
services as certain customers have accelerated their use and dependence of the Corporation’s cloud services as a 
result of work from home measures. The extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Corporation’s financial results will 
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information that 
may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and the actions taken by governments to curtail or treat its 
impact, including shelter in place directives, which, if extended, may impact the economies in which the 
Corporation now, or may in the future, operate. 

No Market for the Securities 

There is currently no trading market for any Debt Securities, Subscription Receipts, Warrants or Units that may be 
offered. No assurance can be given that an active or liquid trading market for these securities will develop or be 
sustained. If an active or liquid market for these securities fails to develop or be sustained, the prices at which these 
securities trade may be adversely affected. Whether or not these securities will trade at lower prices depends on 
many factors, including liquidity of these securities, prevailing interest rates and the markets for similar securities, 
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the market price of the Corporation, general economic conditions and the Corporation’s financial condition, historic 
financial performance and future prospects. 

Prior Ranking Indebtedness

Any issuance of Debt Securities will be subordinate to all senior indebtedness of the Corporation. Any Debt 
Securities will also be effectively subordinate to claims of creditors of the Corporation and its subsidiaries relating to 
all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the Corporation or its subsidiaries for the payment of which the 
Corporation is responsible, whether absolutely or contingently. Any trust indentures entered into in connection with 
the issuance of any Debt Securities will not limit the ability of the Corporation to incur additional debt or liabilities 
(including senior indebtedness) or to make distributions on the Common Shares, except, in respect of distributions, 
where an event of default has occurred and such default has not been cured or waived. Any trust indentures will not 
contain any provision specifically intended to protect holders of Debt Securities in the event of a future leveraged 
transaction involving the Corporation. 

LEGAL MATTERS  

Unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus Supplement relating to an offering of Securities, certain legal matters 
relating to the offering of Securities will be passed upon on behalf of the Corporation by Cassels Brock & Blackwell 
LLP with respect to matters of Canadian law. As at the date hereof, the partners and associates of Cassels Brock & 
Blackwell LLP beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of any registered or beneficial interests, direct 
or indirect, in any securities or other property of the Corporation or of any associate or affiliate of the Corporation. 
In addition, certain legal matters in connection with any offering of Securities will be passed upon for any 
underwriters, dealers or agents by counsel to be designated at the time of the offering by such underwriters, dealers 
or agents with respect to matters of Canadian and, if applicable, United States or other foreign laws. 

INTEREST OF EXPERTS 

KPMG LLP are the auditors of the Corporation and have confirmed that they are independent within the meaning of 
the relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any 
applicable legislation or regulations.  

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR  

The Corporation’s transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares is Computershare Investor Services Inc., 510 
Burrard St., 3rd Floor Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3B9. 

EXEMPTIONS 

Pursuant to a decision of the Autorité des marchés financiers dated May 14, 2020, the Corporation was granted relief 
from the requirement that: (i) the AIF; (ii) the Circular; (iii) the Business Acquisition Report; (iv) the 2019 Annual 
Financial Statements; and the (iv) MD&A, which are incorporated by reference in the preliminary short form base 
shelf prospectus of the Corporation dated May 15, 2020, be in both the French and English languages. This relief 
was conditional upon the Corporation filing French versions of these documents no later than the date of filing of 
this Prospectus. 

STATUTORY AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION 

Unless provided otherwise in a Prospectus Supplement, the following is a description of a purchaser’s statutory 
rights. Securities legislation in certain of the provinces and territories of Canada provides purchasers with the right 
to withdraw from an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after 
receipt or deemed receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces and territories, the 
securities legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, revisions of 
the price or damages if the prospectus and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the 
purchaser, provided that the remedies for rescission, revision of the price or damages are exercised by the purchaser 
within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory. The purchaser 
should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory for the 
particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor. 
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Original purchasers of Securities which are convertible, exchangeable or exercisable for other securities of the 
Corporation will have a contractual right of rescission against the Corporation in respect of the conversion, exchange 
or exercise of such Securities. The contractual right of rescission will entitle such original purchasers to receive, 
upon surrender of the underlying securities, the amount paid for the applicable convertible, exchangeable or 
exercisable Securities, and any additional amount paid upon conversion, exchange or exercise of such Securities, in 
the event that this Prospectus, the relevant Prospectus Supplement or an amendment thereto contains a 
misrepresentation, provided that: (i) the conversion, exchange or exercise takes place within 180 days of the date of 
the purchase of such Securities under this Prospectus and the applicable Prospectus Supplement; and (ii) the right of 
rescission is exercised within 180 days of the date of the purchase of such Securities under this Prospectus and the 
applicable Prospectus Supplement. This contractual right of rescission will be consistent with the statutory right of 
rescission described under Section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario), and is in addition to any other right or remedy 
available to original purchasers under Section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario) or otherwise at law. 

Original purchasers are further advised that in certain provinces and territories the statutory right of action for 
damages in connection with a prospectus misrepresentation is limited to the amount paid for the convertible, 
exchangeable or exercisable securities that were purchased under a prospectus and, therefore, a further payment at 
the time of conversion, exchange or exercise may not be recoverable in a statutory action for damages. The 
purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the province or territory in which 
the purchaser resides for the particulars of these rights, or consult with a legal adviser. 

ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENTS AGAINTS FOREIGN PERSONS 

Michael Reinhart, the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Corporation, and Philip Sorgen, a 
director of the Corporation, each reside outside of Canada and have each appointed Cassels Brock & Blackwell 
LLP, Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 3C2, as his agent for service of process 
in Canada. Prospective investors of Securities are advised that it may not be possible for investors to enforce 
judgments obtained in Canada against any person or company that resides outside of Canada or is incorporated, 
continued or otherwise organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction, even if the party has appointed an agent 
for service of process.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION 

Dated: June 12, 2020 

This Prospectus, together with the documents incorporated by reference, will, as of the date of the last supplement to 
this Prospectus relating to the securities offered by this Prospectus and the supplement(s), constitute full, true and 
plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this Prospectus as required by the securities 
legislation of each of the provinces and territories of Canada. 

(Signed) MICHAEL REINHART

President and Chief Executive Officer 
(Signed) MICHAEL MURPHY

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Signed) GORDON MCMILLAN

Director 
(Signed) DAVID GUEBERT

Director 


